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Mr. Shahab Khawaja served in the public sector for almost 36 years as a career Civil Servant of 
District Management Group and held many key positions such as Federal Secretary of Ministries 
of Privatization, Industries and Production, Additional Secretary Population Welfare, CEO of Small 
and Medium Enterprises Development Authority (SMEDA).

Earlier to above mentioned positions, Mr. Shahab Khawaja also remained Secretary to Department 
of Agriculture and Livestock and Dairy Development, Government of Punjab. After his retirement, 
he also held the positons of CEO, Competitiveness Support Fund (CSF), a joint Project of Ministry 
of Finance and USAID and as the Executive Director, Fertilizer Manufacturers of Pakistan Advisory 
Council (FMPAC). He has served on a number of Public Sector Organizations’ Boards and has 
represented Government of Pakistan in multiple International Bodies and Seminars such as UNDP, 
UNFPA, UNIDO, ECOSOC APO etc.

Currently he is Director on the Board of JS Bank and Chairman to its Audit Committee. He 
is also a Certi�ed Director, under Listed Companies’ requirements, as prescribed by SECP. 
The Academic and professional quali�cation of Mr. Shahab Khawaja includes MSc. in Chemistry,  
Post Graduate Diplomas in Development Administration from Birmingham University, UK and in 
Public Policy from University of Connecticut Hartford, USA.  

Role of the Chairman

The Chairman is responsible for leadership of the Board and is elected from non-executive directors. The Chairman:

1.	 encourages and fosters an environment in which the Board as a whole is enabled to play a full and constructive 

part in the development and determination of the Company’s strategy and overall business objectives.

2.	 engages the Board in discussions to promote constructive session which results in effective decision making.

3.	 ensures effective and ef�cient manner of the Board proceedings in conformity with best Practices of the Code of 

Corporate Governance.

4.	 ensures that the Board members receive accurate, timely and suf�cient information which enables them to form 

appropriate judgments.

5.	 ensures that the views of the relevant stakeholders are understood by the Board.

6.	 engages into effective communication with shareholders, and other relevant stakeholders.

7.	 ensures effective operations of the Board and its Committees.

Directors’ Pro�les
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Mr. Shakeel Ahmed Mangnejo is an of�cer of Pakistan Administrative Service. He joined Civil Service 
in 1996. Prior to his posting as CEO Pakistan Reinsurance Company Limited and CEO Pakistan 
Steel Mills, he has held the positions of Home Secretary, Secretary Social Welfare, Secretary 
Implementation, Special Secretary Finance and Managing Director Sindh PPRA in the Government 
of Sindh. He has served the Federal Government as Director General Investments EOBI and Director 
Finance Trading Corporation of Pakistan. He has previously been on the Boards of PRIMACO and 
Sahara Insurance Company. Presently he is serving on the Boards of National Investment Trust, 
PIDC, State Engineering Corporation, Pakistan Machine Tool Factory and Pakistan Steel Fabricating 
Company.

Mr. Mangnejo has a Masters degree in Management from London School of Economics and a Masters 
degree in Economics. He also has a degree in Law and Civil Engineering. He has attended several local 
and international training courses, workshops and conferences.

Mr. Shakeel Ahmed Mangnejo has experience in Public Administration, Financial Management, 
Financial Markets, Public Procurement, Criminal Administration and Human Resource Management.

Role of the Chief Executive

The Chief Executive is responsible for leadership of the management. He:

1.	 recommends corporate strategy to the Board and after its approval ensures its implementation.

2.	 keeps the Board updated on progress made against agreed corporate strategy and business objectives.

3.	 exercises all the powers delegated by the Board, in managing day to day affairs of the Company.

4.	 ensures that the management complies with all relevant legislations and regulations.

5.	 leads the management Committees in an ef�cient manner.

6.	 ensures that the Company has a suitable system and policy for the timely and accurate disclosure of information in 
accordance with regulatory requirements.

7.	 develops and maintains an effective framework of internal controls including enterprise risk management system, 
in relation to all business activities.

Mr. Kehar completed his MBA from the California State University Dominguez Hills after obtaining  
degree of Bachelors of Science from California State University at Los Angeles  and Associate of Arts 
degrees, from Los Angeles Pierce College. He has over 23 years of diverse experience in banking and 
capital markets with prominent �nancial institutions in the Pakistan.

He has also been an Advisor /Member Sindh Revenue Board. Prior to Chief Executive Of�cer and 
Managing Director of NBP Leasing Ltd Pakistan he has also served over 15 years at Pak Libya Holding 
Company. During his stay at different institutions, he was exposed to Corporate, Investment, Equities 
and merchant banking, consultation for quality solutions in areas of �nancial management, SMEs 
Financing etc.

Mr. Kehar has also been a visiting faculty member for teaching in leading business institutes including 
IBA & Greenwich University, for over 12 years. Besides, he has represented as Director on the boards 
of various companies.

He is a Certi�ed Board Director from Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance.
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Mr. Mumtaz Ali Rajper holds a Masters Degree in Economics. 

He has more than 33 Years of experience with Pakistan International Airline, Sindh TV and Mehran 
TV. 

He was on PAKRE Board as a Nominee Director of Government of Pakistan since April 2010 and now 
he has been elected as Director effective December 2013.  He also serves on the Board of Matrix (Pvt) 
Limited. He is also a certi�ed Board Director from Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

Dr. Musleh ud Din holds Ph.D. in Economics from the Johns Hopkins University. He has more than 
30 years of experience in teaching and policy oriented research. He has published widely in national 
and international journals in the areas of macroeconomics, �nancial sector development, and trade 
policy. He has served as member of various high level committees and is currently a member of the 
Economic Advisory Council. He also serves as executive editor of the Pakistan Development Review. 
Dr. Musleh ud Din has conducted a number of research projects under the aegis of the World Bank, 
Asian Development Bank, and United Nations. He is also a certi�ed Board Director from Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

As the head of Spectrum’s Social Marketing Department for the last 20 years, Ms. Ghazala Ahmed 
has made major contributions and successfully steered campaigns involving behaviour change at 
grass roots level for projects like Pakistan Child Survival Project, UNICEF, Save the Children Fund 
USA, American Business Council, United Nations Drug Control Program, The Futures Group, PRIDE, 
PAIMAN/JSI, The Population Council and Greenstar Social Marketing.

Ms. Ghazala Ahmed has a strong background in marketing and before joining Spectrum she worked 
as General Manager Marketing, MICAS Associates, a Management Consultancy Firm for turnkey 
projects for �ve years.

Ms. Ghazala Ahmed is a graduate from Punjab University and holds a Post Graduate Diploma in 
Advertising from Watford Poly Herts, U.K. Recently she completed Directors Training Program, from 
Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance, Karachi, duly certi�ed by SECP.

Dr. Nazim Latif, is a Civil Servant of Federal Government in BS-20, belonging to Commerce & Trade 
Group, presently posted as Joint Secretary (Admn./Insurance), Ministry of Commerce. He is basically 
a Doctor and holds MBBS degree from King Edward Medical College, Lahore. He joined civil service 
in 1995. He has diversi�ed experience at senior management level in various departments, such as 
Director General (Trade Policy), Ministry of Commerce, Commercial Counsellor, Embassy of Pakistan 
at Bangkok, General Manager, National Insurance Company Limited, Director, Trade Development 
Authority of Pakistan etcetera. He has attended different local and international professional 
training courses like Master-VII at Rotterdam, Netherlands and National Management Course at 
NMC, Lahore. 
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SENIOR MANAGEMENT



Pakistan Reinsurance Company Limited Annual Report 201713

PRCL is a Public Sector Company under the administrative control of Federal Ministry of Commerce. The Company is being headed 
and supervised by a Board of Directors, which is assisted by the Management comprising a strong team of professionals who 
effectively manage the business affairs of Company. The Nine Member Board comprises four Government Nominee Directors, 
two Elected Directors, one Nominee of Investor Company (SLIC), one Ex-of�cio (Joint Secretary Insurance) and a CEO. 

PRCL’s prime objective is the development of reinsurance business in Pakistan. The company is the only reinsurer in Pakistan 
playing role in the national economic development. It provides reinsurance protection to the local insurance industry by way of 
treaty and facultative businesses.

Company History

PRCL was established in 1952 as Pakistan Insurance Corporation under PlC Act, 1952, in order to support local insurance industry. 
In the year 2000, Pakistan Insurance Corporation was converted and incorporated in a public limited company namely Pakistan 
Reinsurance Company Limited on 15th February 2001 in pursuance of Ministry of Commerce SRO No.98(1)/2000 which was 
issued under the Presidential Ordinance No. XXXVI of 2000 dated 14th February, 2001.

Types of Businesses

�x�� Fire – Building, Stock, Plant, Machinery, Crop;

�x�� Marine – Hull, Cargo, (Primary, War  liabilities);

�x�� Aviation – (Aircraft, Cargo, Crew, Passengers, Third Party Liability);

�x�� Accident – Motor, Fidelity Guarantee, Personal Lines;

�x�� Liability – Employers Liability, Professional Indemnity, Workman Compensation; 

�x�� Engineering – Property Damage, Business Interruption, Plant, Machinery Breakdown, TPL, Erection All Risks, Contractor All 
Risks etc.

�x�� National Projects through NICL: Oil Re�neries, Power Projects, Oil and Gas Exploration, Fields / Operations, Hydel Power 
and Nuclear Power Projects. 

Business Operations

The reinsurance operation of the Company consists of the following departments:

•	 Underwriting Department covers examination and acceptance of risk placement offered by local insurers, both under 
Facultative and Treaty arrangements;

•	 Retrocession Department covers tendering of risks placed by National Insurance Company Limited to appropriate foreign insurers 
and further retrocession of business ceded by local private insurers; 

•	 Claims Department includes examination of claim noti�cations, requiring details of losses / accidents from insurer, under 
both the Facultative and Treaty arrangements and recommending claim approvals pertaining to respective Claim Committees 
at the level of Management and Board. 

The Company actively participates in international business forums such as Economic Cooperation Organization (ECO) and 
Federation of Afro-Asian Insurer and Reinsurer (FAIR). 

COMPANY PROFILE
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Six Year Performance at a Glance
Rupees in millions

S.No. PARTICULARS 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

(Restated)

FINANCIAL DATA

1 Paid up capital 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000

2 General & Capital Reserves 4,803 4,403 3,938 3,987 3,571 3,122

3 Equity 7,803 7,403 6,938 6,987 6,571 6,122

4 Investment 6,093 6,625 6,318 6,650 6,513 6,434

5 Fixed Assets 37 39 44 49 56 53

6 Cash & Bank Deposits 2,547 2,680 3,285 3,081 2,706 2,014

7 Total Assets 21,392 19,907 17,388 17,621 16,306 15,766

8 Total liabilities 13,589 12,504 10,450 10,633 9,734 9,644

OPERATING DATA

1 Gross Premium 8,036 8,807 8,135 8,661 8,659 8,153

2 Net Premium 5,098 5,802 5,219 4,784 4,724 4,096

3 Net Claims 3,740 3,336 2,775 2,793 2,831 2217

4 Net Commission 1,142 1,264 1,101 950 937 868

5 Total Management Expenses 744 657 621 523 503 448

6 Underwriting Results (528) 545 722 515 453 563

7 Investment Income 3,326 961 935 1,079 1,101 918

8 Pro�t Before Tax 2,973 1,427 1,772 1,565 1,706 1537

9 Pro�t After Tax 2,219 974 1,377 1,244 1,321 1160

SHARE INFORMATION & PAYOUTS

1 No of shares (In millions) 300 300 300 300 300 300

2 Cash dividend % 35 30 25 25 25 25

3 Bonus Shares % - - - - - -

4 Total Dividend % 35 30 25 25 25 25

FINANCIAL RATIO ANALYSIS

1 Claims ratio 73.36 57.50 53.17 58.38 59.93 54.13

2 Total Assets Turnover (Times) 0.38 0.44 0.47 0.49 0.53 0.52

3 Total Liabilities / equity (%) 174.15 168.90 150.62 152.18 148.14 157.53

4 Paid up Capital / Total Assets (%) 14.02 15.07 17.25 17.03 18.40 19.03

5 Equity / Total Assets (%) 36.48 37.19 39.90 39.65 40.30 38.83
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Financial Review 
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S. No. �����•���Œ�]�‰�Ÿ�}�v��
���u�}�µ�v�š���~�Z�•�X���]�v���D�]�o�o�]�}�v�•�9���P�����/�v���Œ�����•�����l��

�~�������Œ�����•���•
2017 2016

1 �t�Œ�]�©���v���W�Œ���u�]�µ�u�� 8,036 8,807 -9%

2 �E���š���W�Œ���u�]�µ�u�� 5,098 5,802 -12%

3 �����•�Z�����]�À�]�����v���� 900 750 20%

4 �/�v�À���•�š�u���v�š���/�v���}�u���� 3,326 961 246%

5 �/�v�À���•�š�u���v�š�����•�•���š�•�� 6,093 6,625 -8%

6 �h�v�����Œ�Á�Œ�]�Ÿ�v�P���W�Œ�}�.�š�l�~�>�}�•�•���•�~�ñ�î�ô�• 545 -197%

7 ���o���]�u�•���W���]���� 3,740 3,336 12%

8 �W�Œ�}�.�š�����L���Œ���d���Æ�� 2,219 974 128%

9 �d�}�š���o�����•�•���š�•�����}�}�l���s���o�µ���� 21,392 19,907 7%

10 �^�Z���Œ���Z�}�o�����Œ�•�[�����‹�µ�]�š�Ç��7,803 7,403 5%

SELECT FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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Directors’ Report to the Shareholders
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�Ä�ß�(C•�(?_�(�ú�– �(-G�(�(�øF'�(-G�(+Û

)CPEC�(%È�('q�(%L�(��
�?á�(:º�(%L�(�ð�ä�(�î�þ�ä�(�(���(�(�Æ�à�(���ì�q�Î�Ä�ï�(�5 �(�Û�(G�̂(KÎ�(�(�� 
�?á�(:º �(%L�(�(I��q
�Ô
�Ä�ä�à�(�î�þ�ä�(�ç�ä�[ �(�Æ�à�(:I ���(�Û�uKÆ�ä�(�(��G�̂(,š�à�(�(1N�(EÂG+�(��KÏ*•�(0(�(A€�(
²�(?�1N�(�(�s

�Ô�Ô
�_�þ�ï�(&=̈Í�('ƒ �Ä�(�(KÎ�(�(���î�—

��Gˆ�(�ç�î�þ'³�(1N�(K§�ìااااا 

اا

4��ì.��î-G�(1N�(/Y�(���s
�Ô�Ø
�_�/�(-Gا

�(�ú i2017�(�(K?KÎ�()Ï;o�(A€8,036 �(6•�_�(�î�þ�ä�(�Ÿ�þ�î�(?H�(K?KÎ�(5,098�(�(KÖ4á�q�Ì�Ä�(9˜ :U�(1N�(�ü�ä�(�(�ú i�(%{2‰�(�5 �(��G�̂(�(�Ÿ�þ�î�(?H8,807�(�(�î�þ�ä�(�Ÿ�þ�î�(?H5,802�(Kª�(�(A€�(�ú i�(9‡:U�(���î�/���}�(�Ÿ�þ�î�(?H

�(A€�(K?KÎ�()Ï;o771�(���(�Ÿ�þ�î�(?H9�(�(A€�(K?KÎ�(6•�_�(�î�þ�ä�(��+Û704�(�(��G �̂(�q
�Ö
�Ä.��(�s�Ï�](™�(/’ �(�(1N�(�Ÿ�þ�î�(?H 

ا

�(2	�(�ú i�(%{2‰57�(�ì�(6•�_�(2	+Û�(�î,N�(1N�(�ð�ä�(�ú i�(�ð�ä�(A€�(	§ >l�(2	�(�(�Ì�× �—�(-G�(�(K?KÎ�(�(6• �_�(%L�(�� �u�
�b73�(�(A€�(�ç�/�ä�s
�Ô

�<�ä�(@¬�q
�Ö�Ô

�‘ �ä�(A€�(	§ >l�(2	�(�ú i�(%{2‰�(��G �̂(+Û13�(�(�(A€�(/¤�(6•�_�(�î�þ�ä�(+«'Ÿ�ä�(-G�(+Û

10�(�(A€�(Aþ�(2	�(�G�(Aû'Õ�(��I�G+�(�(/’�(1N�(+Û528�(�(A€�(�ð�ä�(�ú i�(%{2‰�(�(�5�(�ý�(�(�üCé�(-G�(�Ÿ�þ�î�(?H545�(���ý�(+!?o�(-G�(?H 

ا

�(�(�ú;ß�(�ï�ä�(,"�(+!?o2	�(�ú i�(%{2‰1,427�(�(A€�(	§>l�(2	�(�(�Ÿ�þ�î�(?H2,973�(�Å�(�äG+�(�é�ä�îKÀ�ä�(-G�(�Ÿ�þ�î�(?H1,546ا���(�Ÿ�þ�î�(?H108�(�(�(�5�(Gˆ�(EÃ�î�(0F�ì�(+«'Ÿ�ä�(-G�(�(��+Û�ú iا2016ا�(�(�ï�ä�(�X�(+!?o�(2	

�ú;ß974 �(�(�(�ú i�(�ð�ä�(A€�(	§>l�(2	�(�(�Ÿ�þ�î�(?H2,219 �Ÿ�þ�î�(?H�(�(�(�Å�(EÃ�î1,245���(�Ÿ�þ�î�(?H128�(��Gˆ�(EÃ�î�(0F�ì�(+«'Ÿ�ä�(��+Û 

ا

�(�(EI<D�ß�(9‡�ä�þ�(EÂG+�(%L�(:H+ª�(���î�”�(���î-G�(Kª:U!ä�(�ú i�(�ð�ä3,326 �(�(9˜:U�(1N�(�ð�ä�(�ú i�(%{2‰�(�5�(G1�î�(�Ÿ�þ�î�(?H961ا�(?Hا�þ�î�Ÿ�}�(�(�(�(�(�Å2,364���(�(�Ÿ�þ�î�(?H246�(��Gˆ�(G1�î0F�ì�(+«'Ÿ�ä�(-G�(��+Û 

 

�(@¬Aæ�ä�(�î�þ�ä�(A‚Aæ�ä�(�(�ç�/�ä�s
�Ô

�<�ä�(2‰%{�(�(�(2	�(�ú i711�(�(�ú i�(A€�(	§>l�(2	�(�Ÿ�þ�î�(?H2017�(�(.��(���s
�×�Ì�_�(9˜ :U�(�(1N�(�ð�ä�(A€804�(�(Kª�(�(��4�G+�(�Ÿ�þ�î�(?H93�(���(�Ÿ�þ�î�(?H13�(�(�î�þ�ä�(�(��G+�ä�§�(KÎ�î(w�(���ìL\�(+«'Ÿ�ä�(���(+Û

I’�î�(�ï�ä�(�X�(2	�(A �̀ï>í�(�î�þ�ä�(,� 'Ÿ�ä�(�(A€�(�� �à�s�Ì�<�ä�î�ï�(�ô�ä�s
�Ô
�Ò�äKÎ�(�ç�/�ä�s

�Ô
�<�ä�(JÑ�ì�(�ü i�(2	�(�(KÏ�ä+ª�(2	�(�Ô�¼

�Õ
�¡
�Ô
�¹�Î�¶�Í�±�(�(?‘�s

�Ø
�_�(��G€�(�ç�/�ä�s

�Ô
�<�ä�(2	ا 
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�ç�/�(���q
�Õ
�Ä�ä�(2	 �(/Yا

�(�(K?KÎ�()Ï;o�(�(KÖ4á�q�Ì�Ä�(-G�(/Y8,036�(�(K?KÎ�(6•�_�(�î�þ�ä�(�Ÿ�þ�î�(?H5,098�(KÖ4á�q�Ì�Ä�(9˜ :U�(1N�(�ü�ä�(�(�ú i�(%{2‰�î�þ�ä�(G�̂(�î�þ�ä�(�Ÿ�þ�î�(?H 8,807 �(�(�(�î�þ�ä�(�(�Ÿ�þ�î�(?H5,802�(�(�(���}�(�Ÿ�þ�î�(?HA€�(�ú i�(9‡:U�(���î�/�(�(

A€�(K?KÎ�()Ï;o771�(�(�î�(?H���(�Ÿ�þ9�(+Û(اA€�(K?KÎ�(6•�_�(�î�þ�ä704ا�(�Ÿ�þ�î�(?Hا)12��G �̂(�q
�Ö
�Ä.��(�s�Ï�](™�(0(�(/’ �(1N�((+Û 

 

HÊ i�þ�(EI�q
�Ô

�ö�ä 

�(��G �̂(�q
�Ö
�ÄG+�(��F(�(1N�(���s

�×�Î�_�î�(1N�(�� �î�ä�ì�ä�(�: �(1’ �(HÊ i�þ�(EI�q
�Ô

�ö�äPRCL�(0(�(F½�(A€)ñ�ß�(-G�(K��©�(EI�q�(EH�(�Î�Ï �ä�(��IZ4T�(0(�(��3I9@�(KÎ�(�s
�Ô
���ä<G�(�(�ü�ä�(KÎ�(�ï)ñ�ß�(2	�(�û-G�(EH�(�û�]�(0*�(G€�(G�̂î�(.��(%®�(1N�(4��ì.��î-G�(�� �Ç�(G�̂(KÉ�(�q�Î�Ä�ì.��(�ï

�(4��ì.��î-G�(�� �Ç�(�î�þ�ä�(�(G�̂(�q
�Ö
�Ä�/�(1O�(F½�ä�s

�Ô
�Ò�(,š@a�(:S�(2	�(�s

�Ö
�_(»�ä�(�î�þ�ä�(�Û�(�–G+�(�ñ�î�þKÎ�(�(KÎ�("� �(B �̂(I�Aë�ä�(1N�(�(�ï�q�Î�ÄI� �ß�(EH�(�� �Ç�(��G�̂(Fò�ä�î�ì�(�(��G€�(�ç�/�(1M�((˜�(AK�(#ð�(�î�þ�ä�(�ø�äF'�ä2	�(EÂ.��(�ô=œ�(0(�(�(A‚�q

�Ö�Ô
�‘ �ä�(1N�(�Æ�î�ì�(EI@­

�(0(�(���þ)Í�(�—�(�Û�(:S�(2	�(�ÛG�̂(���î�/�()¡ �(-G�(EÂ.��(KÎ�(0(�(�(�� �þ)Í �(�® �(�v�Î�Y�s
�Ô
� �(��G�̂(�] �(�/�(1O�(KÎ�ä�(�ü�ä,N%L�(�ç:U�ä�(��G �̂("b�(�/�(1O�(�î�þ�ì�(0(�(/’ �(1N�(�(HÊ i�þ�(EI�q

�Ô
�ö�ä�(�ç8 �̀ä�(Já(w�(�(G �̂(�ü�(>•�ä 

 

�î�q�Ì�Ä�þ�î-G�(+]�¹�(���îا

G€�(�¡�(�/�(2��(>¹�(�(�ç:U�ä,N�ä�(EIE�,��(���ï;q�(�û�]�(�(:S�(2	�(EÂ.��(�ï)ñ�ß�(2	�(+]�¹�(���î 

 

NICL ااا%L�(�î�q�Ì�Ä�þ�î-G/¤EI<D�ß�(1N�(ا

PRCL�(�(-G�(K?KÎ�()Ï;o�(2	25�(�—�(+ÛNICL �(�(�: �(���þ�(��G �̂(%L�(�î�(�q�Ì�Ä�þ�î-G�(%LPRCL�(�ü�ä�î�þ�ì�(2	 �(�ú i�(�(��G�̂(�–.��('E ���(EI<D�ß�(A€�(<D�(1N�(/¤ �(�Ì�× ?o%LNICL�(�(�(�î�þ�äPRCL�(+Þ�(�(�(EÂ�(�(0*�(�(Gˆ�(1O

A€�(�î�q�Ì�Ä�þ�î-G�($¯ �(�€I”�î�($£�þ(retrocession) ا �s
�×�Ì�_�(�ëLŽ�(2	�(/¤ �(A€�(�×�®

�Ô
��̧p� �Î�¹�N�Í�°�(Gˆ�(A��ä�(%L�(�û�ä,N�ä�(�ð�ä��IZ�/�(K¼�ì�(G‰/1�(�(0*�(��2
G+�(+«'Ÿ�ä�(A€�(��/¨�(EÂ�ß�(A€ 

 

ERP ا-G�áا

PRCL �(�(JS���û�î*•�(���(�
9@�¯�(A€RMSا(�(�q
�Ö
�Ä.��(E=�(�ä�î�”�(0(�(�ç�q�Î�Ä�î�þ'³ �(1N�(/Y �(�Å�(�ÛG�̂(�ì�Å@a�(KÎ�(�ìL\�(1N�(.� �s

�×�Î�¢ �(I’���(�å!6�ì�(:S�(2	�(A‚Aæ�ä�(���(�(�G�(Aû'Õ�(�(+Þ�(A€�(�� �î�q�Ì�Ä�(2	�(
�Ö
�l $]�(:S�(2	�(EÂ.�

�(��I^�/�(1O�(
� �(�v�Î�Y�s
�Ô
� �(0(�(�û�î*•�(���( �
 9@�¯ �(�(���ì�Å@a�(:S2	�(EÂ.��(F½�ä�s

�Ô
�ÒErnst & Young�(�(1N�(/Y�(�(���þ�(0*�(Gˆ�(KÉ�(1O�(�åAà�ä�(-GERP �(�(�(�X�(2	�(Iå�î�q

�Ö
�Ä�(1N�(�˜ �î�”�î�(�(���� .��(�Ö

�Ô
�• �þ=Í�(A€�(�íC³�(2	�(�á

�(��G�̂(�] �(G+�(>¹ �(�� �î�q�Í�Ä�(-G�(�@
�Ô
�¶
�×
�¹�N�Ÿ

�Ô
�¹�: 

ا

/Y�(�(%L�(���­�(�(ERP�(�–�(2	I� �þ�(*¹ $0�(�(�î�þ�ä�(G�̂(�] �(.� �(>¹ �(��I_��̈(�û-G�(�;�ä�(�Å�(�ý�(�(1O�(�åAà�ä�(-G�(�×�®
�Ô
�¸
�×
�¹�N�Ÿ

�Ô
�¹�:�(A€�(�ç<D�(�î*z�(�s�Î�_�ï�(:S�(2	�(�®�(G�̂(G1�î�(.��(�û-G�(:S�(2	�(�ú�(�á)software solution�(1N�(��

�("
�Ö

�× �ä O�î�ì�(1N�(�s
�Ô
�Î�_��"�(�(:S�(2	�(���î�ä�v�Î�Y�s

�Ô
�<(RFP)�(�(�ú i�(�¯ �(1N�(�ð�ä�(0*�(G�̂(,š�à�(�î�þ�ä�(G�̂(�] �(.��(>¹ �(�s

�Ô
�Î�_�þ Ê�ì�(1N2018�(1N�(��4��(I^ �/�(G+�(>¹ �(

�Ö
�Ï �(G1:U�($1�(��!ä�þ�ì�( 

 

�ç:U�ä,N�ä�(�–�ä�î�ä�ì�ä�(:S�(2	�(�û Ú�ä�(2	�('¢ �(�þ�(C‚ا

�(1O�(�î�þ�ì�(0(�(��K©�î�þ/o�(�ì�Å@a�(�(A€�(�ð�ä�(:S�(2	�(EÂ.��(�ô=œ�(-G�(9å�q�Í�Ä�(1N�('¢ �(�þ�(C‚�(Aà�ä�(-G�(.��þ�s�Ì�_�(�Û�(Af �(�� �v
�×
�Î�Y.��(�ÛBÔ�s

�Ô
�Ì�_�($£ �(�þJ� �î�(�Û�(�˜

�Ô
�¹�Î�¶
�×
�¹�Í�¶�¡�9�ä�(�u�¬�Î�¸

�×
�¹�Î�¶
�×
�¹�N�;�Î��̧“�(�ÛAf �(���î-G�(Kª:U!ä�(��G�̂(�] �(�/�(	Ä�(��9æ�q�Í�Ä�(=Ì�/�(1N�(�(�(�(�Û��*Œ�þ�(�(�å

�(�×�®
�Ô
��̧p� �Î�¹�N�Í�°�(2	�(�(�u�¬�Î�¸

�×
�¹�Î�¶
�×
�¹�N�;�Î��̧“�(?��(*Œ�(�Û�(A€�(�ç<D�(���s

�Ô�Ø
�_�/�(�s�Î�_�ï�(��G€�(4� �(���ì.��(*Ó�q

�Ô
�Ä�(�î�þ�ä�(G€�(4� �(9‡�(��G�̂(KÉ�(�q�Î�Ä�ì.��(G� �ß�(F½�(%L�(E²�ä-��(0(�(?‘ �î2��þKÎ�(�€ �(0(�(���î�ä�v�Î�Y�s

�Ô
�<�(1Nا 
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�ç:U�ä,N�ä�(2	 �(/’ �(A€�(
�Ö

�Ç4Tا

I^G+�(K¿�î�(C•�(<D�(0(�(�Ë�(+!?o�(�ú i��4��(I^ �Â�ä�(�ç:U�ä,N�ä�(2	�(�(/’ �(A€�(
�Ö

�Ç4T�(�(�ì:´ �(�Û2018�(�(�ú i�(�� �(-G�((���ä�§�(���þ)r)�(�ç�/�ä�s
�Ô

�<�ä�(IŸ KÎ�ß�(�(A€2017�(�(�(G�̂(�ì(à�ä�(KÎ�(�(Af �(��G�̂(KÉ�(0F�î�(���þ<I�(2	�(�ç�/�ä�s
�Ô

�<�ä�(2	

�(��4��(:T.��(�û-G�(A€�(�ì�þ�`�(1N�(���(�($l�ä�(���þ�(0* 

ا

�(�ú i2017ا�q�Ì�Ä�þ�î-G�(A€�î���(�(?Â�(�çD��(���×�(���×�(2	�(J.KÎ�ß����G€�(Já�í�(�Æ�î 

��A€�(?H�(�Ÿ�þ�î��ا ا

K��©�(+Û 2016 2017 ا

-9% 8,807 8,036 K?KÎ�()Ï;o 

-12% 5,802 5,098 K?KÎ�(6•�_ 

-10% (1,264) (1,142) /¤�(6•�(�_ 

12% (3,336) (3,740) ��)Ë�ì�(6•�_ا

13% (657) (744) �ç�/�ä�s
�Ô

�<�ä�(2	�(A‚Aæ�äا

-197% 545 (528) �(�G�(Aû'Õ(underwriting)+!?o�(-G 

246% 961 3,326 EI<D�ß�(%L�(���î-G�(Kª:U!ä 

32% 142 188 EI<D�ß�(JÑ�ì�(�î�þ�ä�(Kª�ä.� 

11% (54) (60) �ç�/�ä�s
�Ô

�<�ä�(@¬Aæ�ä�(�î�þ�ä�(�û(Ç 

10395% (1) 103 ��KÏ*•�������î�•�(���(-G�(9A�ì:X 

-67% (166) (56) �(��I:�ä�ì�ä�(JÑ�ì)charges ( 

108% 1,427 2,973 �(�ú;ß�(�ï�ä�(,"�(+!?o 

66% (453) (754) �ú;ß 

128% 974 2,219 �(�ú;ß�(�ï�ä�(�(�X�(+!?o 

 

�ú i2017�(A€�(�(�(/Y8,0361اO�(�G�(Aû'Õ�(-G�(�(�Ÿ�þ�î�(?H�(�5 31�(#8�ì2016�(�(�(9˜ :U�(1N�(�ð�ä�(A€�(�ú i�(�s�Î�_�v
�Ô
�Í�Y�(�û�j �ä�(0(8,807ا�(�Ÿ�þ�î�(?H�(�}�(�ÜGˆ�(Já�í�(�é�î�ì�(�Œ�(1N�(�®     ا

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ا ��A€�(?H�(�Ÿ�þ�î��ا

K��©�(+Û 2016 2017 �~�ä�(���î�(K?KÎ 

-2% 1,594 1,561 ���ßا

56% 31 48 ���î�ä�ì�s�Ì�_�(�î�q�Ì�Ä�(��$Í�s
�Ö
�_�(���žا

-39% 112 69 B“G‰���((-G�(,V�(�s�Ï�]�()�(�ï�Ç�(���žا

2% 148 151 JÑ�ì�(�þ�(�ç�q
�Õ
�Ä�ì��ا

9% 1,163 1,273 ���ï�q�Ì�Ä�(�äG+ا

ا 1,564 1,443 8%
�Ô

�ß �s�Î
�Ô
�Î�Ì
�Ô

�É �äا

4% 4,491 4,666 ���î�~�ä�(.µا

-22% 4,316 3,369 K?KÎ�(�–�äF'=Íا

-9% 8,807 8,036 K?KÎ�(.µا
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�(%L�(���î-G�(Kª:U!ä �ü<D�ßا

�(�(�ú i2017�(EI<D�ß�(%L�(���î-G�(Kª:U!ä�(A€3,326 �(�(�(�ú i�(A€�(	§>l�(2	�(�ð�ä�(�(�(�}�(�Ÿ�þ�î�(?H2016�(�(A€961�(�(�(��Gˆ�(Já�í�(�é�î�ì�(�Œ�(1N�(�®�(G1�î�(�Ÿ�þ�î�(?H 

 

(A€�(?H�(�Ÿ�þ�î)ا ا

2016 2017 �ç�•ا

3 2,798 +«'Ÿ�ä�(A€�(Kª:U!äا

417 425 )EI<D�ß%L�(+!?o�(�(�V�n� �ª
�Ô
��̧lReturn(ا

419 392 ���(EI<D�ß�(KÎ�(�ç�u�(;��ÜReturnا)ا

97 83 )EI<D�ß�(KÎ�(�(�� �ï�q�Í�Ä���(�(�(�î�þ�ä�(�(�ç�u �(:Ä �(*Œ�(JÑ�ìReturn(ا

35 (355) ���s�Î�_�v
�Ô
�Í�Y�(�î,N�(E��(!ä�(�ï�ä�(�(�(�(A€�(�(�(I^ :U!ä(revaluation)�(�(�(���üCé����+«'Ÿ�ä�(%Lا

(10) (17) �ç�/�ä�s
�Ô

�<�ä�(:º �(%L�(Kª:U!äا

961 3,326 .µا

 

+!?o�(�ú;ß �(�ï�ä�(�Xا

2	�(�ú i�(%{2‰ 974�(�(+!?o�(2	�(�(�Ÿ�þ�î�(?H �ú i�(���(�ì�Å@a�(�(A€�(	§>l�(2	�(�ú;ß�(�ï�ä�(�X�(�(�(9˜:U�(1N�(�ð�ä2,219�(�Å�(Gˆ�(�(�Ÿ�þ�î�(?H128�(��Gˆ�(EÃ�î�(0F�ì�(+«'Ÿ�ä�(-G�(+Û 

 

)�ç�q�4�z
�Ö
�¸
�Ô
�g�kappropriations( 

ا

(A€�(?H�(�Ÿ�þ�î)  

2,973 �(�ú;ß�(�ï�ä�(,"�(+!?oا

(754) �(�ú;ß���(CÏا

2,219 �(�ú;ß�(�ï�ä�(�(�X�(+!?oا

ا ا

2,345 KÉ�(�q�Î�ÄG‰�s
�×�Ì�_�(4R�ß�(�Å�(+!?o�(
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NOTICE OF THE 18TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 18th Annual General Meeting  of  Pakistan  Reinsurance Company  Limited  (PRCL) will be 
held on Monday, 30th April, 2018 at 10:00am, at  Jasmine Hall, Ground Floor, Beach Luxury Hotel,  Karachi to transact the 
following business :-

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

�í�X	To con�rm the Minutes of the last Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 29th April, 2017.

�î�X	To consider and adopt the audited Annual Accounts of the Company for the year ended 31st December, 2017 and the 
reports of Directors and Auditors thereon.

�ï�X	To consider and approve the payment of �nal dividend @ 35%. That is Rs.3.50 per ordinary share of Rupees Ten 
(10.00) for the year ended 31st December 2017.

�ð�X	To appoint M/s. BDO Ebrahim & Co. (Chartered Accountants) as Auditors of the Company  for the year ending 31st 
December 2018 and �x their remuneration.

�ñ�X	To consider any other business with the permission of Chair.

     								           By Order of the Board

                                                                  (Shams-ud-Din)

                                                                                                                                        	Company Secretary

Place:   Karachi.

Dated:  9th April, 2018

NOTES:

�í�X	The share transfer books of the company shall remain closed for eight days i.e. from 23rd April 2018 to 30th April 2018 
(both days inclusive), no transfer will be accepted for registration during the period. 

�î�X	A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another member as his/her proxy to attend the 
meeting and vote for him/her. A proxy must be deposited at the Company not less than 48 hours before the meeting 
and in case of default, form of proxy will not be treated as valid.

�ï�X	CDC Accountholders are advised to follow the following guidelines of the Securities and Exchange Commission of 
Pakistan.

A.	 For attending the meeting:

�]�X	In the case of individuals, the accountholder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities are 
in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall authenticate his 
identity by showing his original Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the time 
of attending the meeting.
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�]�]�X	In the case of corporate entity, the Board of Director’s Resolution / Power of attorney with specimen 
signature of the nominee,  shall be produced (Unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of the meeting.

B.	 For appointing proxies:

�]�X	In the case of individuals, the account holder or sub accountholder and/or the person whose securities are 
in a group and their registration details are uploaded as per the CDC Regulation, shall submit the proxy form 
as per the above requirement.

�]�]�X	The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be 
mentioned on the form.

�]�]�]�X	Attested copies of the CNIC or the Passport of the bene�cial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with 
the proxy form.

�]�À�X	The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original Passport at the time of the meeting.

�À�X	 In the case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ Resolution/Power of attorney with specimen signature 
shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company.

�ð�X	Shareholders are requested to communicate to Company’s Share Registrar, M/s. CDC Pakistan Limited, CDC House, 
99-B, Block-B, SMCHS, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi,  in  case of any change in their address and provide the Zakat 
Declaration / Tax exemption certi�cate (if any), immediately along with contact details.

5.	 PAYMENT OF CASH DIVIDEND ELECTRONICALLY-COMPULSORY

	 Members of the Company are hereby requested to comply with the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 
2017 and provide the particulars of their bank accounts through E-Dividend Form (annexed at the end of annual 
report as well as available at Company’s website i.e., www.pakre.org.pk) as dividends payable in cash shall only be paid 
through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled shareholders instead of through 
issuance of Dividend Warrants. In the absence of bank account details or in case of incomplete details, the Company 
will be constrained to withhold the payment of cash dividend of those shareholders who have not provided the same.

6.	 AVAILABILITY OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ON COMPANY’S WEBSITE

	 The audited �nancial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2017 have been placed at the 
Company’s website www.pakre.org.pk

Pakistan Reinsurance Company Limited
PRC Towers, 32-A, Lalazar Drive
M. T. Khan Road, P.O. Box: 4777
Karachi-74000, Pakistan.
Tele: (92-21) 99202908-15
Telefax: (92-21) 99202921-22
Email:      prcl@pakre.org.pk
Website: www.pakre.org.pk
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Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance 2012, Public 
Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013, and Code of Corporate 
Governance for Insurers, 2016.

Name of company 			   PAKISTAN REINSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Name of the Line Ministry		  COMMERCE (GoP)

For the year ended		          	 DECEMBER 31, 2017

�]�X	This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance (CCG) 2012 as 

contained in Clause No.5.19.23 of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited Regulations and Public Sector Companies 

(Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013 duly amended on April 21, 2017, vide SRO 275 (II)/2017 and the Code 

of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016 (CCG Insurer) (hereinafter called “the Codes”) issued for the 

purpose of establishing a framework of good governance. In case where there is inconsistency between 

Code of Corporate Governance and Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013, the later 

shall prevail.

�]�]�X	The company has complied with the provisions of the Rules in the following manner:

Sr. 
No.

Provision of the Rules Rule 
No.

Y     /    N

Tick the relevant box

1. The independent directors meet the criteria of independence,   as de�ned 
under the Rules.

2(d)        Y

2.   The Board has the requisite percentage of independent directors.

At present the board includes:

Category Name Date of Appoint-
ment

Independent 
Directors

Mr. Mumtaz Ali Rajper 16-03-2017

Mr. Abdul Sami Kehar 16-03-2017

Mr. Shahab Khawaja 16-03-2017

Mrs.Ghazala Ahmed 16-03-2017

Executive 
Directors

Mr. Shakeel Ahmed 
Mangnejo, CEO, PRCL

03-10-2017

Non-Execu-
tive Directors

Dr. Nazim Latif 02-08-2017

Mr. Musleh-ud-Din 16-03-2017

Mr. Shoaib Mir 04-12-2017

3(2) Y
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3 The directors have con�rmed that none of them is serving as a director on 
more than �ve public sector companies and   listed companies simultaneously, 
except their subsidiaries.

3(5) Y

4 The appointing authorities have applied the required �t and proper criteria in 
making nominations of the persons for election as board members under the 
provisions of the Ordinance.

3(7) Y

5 The Chairman of the Board is working separately from the Chief Executive of 
the Company.

4(1) Y

6 The Chairman has been elected from amongst the independent directors.4(4) Y

7 As per Rule 5 (2), amended on April 21, 2017, Ministry appointed a Civil 
Servant as CEO, who joined the Company on September 18, 2017, and was 
approved by SECP on 10th January, 2018 under the Insurance Companies’ 
(Sound & Prudent Management) Rules, 2012.

5(2) Y

8 (a) The company has prepared a “Code of Conduct” and has ensured that 
appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it throughout the company 
along with its supporting policies and procedures, including posting the same 
on the company’s website: www.pakre.org.pk

(b) The Board has set in place adequate systems and controls for the 
identi�cation and redressal of grievances arising from unethical practices.

5(4) Y

9 The Board has established a system of sound internal control, to ensure 
compliance with the fundamental principles of probity and propriety; 
objectivity, integrity and honesty; and relationship with the stakeholders, in 
the manner prescribed in the Rules.

5(5) Y

10 The Board has developed and enforced an appropriate con�ict of interest 
policy to lay down circumstances or considerations when a person may be 
deemed to have actual or potential con�ict of interests, and the procedure 
for disclosing such interest.

5(5)(b) 
(ii)

Y

11 The Board has developed and implemented a policy on anticorruption to 
minimize actual or perceived corruption in the company.

5(5)(b)

(vi)

Y

12 �~���•	The Board has ensured equality of opportunity by establishing open and 
fair procedures for making appointments and for determining terms and 
conditions of service.

�~���•	The Board’s Human Resource committee has been formed to investigate 
deviation from the company’s code of conduct; 

5(5)(c) 
(ii) 

Y

13 The Board has ensured compliance with the law as well as the company’s 
internal rules and procedures relating to public procurement, tender 
regulations, and purchasing and technical standards, when dealing with 
suppliers of goods and services, in accordance with the PPRA Rules.

5 (5) (c) 
(iii)

Y

14 The board has developed a vision or mission statement, corporate strategy 
and signi�cant policies of the company. A complete record of particulars 
of signi�cant policies along with the dates on which they were approved or 
amended has been maintained.

5(6) Y
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15 The board has quanti�ed the outlay of any action in respect of any service 
delivered or goods sold by the Company as a public service obligation, and 
has submitted its request for appropriate compensation to the Government 
for consideration.

5(8) Not applicable

16 �~���•	The board has met at least four times during the year.

(b) Written notices of the board meetings, along with agenda and working 
papers, were circulated at least seven days before the meetings.

(c)  The minutes of the meetings were appropriately recorded and circulated.

6(1)

6(2)

6(3)

Y

Y

Y

17 The performance evaluation of members of the Board including the chairman 
and the chief executive shall be undertaken annually by the Government 
for which the Government shall enter into performance contract with each 
member of the Board at the time of his appointment.

8 (1)  N

18 The board has monitored and assessed the performance of senior 
management on annual basis. 

8 (2) Y

19 The board has reviewed and approved the related party transactions placed 
before it after recommendations of the audit committee. A party wise record 
of transactions entered into with the related parties during the year has been 
maintained.

       9 Y

20 The board has approved the pro�t and loss account for, and balance sheet 
as at the end of, the �rst, second and third quarter of the year as well as the 
�nancial year end, and has placed the annual �nancial statements on the 
company’s website.

10 Y

21 All the board members underwent an orientation course arranged by the 
company to apprise them of the material developments and information as 
speci�ed in the Rules.

11 Y

22 (a) The board has formed the requisite committees, as speci�ed in the 
Rules.

(b) All the committees were provided with written terms of reference de�ning 
their duties, authority and composition.

(c) The minutes of the meetings of the committees were circulated to all the 
board members.

(d) The committees were chaired by the following non-executive directors:

12(1)

12(2)

12(2)

12(2)

Y

Y

Y

    N
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Sr.
No. Committees Number of 

Members Name of Chair

1 Audit Committee Three Mr. Abdul Sami Kehar

2 Investment Committee Five Mr. Musleh-ud-Din

3
* Ethics, Human Resource 
& Remuneration  
Committee

Four Mr. Abdul Sami Kehar

4 Underwriting /  
Reinsurance Committee Three Mr. Shahab Khawaja

5 Claim Settlement  
Committee Three Mr. Mumtaz Ali Rajper

6 Risk Management and 
Compliance Committee Three Chairman, SLIC

7 Procurement Committee Three Mrs. Ghazala Ahmed

*The Board has assigned the responsibility and functions of Nomination 
Committee to the Ethics, HR & Remuneration Committee as per 
guidelines provided in COCG for Insurers, 2016.

23 The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Of�cer, Company 
Secretary and Chief Internal Auditor, with their remuneration and terms 
and conditions of employment, and as per the prescribed quali�cations. 
The Board has given the charge of CFO to GM (Finance), who has all the 
quali�cations required for a CFO.

13/14 Y

24 The Company has adopted International Financial Reporting Standards 
noti�ed by the Commission under Clause (i) of Subsection (3) of Section 234 
of the Ordinance. 

16 Y

25 The Directors’ Report for the year has been prepared in compliance with 
the requirements of the Ordinance and the Rules and Code of Corporate 
Governance for Insurers, 2016 and fully describes the salient matters required 
to be disclosed.

17 Y

26 The Directors, CEO and Executives do not hold any interest in the shares of 
Company, other than that disclosed in the pattern of shareholding.

18 Y

27 A formal and transparent procedure for �xing the remuneration packages of 
individual directors has been set in place. The annual report of the company 
contains criteria and details of remuneration of each director.

19 Y

28 The �nancial statements of Company were duly endorsed by the Chief 
Executive and Chief Financial Of�cer, before approval of the Board. 

20 Y
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29 The board has formed an audit committee, with de�ned and written terms of 
reference, and having the following members:

S.No. Name of Member Category Professional 
Background

1 Mr. Abdul Sami Kehar Independent MBA

2
Mr. Mumtaz Ali Rajper Independent

MA 
(Economics)

3
Dr. Nazim Latif Non-executive

Joint Secretary 
(MoC)

4
Mr. Muhammad Khurshid

Secretary of the 
Committee

Cost 
Accountant

The chief executive and chairman of the Board are not members of the audit 
committee.

21 Y

30 The board has set up an effective internal audit function which has an 
audit charter, duly approved by the audit committee, and which worked in 
accordance with the applicable standards.

22 Y

31 The Company appointed its external auditors in line with the requirements 
envisaged under the Rules.

23 Y

32 The external auditors of the company have con�rmed that the �rm and all 
its partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants 
(IFAC) guidelines on Code of Ethics as applicable in Pakistan.

23(4) Y

33 The external auditors have not been appointed to provide services other than 
the audit services and the auditors have con�rmed that they have observed 
applicable guidelines issued by IFAC in this regard.

23(5) Y

34 The Company has complied with all the corporate and �nancial reporting 
requirements of the Rules.

Y

 Certain additional disclosures as required under Code of Corporate Governance (CCG) 2012:

�ï�ñ	All the resident directors of the Company are registered as taxpayers and none of them has defaulted in 
payment of any loan to a banking company, a Developing Financial Institution (DFI) or a Non-Banking 
Financial Institution (NBFI) or being a member of stock exchange, has been declared as a defaulter by that 
stock exchange. No director or his/her spouse is engaged in the business of stock brokerage.

�ï�ò	A casual vacancy occurring on the board on 31st December, 2016 was not �lled as the Government has not yet 
nominated a director.  

�ï�ó	All the powers of the board are exercised and decisions on material transactions including appointment and 
determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of the CEO, other executives and 
non-executive directors, have been taken by the board/shareholders.

�ï�ô	All the directors of board have acquired necessary training, except Dr. Nazim Latif, who has been registered 
with ICAP for upcoming training session, due in January 2018.

�ï�õ	The meetings of the Audit Committee were held at least once every quarter, prior to approval of interim and 
�nal results of the Company and as required by the Code. The terms of reference of the committee have been 
formed and advised to the Committee for compliance.
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�ð�ì	The “closed period”, prior to the announcement of interim/�nal results and business decisions, which may 
materially affect the market price of Company’s securities, was determined and intimated to directors, 
of�cers and stock exchange in time.

�ð�í	Material/price sensitive information has been disseminated among all market participants at once through 
stock exchange.

�ð�î	The Company has complied with the requirements relating to maintenance of register of persons having 
access to inside information by designated senior management of�cer in a timely manner and maintained 
proper record including basis for inclusion or exclusion of names of persons from the said list.

Further disclosures as required under Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers 2016:

�ð�ï	 The Board has formed the following Management Committees:

Underwriting / Reinsurance Committee

Name of the Member Category

Mr. Shahab Khawaja Independent

Mr. Abdul Sami Kehar Independent

Mr. Shakeel Ahmed Mangnejo, CEO Executive

Mr. Muhammad Junaid Moti,
ED (Underwriting / Reinsurance)

Secretary 

Claim Settlement Committee

Name of the Member Category

Mr. Mumtaz Ali Rajper Independent

Dr. Nazim Latif Ex-of�cio (Ministry)

Mr. Shakeel Ahmed Mangnejo, CEO Executive

Mr. Muhammad Junaid Moti, 
ED (Underwriting / Reinsurance)

Secretary 

Risk Management & Compliance Committee

Name of the Member Category

SLIC Director Nominee

Mr. Shakeel Ahmed Mangnejo, CEO Executive

Mr. Shams-ud-Din (Company Secretary) Secretary 

Procurement Committee

Name of the Member Category

Mr. Ghazala Ahmed Independent

Mr. Musleh-ud-Din Non-executive

Mr. Shakeel Ahmed Mangnejo, CEO Executive

Mr. Shahzad F. Lodhi, ED (Admn.) Secretary
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2. The Board has formed the following Board Committees:

Ethics, Human Resource & Remuneration Committee

Name of the Member Category

Mr. Abdul Sami Kehar Independent

Dr. Nazim Latif Ex-of�cio (Ministry)

Mrs. Ghazala Ahmed Independent

Mr. Shakeel Ahmed Mangnejo, CEO Executive

Mr. Shahzad F. Lodhi, ED (HR) Secretary 

Investment Committee

Name of the Member CategoryW

Mr. Musleh-ud-Din Non-executive

Mr. Shahab Khawaja Independent

Mr. Abdul Sami Kehar Independent

Mr. Mumtaz Ali Rajper Independent

Mr. Shakeel Ahmed Mangnejo, CEO Executive

Mr. Jamil Ahmed, CFO Secretary

�ð�ð	The meetings of the committees, except risk management committee & underwriting committee, were held 
at least once every quarter as required by the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016. 

�ð�ñ	The Board has set up an effective internal audit function through competent personnel who are considered 
suitably quali�ed and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the 
insurer and they are involved in the internal audit function on a regular basis.

�ð�ò	The Chief Financial Of�cer and the Head of Internal Audit possess such quali�cations and experience as is 
required under the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016. However, the position of Compliance 
Of�cer is vacant and has not been �lled up as yet. The charge of Compliance Of�cer has been given to 
Company Secretary by Board till the appointment of Compliance Of�cer by Ministry. Moreover, the persons 
heading the underwriting, claim, reinsurance, risk management and grievance functions / departments possess 
quali�cation and experience of direct relevance to their respective functions, as required under Section 12 of 
the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 (Ordinance No.XXXIX of 2000). A written compliance programme could not 
be formed and kept in place during the period. However, the same has now been compiled, examined and 
recommended by the Risk Management & Compliance Committee and will be approved by the upcoming 
Board Meeting.
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Key Of�cers in Management

Name of the Person Designation

1. Mr. Shakeel Ahmed Mangnejo Chief Executive Of�cer

2. Mr. Shahzad Farooq Khan Lodhi Executive Director (HR/Admn.)

3. Mr. Shams-ud-Din Company Secretary/Compliance Of�cer**

4. Mr. Muhammad Khurshid Chief Internal Auditor

5. Mr. Jamil Ahmed Chief Financial Of�cer*

6. Mr. Muhammad Junaid Moti, (ED) Head of Underwriting/ Reinsurance

7. Mr. Farmanullah Zarkoon (General Manager) Head of Claims

8. Mr. Zohaib Hasan (General Manager) Head of Information Technology Deptt.

9. Mrs. Ishrat Nazir (Asstt. Manager) Head of Grievance Deptt.

*The charge of CFO has been given to GM (Finance) by Board, effective November, 2016.

** The charge of Compliance Of�cer has been given to Company Secretary by Board till the 
appointment of Compliance Of�cer by Ministry. 

�ð�ó	The statutory auditors of the insurer have been appointed from the penal of auditors approved by the 
Commission in terms of Section 48 of Insurance Ordinance, 2000 (Ordinance No. XXXIX of 2000). The 
statutory auditors have con�rmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the Quality Control 
Review programme of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners 
of the �rm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the insurer and that the �rm and all its 
partners are in compliance with the International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines of code of 
ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

�ð�ô	The Board ensures that the investment policy of the insurer is drawn up in accordance with the provisions of 
the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016 and within the timeline enshrined in the Code.

�ð�õ	The risk management system of the insurer is not in place as per the requirements of the Code of Corporate 
Governance for Insurers, 2016.

�ñ�ì	A risk management function / department has not been setup, which carries out its tasks as covered under 
the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016. 

�ñ�í	The board ensures that as part of the risk management system the insurer is being rated by M/s. JCR-VIS 
(credit rating agency). The agency is working on it and will reportedly submit report after �nalization of 
accounts for the year under review. The rating assigned for the year 2016 by the PACRA is “AA” with “Stable” 
outlook.

�ñ�î	The Board has set up a grievance department/function, which fully complies with the requirements of the 
Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016.

�ñ�ï	We con�rm that all other material principles contained in the Code of Corporate Governance have been 
complied with except for non-compliance mentioned in schedule II to the Statement of compliance with 
Code of Corporate Governance.

		

		  CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER				    CHAIRMAN
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Explanation for Non-Compliance with Code of 
Corporate Governance.
We con�rm that all other material requirements envisaged in the Rules have been complied with [except for the following, toward 
which reasonable progress is being made by the Company to seek compliance by the end of next accounting year]:”

Sr. 
No.

Rule/Sub-rule No. Reason  for non-compliance Future Course of Action

Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

1 8(1) The Public Sector Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Rules, 2013, amended on April 21, 
2017, emphasized that the government will 
enter into performance contract with each 
director. Since no mechanism has so far been 
noti�ed by government, the Company could 
not step forward in this direction.

The Management is determined to take up the 
matter with Regulator and the Parent Ministry, to 
provide a clarity enabling the Company to move 
forward.

2 12(2) Only the Terms of Reference of Underwriting 
and Ethics, Human Resource and Remuneration 
Committees could not be determined and 
approved during the period under review.

The Terms of References of Underwriting and Ethics, 
Human Resource and Remuneration Committee 
have been determined and recommended by 
Committee Members and will be approved by 
Board by the end of April, 2018.

Code of Corporate Governance, 2012 

3 5.19.3 Out of four Government nominated directors, 
three have been noti�ed and appointed but one 
has not yet been noti�ed and appointed.

The company kept reminding the ministry to 
nominate the director and will �rmly take up the 
matter to get this vacancy of board �lled up as soon 
as possible.

Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016

4 xxxi Written Compliance Program could not be 
completed during the period.

Now the written compliance program is complete 
and is expected to be approved by Board by end of 
April, 2018.

5 xliii The Committee Meetings of Risk Management 
and Compliance and Underwriting Committee 
could not be held as requirement due to delay 
in appointment of a Risk Management Of�cer 
and some staf�ng in Underwriting Department.

The Board has approved the appointment of 
required Risk Management Of�cer and other 
recruitment for this department which will shortly 
materialize, after the concurrence from Ministry of 
Commerce.

6 lxix The Risk Management Of�cer once appointed 
will take care of Risk Management System, 
in pursuance the requirement of Code of 
Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016.

The Management has taken up the matter on 
priority with Ministry of Commerce to get the 
placement of Risk Management Of�cer.

7 lxx The appointment of a Risk Management 
Of�cer is to be �nalized by the Ministry after 
the approval of Board of Directors in order to 
establish the Risk Management Department.

The Board has approved the vacancy position and 
the company has currently taken up the matter 
with Ministry of Commerce for its resolution on 
priority.

		  CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER				    CHAIRMAN
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REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 
WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE, PUBLIC SECTOR COMPANIES 
(CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) RULES, 2013 AND CODE OF CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE FOR INSURERS, 2016.
We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the Code of Corporate Governance, Public 
Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013 and Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016 (referred to as ‘the Codes’) 
prepared by the Board of Directors of Pakistan Reinsurance Company Limited for the year ended December 31, 2017 to comply with the 
requirements of Listing Regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange where the Company is listed, provisions of Public Sector Companies 
(Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013 and Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016.

The responsibility for compliance with the Codes is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to review, to the 
extent where such compliance can be objectively veri�ed, whether the Statement of Compliance re�ects the status of the Company’s 
compliance with the provisions of the Codes and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the 
Codes. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company 
to comply with the Codes.

As part of our audit of the �nancial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal control systems 
suf�cient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ 
statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the 
Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Codes requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before 
the Board of Directors for their review and approval its related party transactions distinguishing between transactions carried out on terms 
equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions and transactions which are not executed at arm’s length price and recording 
proper justi�cation for using such alternate pricing mechanism. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to 
the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. 
We have not carried out any procedures to determine whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price 
or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not 
appropriately re�ect the Company’s compliance, in all material aspects, with the best practices contained in the Codes as applicable to the 
Company for the year ended December 31, 2017.

Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirements of the Codes and re�ected in the paragraphs 17, 
22(b), 36, 44, 46, 49 and 50 where these are stated in the Statement of Compliance.

S.No. REFERENCE DESCRIPTION

Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

1 8(1) The performance evaluation of member of the Board was not carried out by the Government.

2 12(2) Term of Reference of Ethics Human Resource and Remuneration Committee and Underwriting 
Committee were not prepared by the Board.

Code of Corporate Governance, 2012

3 5.19.3 Casual vacancy on the board was not �lled by the Government within the time speci�ed in the 
rule.

Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016

4 xxxi Written compliance program was not formed during the period.

5 xliii The committee meetings of Risk Management and Compliance and underwriting Committee 
were not held as required.

6 lxix The risk management system is not in place.

7 lxx The risk management department has not been established.
 
KARACHI					     CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Dated: 5th April, 2018				    Engagement partner: Zul�kar Ali Causer
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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Introduction 

We have audited the accompanying: 

�x�� balance sheet;

�x�� pro�t and loss account;

�x�� statement of comprehensive income; 

�x�� statement of changes in equity; 

�x�� statement of cash �ows; 

�x�� statement of premiums; 

�x�� statement of claims; 

�x�� statement of expenses; and 

�x�� statement of investment income 

PAKISTAN REINSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED (“the Company”) as at December 31, 2017 together with the notes forming part 
thereof, for the year then ended.

It is the responsibility of the Company’s Board of Directors / management to establish and maintain a system of internal control, 
and prepare and present the �nancial statements in conformity with the approved International Accounting Standards as applicable 
in Pakistan and the requirements of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 (XXXIX of 2000) and the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 
(XLVII of 1984). Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing as applicable in Pakistan. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the �nancial statements are free of 
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
�nancial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies used and signi�cant estimates made by management, 
as well as, evaluating the overall �nancial statements presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our 
opinion and after due veri�cation we report that: 

i)	 The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) issued guidelines for estimation of Incurred but Not Reported 
(IBNR) claim reserves for non-life insurer companies through Circular No. 9 of 2016 dated March 09, 2016. The guidelines 
prescribe the standard method for estimation of IBNR claim reserves so as to bring industry wide-uniformity in respect of such 
estimation and to ensure adequacy of IBNR claims reserve. All non-life insurance companies are required to comply with these 
guidelines with effect from July 01, 2016. 

However, during the year on May 30, 2017 SECP has issued separate guidelines for the Company for estimation of Incurred 
but Not Reported (IBNR) claim reserves through letter No. ID/PRDD/IBNR/2017/9695 which prescribe that, for the purposes 
of ascertaining IBNR claim reserves by the Company, guidance is hereby extended, that the Company shall collect the data of 
IBNR claim reserves from the cedants (non-life insurers) and in accordance with its share in the reinsurance program (both on 
treaty and facultative basis) of the cedant(s) it shall record its IBNR claim reserves. 

On the basis of above SECP speci�ed guidelines, the Company wrote letter to each ceding Company to share data of IBNR 
Claims Reserves in accordance with its share in the reinsurance program both for facultative and treaty business. However, 
only six ceding companies reported their IBNR Claim Reserves on the basis of which the Company recorded IBNR amounting 
to Rs. 105.387 million and the remaining ceding companies did not share data of IBNR claim reserves as per SECP speci�ed 
guidelines.
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ii)	 As on December 31, 2017, the balance under the head “Amount due from other insurers / reinsurers” include an amount of 
Rs. 1,214.458 million in respect of which balance con�rmation has not been received. Management has recorded a provision 
amounting to Rs. 312.982 million in respect of these balances. In the absence of an independent con�rmation we are unable 
to con�rm the existence and valuation related to this amount. The Company is in process of reconciling all balances with 
ceding companies as detailed in note 22. Due to pending con�rmation/reconciliation relating to the above balances, resultant 
adjustment and consequential impact therefore, if any, on the �nancial statements remain unascertained.

Except for the adjustments in respect of matters stated above, in our opinion:

a)	 proper books of accounts have been kept by the Company as required by the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the repealed 
Companies Ordinance, 1984;

b)	 the �nancial statements together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Insurance Ordinance, 
2000 and the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, and accurately re�ect the books and records of the Company and are 
further in accordance with accounting policies consistently applied; 

c)	 the �nancial statements together with the notes thereon present fairly, in all material respects, the state of the Company’s 
affairs as at December 31, 2017 and of the pro�t, its comprehensive income, its cash �ows and changes in equity for the year 
then ended in accordance with approved International Accounting Standards as applicable in Pakistan, and give the information 
required to be disclosed by the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984; 

d)	 Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980(XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the Company and 
deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under Section 7 of that Ordinance.

Without further modifying our opinion, we draw attention to 

i)	 Note 17.2 to the �nancial statements which provide details regarding orders passed by Sindh Revenue Board demanding the 
amount of sales tax liability on re-insurance services provided / rendered by the Company. The Company has not recorded 
provision against the orders and has disclosed the amounts as contingent liabilities. SRB recovered an amount of Rs. 2,573.889 
million from the Company which has been recorded as receivable as management is con�dent on the basis of advise received 
from its legal advisors that the decision will be in the favour of the Company. In the event the matter is decided against the 
Company, the charge against pro�t would amount to Rs. 3,299.453 million.

ii)	 Note 13.1 and 22.2 to the �nancial statements which inter-alia provides details regarding Reconciliation Committee formed 
by the Audit Committee of the Board in prior year to reconcile and recover balances from insurance companies. The Company 
continues to follow up and reconcile these balances and record adjustments wherever considered necessary. 

KARACHI 							     

DATED:	5th April, 2018					                CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

     Engagement partner: Zul�kar Ali Causer
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Balance Sheet
As on December 31, 2017

PAKISTAN REINSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET 
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017

  December 31,
2017

  December 31,
2016

Note Rupees Rupees

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves

Authorized share capital
2,500,000,000 (2016: 2,500,000,000) 
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each  25,000,000,000  25,000,000,000  

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
300,000,000 (2016: 300,000,000)
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/ - each 6 3,000,000,000    3,000,000,000    

Retained earnings 2,744,904,759    2,345,041,499    
Reserve for exceptional losses 7 281,000,000       281,000,000       
General reserve 1,777,419,085    1,777,419,085    

4,803,323,844    4,403,460,584    
Shareholders' equity 7,803,323,844    7,403,460,584    

LIABILITIES
Underwriting provisions

Provision for outstanding claims (including IBNR) 8 4,713,650,200    4,590,671,732    
Provision for unearned premium 9 4,241,898,034    4,420,092,072    
Commission income unearned 10 262,499,096       24,177,478         

Total underwriting provisions 9,218,047,330    9,034,941,282    

Deferred liability - employee benefits 11 2,193,559,697    1,296,307,190    

Long term deposits 12 17,153,494         16,299,040         

Creditors and accruals
Amount due to other insurers and reinsurers 13 1,957,775,833    1,964,346,423    
Premium and claim reserves retained   
from retrocessionaires 14 18,343,273         19,063,743         
Other creditors and accruals 15 33,227,734         26,026,662         
Accrued expenses 14,160,297         19,909,377         
Retention money payable 6,368,183           6,368,183           

2,029,875,320    2,035,714,388    
Other liabilities

Dividend payable 129,369,029       119,430,677       
Surplus profit payable 16 1,212,602           1,212,602           

130,581,631       120,643,279       
Total liabilities 13,589,217,473  12,503,905,179  
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 17
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 21,392,541,316  19,907,365,763  

Page - 1



Pakistan Reinsurance Company Limited Annual Report 201747

Balance Sheet
As on December 31, 2017PAKISTAN REINSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET 
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017

  December 31, 
2017

  December 31, 
2016

Note Rupees Rupees

ASSETS
Cash and bank deposits

Cash and other equivalents 77,216                44,264                
Current and other accounts 2,517,016,557    2,239,958,104    
Deposits maturing within 12 months 30,000,000         440,000,000       

18 2,547,093,773    2,680,002,368    
Loans to employees 19 181,767,723       72,949,886         
Investments 20 6,093,495,837    6,624,839,230    
Investment properties 21 29,806,753         31,425,711         
Current assets - others

Amount due from other insurers and reinsurers 22 4,293,631,457    4,533,411,877    
Premium and claim reserves retained by cedants 23 11,119,508         11,685,818         
Accrued investment income 24 164,005,201       190,210,728       
Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims 25 2,159,694,037    2,732,782,143    
Deferred commission expense 26 722,203,300       598,286,396       
Prepayments 27 2,000,326,134    1,768,270,301    
Taxation - net 467,706,126       114,406,208       
Sundry receivables 28 2,684,719,627    509,927,721       
Stock of stationery 401,120              240,905              

12,503,806,510  10,459,222,097  
Fixed assets

Tangible
Land and building 13,862,906         14,580,764         
Furniture, fixture, books and office equipment 9,786,151           10,150,776         
Electrical installations, air conditioning plant and lifts 6,442,633           8,053,291           
Motor vehicles 6,479,029           6,141,640           

29.5 36,570,720         38,926,471         
Assets relating to Bangladesh 30 -                      -                      
TOTAL ASSETS 21,392,541,316  19,907,365,763  

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Page - 2

CHAIRMAN   CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER    DIRECTOR    DIRECTOR      CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER  
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PAKISTAN REINSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

2017 2016
Rupees Rupees

Profit for the year 2,219,264,260  974,263,198     

Other comprehensive (loss) / income
Items that may not be reclassified to profit and loss account subsequently

(919,401,000)    240,672,000     

1,299,863,260  1,214,935,198  

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations - net

Total comprehensive income for the year

CHAIRMAN   CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER  DIRECTOR DIRECTOR   CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER  

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended December 31, 2017
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PAKISTAN REINSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

2017 2016
Rupees Rupees

Operating cash flows
Underwriting activities:-

Premium received 8,268,801,122 7,941,282,377
Reinsurance premium paid (3,244,571,017)      (2,485,140,139)      
Claims paid (4,919,821,649)      (3,417,460,379)      
Reinsurance and other recoveries received 1,875,914,050 253,147,062
Commission paid (1,362,863,861)      (1,332,651,825)      
Commission received 335,331,660 62,237,271
Premium and claim reserves retained from 
retrocessionaires/withheld by ceding companies - net (154,160) 156,412,190
Expenses paid (566,679,406)         (482,177,258)         

Net cash inflows from underwriting activities 385,956,740 695,649,299

Other operating activities
Income tax paid (1,107,576,365)      (552,809,868)         
General management expenses paid (108,422,421)         (46,035,123)           
Payment under defined benefit obligation (199,637,493)         (124,511,484)         
Loans disbursed (108,817,837) (1,870,144)
Other payments - net (2,040,095,765) (415,837,050)

Net cash used in other operating activities (3,564,549,881)      (1,141,063,669)      
Total cash used in all operating activities (3,178,593,141)      (445,414,370)         
Investment activities

Addition to fixed assets-net (4,407,225)             (3,870,955)             
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 1,120,763              -                         
Acquisition of investments (6,180,334,625)      (3,400,625,165)      
Rental income received - net of expenses 34,915,989            51,361,667            
Dividend income received 423,370,233          415,999,985          
Interest income on bank deposits 82,017,771            98,463,411            
Investment income received - net of expenses 423,552,542          304,832,364          
Proceeds on sale / maturity of investments 9,155,510,747       3,142,087,022       

Total cash inflow from investment activities 3,935,746,195       608,248,329          
Financing activities

Dividend paid (890,061,648)         (767,796,665)         
Total cash outflow from financing activities (890,061,648)         (767,796,665)         
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (132,908,595)         (604,962,706)         
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 2,680,002,368 3,284,965,074
Cash and cash equivalents at end of  the year 2,547,093,773 2,680,002,368

Page - 1

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, 2017
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PAKISTAN REINSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

2017 2016
Rupees Rupees

Operating cash flows
Underwriting activities:-

Premium received 8,268,801,122 7,941,282,377
Reinsurance premium paid (3,244,571,017)      (2,485,140,139)      
Claims paid (4,919,821,649)      (3,417,460,379)      
Reinsurance and other recoveries received 1,875,914,050 253,147,062
Commission paid (1,362,863,861)      (1,332,651,825)      
Commission received 335,331,660 62,237,271
Premium and claim reserves retained from 
retrocessionaires/withheld by ceding companies - net (154,160) 156,412,190
Expenses paid (566,679,406)         (482,177,258)         

Net cash inflows from underwriting activities 385,956,740 695,649,299

Other operating activities
Income tax paid (1,107,576,365)      (552,809,868)         
General management expenses paid (108,422,421)         (46,035,123)           
Payment under defined benefit obligation (199,637,493)         (124,511,484)         
Loans disbursed (108,817,837) (1,870,144)
Other payments - net (2,040,095,765) (415,837,050)

Net cash used in other operating activities (3,564,549,881)      (1,141,063,669)      
Total cash used in all operating activities (3,178,593,141)      (445,414,370)         
Investment activities

Addition to fixed assets-net (4,407,225)             (3,870,955)             
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 1,120,763              -                         
Acquisition of investments (6,180,334,625)      (3,400,625,165)      
Rental income received - net of expenses 34,915,989            51,361,667            
Dividend income received 423,370,233          415,999,985          
Interest income on bank deposits 82,017,771            98,463,411            
Investment income received - net of expenses 423,552,542          304,832,364          
Proceeds on sale / maturity of investments 9,155,510,747       3,142,087,022       

Total cash inflow from investment activities 3,935,746,195       608,248,329          
Financing activities

Dividend paid (890,061,648)         (767,796,665)         
Total cash outflow from financing activities (890,061,648)         (767,796,665)         
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (132,908,595)         (604,962,706)         
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 2,680,002,368 3,284,965,074
Cash and cash equivalents at end of  the year 2,547,093,773 2,680,002,368

Page - 1

PAKISTAN REINSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

2017 2016
Rupees Rupees

Reconciliation to profit and loss account
Operating cash flows (3,178,593,141) (445,414,370)
Depreciation on fixed assets (5,642,213)             (5,963,255)             
Depreciation on investment properties (1,618,958)             (1,724,245)             
Exchange gain / (loss) 102,949,620 (694,372)
Other charges (55,542,754)           (166,705,510)         
Rental income 56,267,795 55,779,280
(Charge) / reduction for deferred liability-employee benefits (177,489,000)         190,272,484          
Investment income 3,325,868,531       961,156,893          
Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims (573,088,106)         1,326,237,748       
Provision for outstanding claims (122,978,468)         (1,497,484,250)      
Provision for unearned premium 178,194,039          (308,950,942)         
Prepaid reinsurance 232,057,744 255,773,386
Increase in operating assets other than cash 2,422,518,469       979,038,022          
Decrease in operating liability other than cash (336,939,213) (467,182,939)

1,865,964,345 874,137,931
Other adjustments:

Income tax paid 1,107,576,365       552,809,868          
1,107,576,365       552,809,868          

Profit before taxation 2,973,540,710       1,426,947,799       
Provision for taxation (754,276,450)         (452,684,601)         
Profit after taxation 2,219,264,260       974,263,198          

Definition of cash

Cash for the purpose of the statement of cash flow consist of:
Cash and cash equivalents:
   Cash and other equivalents 77,216 44,264
   Current and other accounts  2,517,016,557 2,239,958,104
   Deposit maturing within 12 months 30,000,000            440,000,000

2,547,093,773       2,680,002,368       

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Page - 2

Cashcomprisesof cashin hand,policy stamps,postagestamps,revenuestamp,bankbalancesandotherdepositwhich are
readily convertible to cash in hand and which are used in the cash management function on day-to-day basis.

CHAIRMAN               CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER  DIRECTOR           DIRECTOR       
 
 
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER  
 

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, 2017
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54

PAKISTAN REINSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Share capital
Issued

------------------------------------------------------------------ Rupees -------------------------------------------------------

Balance as at January 01, 2016 3,000,000,000   281,000,000      1,880,106,301   1,777,419,085   3,657,525,386   6,938,525,386   

Total comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2016
Profit for the year -                     -                     974,263,198      -                     974,263,198      974,263,198      
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations - net -                     -                     240,672,000      -                     240,672,000      240,672,000      

-                     -                     1,214,935,198   -                     1,214,935,198   1,214,935,198   
Transactions with owners
Final cash dividend paid for the year 2015 at Rs. 2.50 per share -                     -                     (750,000,000)     -                     (750,000,000)     (750,000,000)     

Balance as at December 31, 2016 3,000,000,000   281,000,000      2,345,041,499   1,777,419,085   4,122,460,584   7,403,460,584   

Total comprehensive income for year ended December 31, 2017
Profit for the year -                     -                         2,219,264,260 2,219,264,260   2,219,264,260   
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations - net -                     -                          (919,401,000) -                     (919,401,000)     (919,401,000)     

-                     -                         1,299,863,260 -                         1,299,863,260     1,299,863,260 
Transactions with owners
Final cash dividend paid for the year 2016 at Rs. 3.00 per share -                     -                     (900,000,000)     -                     (900,000,000)     (900,000,000)     

Balance as at December  31,  2017 3,000,000,000   281,000,000      2,744,904,759   1,777,419,085   4,522,323,844   7,803,323,844   

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

       

Reserves
Revenue reservesReserve for 

exceptional 
losses

Total subscribed and 
paid-up

Retained 
earnings

General reserve Total reserves

CHAIRMAN                               CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER                                       DIRECTOR                                        DIRECTOR                                          CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER  

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended December 31, 2017
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PAKISTAN REINSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

2017 2016
Note Rupees Rupees

Income from trading investments
Dividend income 9,422,478              10,855,802             

9,422,478              10,855,802             
Income from non-trading investments
Held-to-maturity

Return on Government Securities 302,699,008          362,412,221           
Return on other fixed income securities and deposits 82,781,979            97,065,736             
Income on Treasury Bills 80,509,101            45,950,716             
Amortization of discount on Pakistan Investment Bonds 8,575,301              10,321,070             

474,565,389          515,749,743           
Available-for-sale

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments 2,798,575,853       3,090,237               
Dividend income on available-for-sale investments 415,228,241          406,679,675           

3,213,804,094       409,769,912           
Gain on revaluation of investments

Held-for-trading 20.6 (30,062,545)           27,502,994             

Impairment / Reversal
Available-for-sale (324,680,579)         7,667,902               

Less: Investment related expenses (17,180,306)           (10,389,460)            
Net investment income 3,325,868,531       961,156,893           

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHAIRMAN                         CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER                     DIRECTOR                  DIRECTOR           
 
 
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER  
 

Statement of Investment Income
For the year ended December 31, 2017
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PAKISTAN REINSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER  
 

Notes to the Financial Statements | for the year ended December 31, 2017 

 
 

1 STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 
 

1.1 Pakistan Reinsurance Company Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan 
as a public limited company on March 30, 2000 under the Companies’ Act, 2017.  
The Company is engaged in providing reinsurance and retrocession services to the 
inland insurance industry. The shares of the Company are quoted on  Pakistan Stock 
Exchange. The registered office of the Company is situated at PRC Towers, 32-A, 
Lalazar Drive, Maulvi Tamizuddin Khan Road, Karachi. 
 

With effect from February 15, 2001, the Company took over all the assets and 
liabilities of former Pakistan Insurance Corporation (PIC) in the consequence of SRO 
No.98(1)/2000 dated February 14, 2001 issued by the Ministry of Commerce, in terms 
of Pakistan Insurance Corporation (Re-organization) Ordinance, 2000 to provide for 
conversion of Pakistan Insurance Corporation, established in 1952 under PIC Act 
1952, into Pakistan Reinsurance Company Limited.  
 

1.2 The Company is well committed to shortly commence the Re-Takaful window 
operation. Company’s Board of Directors in its 118th Meeting held on December 02, 
2016 decided that the potential loss of business due to absence of Re-Takaful window, 
would be unrecoverable if it is further delayed. Many regulatory requirements in the 
context have been completed by now as under. 
 

1.3 Amendments in the Articles and Memorandum of Company have been consented by 
the shareholders and duly approved by the SECP. Likewise, appointment of Shariah 
Advisor has been made and the dedicated bank account in a Islamic bank has been 
established with beyond cede-money, which has duly been verified by external 
auditors. Thus, it seems practical to predict that by the closure of 1st Quarter of 2018 
the Company will have commenced the Window Re-Takaful Operations. 

 

1.4 The Company is also fast pursuing to have a Enterprise Resource Plan (ERP), for 
which a consultancy was appointed during the year under review, which has almost 
completed its task and finished the “Request for Proposal” (RFP) document for the 
ultimate procurement of software solution, which is expected to be installed, well 
before the close of 2nd Quarter of year 2018. 
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2

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance 

Thesefinancial statementshavebeenpreparedon the formatsof financial statementsissuedby
the Securitiesand ExchangeCommissionof Pakistan(SECP) through the Securitiesand
ExchangeCommission(Insurance)Rules,2002[SEC(Insurance)Rules,2002]vide SRO938(1)
dated December 12, 2002.

The SECP has allowed the insurancecompaniesto defer the application of International
AccountingStandard– 39 (IAS-39) “Financial Instruments:RecognitionandMeasurement”in
respectof valuationof “available for saleinvestments”.Accordingly, the requirementsof IAS-
39, to the extentallowedby SECPasaforesaid,havenot beenconsideredin the preparationof
these financial statements. 

During the year, Securitiesand ExchangeCommissionof Pakistan(SECP) issuedInsurance
Rules,2017 and InsuranceAccountingRegulations,2017, which were applicablewith effect
from February09, 2017.However,subsequentto the balancesheetdate,the Companyapplied
for the exemptiondated March 13, 2018 from the applicability of the said regulationsfor
preparationof thefinancialstatementsfor theyearendedDecember31,2017which wasallowed
by SECPvide letter ID/OSM/PRCL/2018/14031,datedMarch 15, 2018. Hence,the financial
statementsfor the year ended December31, 2017 are prepared in accordancewith the
requirements of SEC (Insurance) Rules, 2002.

Thesefinancial statementshave been preparedin accordancewith the requirementsof the
repealedCompaniesOrdinance,1984,the InsuranceOrdinance,2000,andapprovedaccounting
standardsas applicableto insurancecompaniesin Pakistan.Approved accountingstandards
compriseof suchInternationalFinancialReportingStandards(IFRS) issuedby IASB asnotified
undertheprovisionsof therepealedCompaniesOrdinance,1984.Wherevertherequirementsof
theInsuranceOrdinance,2000,the repealedCompaniesOrdinance,1984or directivesissuedby
the Securitiesand ExchangeCommissionof Pakistandiffer with the requirementsof these
standards,therequirementsof InsuranceOrdinance,2000,repealedCompaniesOrdinance,1984
or the requirements of the said directives shall take precedence.

During the year, CompaniesAct, 2017 (“the Act”) has beenpromulgatedon May 30, 2017
introducingcertainnewrequirementsregardingpreparationandfiling of financial statementsby
companies.However,SecuritiesandExchangeCommissionof Pakistanvide CircularNo. 23 of
2017datedOctober04, 2017hasdirectedcompanieswhosefinancial yearcloseson or before
December31, 2017 to preparefinancial statementsin accordancewith the provisionsof the
repealedCompaniesOrdinance,1984. The financial statementsof the Companyhas been
preparedin accordancewith the provisionsof the repealedCompaniesOrdinance,1984asper
the directive of the said circular.

Page - 2

�7�K�H�V�H�� �¿�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O�� �V�W�D�W�H�P�H�Q�W�V�� �K�D�Y�H�� �E�H�H�Q�� �S�U�H�S�D�U�H�G�� �R�Q�� �W�K�H�� �I�R�U�P�D�W�V�� �� �R�I�� �¿�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O�� �L�V�V�X�H�G�� �E�\�� 
the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through the Securities and Exchange 
Commission (Insurance) Rules, 2002 [SECP (Insurance) Rules, 2002] vide SRO 938(1) dated 
December 12, 2002.
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2.2

2.3

3

3.1

January 01, 2017

January 01, 2017

January 01, 2017

3.2

January 01, 2018

The Companyhasadoptedthe amendmentsto the following approvedaccountingstandardsas
applicablein Pakistanwhich becameeffectiveduring the yearfrom the datesmentionedbelow
against the respective standard:

Amendments that are effective in current year but not relevant to the Company

The following amendmentswith respectto the approvedaccountingstandardsasapplicablein
Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard:

Page - 3

IFRS 2

IFRS 12

IAS 12

Other than the amendmentsto standards mentioned above, there are certain annual
improvements made to IFRS that became effective during the year:

Annual Improvements to IFRSs (2014 – 2016) Cycle:

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Share-basedPayment - Amendments to clarify the
classification and measurementof share-basedpayment
transactions

Functional and presentation currency

Thesefinancial statementshave beenpresentedin Pak Rupees,which is the functional and
presentation currency of the Company.

Effective date       
(annual periods 
beginning on or 

after)
IAS 7 Statementof CashFlows- Amendmentsresultingfrom the

disclosure initiative

IncomeTaxes- Amendmentsregardingthe recognitionof
deferred tax assets for unrealised losses

Amendments not yet effective

NEW STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED
APPROVED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

These financial statementshave been preparedon the historical cost basis except certain
investmentswhichhavebeenmeasuredat fair value.No adjustmentfor theeffectof inflation has
been accounted for in the financial statements.

Basis of measurement
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January 01, 2018

January 01, 2018

January 01, 2019

January 01, 2019

IFRS 9

IFRS 9

IFRS 9

IFRS 7

IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts - Amendments regarding the
interaction of IFRS 4 and IFRS 9

Financial Instruments: Disclosures- Additional hedge
accounting disclosures(and consequentialamendments)
resulting from the introduction of the hedgeaccounting
chapter in IFRS 9

Financial Instruments- Reissueto incorporatea hedge
accountingchapterandpermit the early applicationof the
requirementsfor presentingin othercomprehensiveincome
the 'own credit' gains or losses on financial liabilities
designatedunder the fair value option without early
applying the other requirements of IFRS 9

IAS 39

IAS 28

IAS 28

IFRS 10

Page - 4

Deferred 
indefinitely

Deferred 
indefinitely

Applies when 
IFRS 9 is applied

Consolidated Financial Statements - Amendments
regarding the sale or contribution of assetsbetweenan
investor and its associate or joint venture

Financial Instruments- Finalised version, incorporating
requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment, general hedge accounting and derecognition

FinancialInstruments- Amendmentsregardingprepayment
featureswith negativecompensationand modificationsof
financial liabilities

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures -
Amendmentsregardingthe sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures -
Amendmentsregarding long-term interests in associates
and joint ventures

Amendmentsto permit an entity to elect to continue to
apply the hedgeaccountingrequirementsin IAS 39 for a
fair valuehedgeof theinterestrateexposureof a portionof
a portfolio of financial assetsor financial liabilities when
IFRS 9 is applied,and to extendthe fair value option to
certain contracts that meet the 'own use' scope exception

Applies when 
IFRS 9 is applied

No stated effective 
date

Effective date       
(annual periods 
beginning on or 

after)
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January 01, 2018

January 01, 2018

January 01, 2019

January 01, 2019

IFRS 9

IFRS 9

IFRS 9

IFRS 7

IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts - Amendments regarding the
interaction of IFRS 4 and IFRS 9
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Deferred 
indefinitely
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Amendmentsto permit an entity to elect to continue to
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fair valuehedgeof theinterestrateexposureof a portionof
a portfolio of financial assetsor financial liabilities when
IFRS 9 is applied,and to extendthe fair value option to
certain contracts that meet the 'own use' scope exception

Applies when 
IFRS 9 is applied

No stated effective 
date

Effective date       
(annual periods 
beginning on or 

after)

January 01, 2018

January 01, 2018

January 01, 2019
January 01, 2019
January 01, 2018

3.3

IFRS 9 July 01, 2018
IFRS 15 July 01, 2018

IFRS 1
IFRS 14
IFRS 16
IFRS 17

Thefollowing newstandardshavebeenissuedby the InternationalAccountingStandardsBoard
(IASB), which have been adoptedlocally by the Securitiesand ExchangeCommissionof
Pakistan effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard:

Standards or interpretations not yet effective

IAS 12

First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
Regulatory Deferral Accounts
Leases
Insurance Contracts

The effects of IFRS 15 - Revenuesfrom Contractswith Customers,IFRS 9 - Financial
Instrumentsand IFRS 17 InsuranceContractsare still being assessed,as thesenew standards
may have a significant effect on the Company’s future financial statements.

Financial Instruments
Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The following new standardsand interpretationshave been issued by the International
AccountingStandardsBoard(IASB), which havenot beenadoptedlocally by theSecuritiesand
Exchange Commission of Pakistan:

Page - 5

IFRS 11
IFRS 3

IAS 28

IAS 40

The Annual Improvementsto IFRSsthat areeffectivefor annualperiodsbeginningon or after
January 01, 2018 are as follows:

Annual Improvements to IFRSs (2014 – 2016) Cycle:

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Annual Improvements to IFRSs (2015 – 2017) Cycle:

Business Combinations
Joint Arrangements
Income Taxes

Effective date       
(annual periods 
beginning on or 

after)

InvestmentProperty- Amendmentsto clarify transfersor
property to, or from, investment property
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

4.1

4.2

The Companyexpectsthat the adoptionof the other amendmentsand interpretationsof the
standardswill not haveanymaterialimpactandthereforewill not affecttheCompany'sfinancial
statements in the period of initial application.

In making the estimatesfor incometaxescurrentlypayableby the Company,the management
looks,at thecurrentincometax lawsandthedecisionof appellateauthoritieson certainissuesin
the past.In makingthe provisionfor deferredtaxes,estimatesof the Company’sfuture taxable
profits are taken into account.

Page - 6

The preparationof financial statementsin conformity with the requirementsof approved
accounting standardsas applicable in Pakistan requires managementto make judgments,
estimatesandassumptionsthataffect theapplicationof policiesandreportedamountsof assets,
liabilities, income and expenses.The judgments,estimatesand assumptionsare basedon
historicalexperience,currenttrendsandvariousotherfactorsthat arebelievedto be reasonable
under the circumstances,the result of which form the basis of making the estimatesabout
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

In classifyinginvestmentsasheldto maturity,theCompanyhasdeterminedfinancialassetswith
fixed or determinablepaymentsand fixed maturity. In making this judgment, the Company
evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investment to maturity.

Significantareaswhereassumptionsandestimateswereexercisedin applicationof accounting
policies relate to: 

Income tax

In classifyinginvestmentsasheld for trading,theCompanyhasdeterminedsecurities,which are
acquired with the intention to trade, taking advantageof short-term market / interest rate
movements.  

Actual resultsmay differ from theseestimates.The estimatesand underlyingassumptionsare
reviewedon periodic basis.Revisionsto accountingestimatesare recognizedin the period in
which the revision has been made.

Classification of investments

Investmentswhich are intendedto be held for an undefinedperiodof time but may be sold in
responseto the needfor liquidity, changesin interestrates,equity pricesor exchangeratesare
classifiedasavailablefor sale.Subsequentto the initial recognitionat cost,quotedinvestments
arestatedat the lower of costor marketvalue(in accordancewith therequirementsof SRO938
issued by the SECP in December 12, 2002).
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movements.  

Actual resultsmay differ from theseestimates.The estimatesand underlyingassumptionsare
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which the revision has been made.

Classification of investments

Investmentswhich are intendedto be held for an undefinedperiodof time but may be sold in
responseto the needfor liquidity, changesin interestrates,equity pricesor exchangeratesare
classifiedasavailablefor sale.Subsequentto the initial recognitionat cost,quotedinvestments
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4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7 Reinsurance

Impairment in available for sale investments

Outstanding claims including incurred but not reported (IBNR)

The Companyestimatesthe liability for claims, which include amountsrelating to unpaid,
reportedclaims,claimsincurredbut not reported(IBNR) andexpectedclaimssettlementcosts.
Provisionfor liability in respectof unpaidreportedclaimsis madeon thebasisof individual case
estimatesandprovisionfor thoseclaimswhich areincurredandnot reportedasat balancesheet
date are made on the basis of specified guidelines issuedby the Securitiesand Exchange
Commissionof Pakistanthrough letter no. ID/PRDD/IBNR/2017/9695datedMay 30, 2017,
which statesthatCompanyshouldrecordthoseclaimswhich areincurredbut not reportedon the
basisof collectionof dataof IBNR claimsreservesfrom thecedingcompanies(non-life insurers)
in accordance with the share of Company on the account of facultative and treaty business. 

The Companyis exposedto disputeswith, and possibility of defaultsby, its reinsurers.The
Companymonitorson a quarterlybasisthe evolution of disputeswith and the strengthof its
reinsurers.

In making estimatesof the depreciationmethod,the managementusesmethodwhich reflects
patternin which economicbenefitsareexpectedto be consumedby the Company.The method
appliedis reviewedat eachfinancial yearendandif thereis a changein theexpectedpatternof
consumptionof the future economicbenefitsembodiedin the assets,the methodwould be
changedto reflect the changein pattern.Suchchangeis accountedfor aschangein accounting
estimatein accordancewith International Accounting Standard8 "Changesin Accounting
Policies, Changes in accounting Estimates and Errors".

TheCompanydeterminesthatavailablefor saleequity investmentsareimpairedwhentherehas
beena significant or prolongeddeclinein the fair value below its cost. The determinationof
what is significant or prolonged,requiresjudgment.In making this judgment,the Company
evaluatesamongotherfactors,the normalvolatility in shareprice. In addition,impairmentmay
be appropriatewhen there is evidenceof deteriorationin the financial healthof the investee,
industry and sector performance,changesin technologyand operationaland financing cash
flows.

Premium deficiency reserve

TheCompanycarriesout ananalysisof loss/ combinedratiosfor theexpiredperiod,suchratio
beingcalculatedafter taking into accountthe relevantIBNR provision for the determinationof
premium deficiency reserve for each class of business.

Page - 7

Fixed assets and depreciation
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4.8 Unearned premium reserve

5

5.1

5.1.1 Premiums

Provision for unearned premium

The portion of premiumwritten relating to the unexpiredperiod of coverageis recognizedas
unearnedpremiumby theCompany.Theunearnedportionof premiumincomeis recognizedasa
liability. The liability is calculatedby applying1/24methodasspecifiedin the SEC(Insurance)
Rules, 2002 vide SRO 938(1) dated December 12, 2002.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Insurance contracts

The Company’sestimateof the unearned premium reserveis basedon current insurance
industry practices in Pakistan and the directives issued by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan.

Page - 8

Premium income includes administrativesurchargethat representsdocumentationand other
chargesrecoveredby the Companyfrom policy holdersin respectof policies issued,at the rate
of 5% of the premium written restricted to a maximum amounting to Rs. 2,000 per policy.

Administration surcharge

The Companyneither issuesinvestmentcontractsnor does it issue insurancecontractswith
Discretionary Participation Features (DPF).

Oncea contracthasbeenclassifiedasan insurancecontract,it remainsaninsurancecontractfor
the remainderof its lifetime, evenif the insurancerisk reducessignificantlyduring this period,
unless all rights and liabilities are extinguished or expired.

InsurancecontractsarethosecontractswheretheCompany(theinsurer)hasacceptedsignificant
insurance risk from another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensatethe
policyholders if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adverselyaffects the
policyholders.

Premiumwritten undera policy is recognizedas incomeover the periodof insurancefrom the
dateof issuanceof the policy to which it relatesto its expiry. Wherethe patternof incidenceof
risk variesover the periodof the policy, premiumis recognizedasrevenuein accordancewith
the pattern of the incidence of risk. 

In additionto directinsurance,at timestheCompanyalsoparticipatesin risksunder coinsurance
from othercompaniesandalso acceptsrisks throughreinsuranceinward by way of facultative
acceptanceson caseto casebasisprovidedsuchrisksarewithin theunderwritingpolicies of the
Company. 
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4.8 Unearned premium reserve

5
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policyholders if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adverselyaffects the
policyholders.
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risk variesover the periodof the policy, premiumis recognizedasrevenuein accordancewith
the pattern of the incidence of risk. 

In additionto directinsurance,at timestheCompanyalsoparticipatesin risksunder coinsurance
from othercompaniesandalso acceptsrisks throughreinsuranceinward by way of facultative
acceptanceson caseto casebasisprovidedsuchrisksarewithin theunderwritingpolicies of the
Company. 

5.1.2

5.1.3

TheCompanyentersinto reinsurancecontractsin thenormalcourseof businessin orderto limit
the potential for lossesarising from certain exposures.Outward reinsurancepremiumsare
accountedfor in the sameperiodasthe relatedpremiumsfor the acceptedreinsurancebusiness
being reinsured.

Reinsuranceliabilities representbalancesdue to reinsurancecompanies.Amount payableare
estimatedin a mannerconsistentwith the related reinsurancecontract. Reinsuranceassets
representbalancedue from reinsurancecompanies.Amount recoverablefrom reinsurersare
estimatedin a mannerconsistentwith the provision for outstandingclaims or settledclaims
associatedwith the reinsurancepolicies and are in accordancewith the related insurance
contract.

Reinsuranceassetsarenot offset againstrelatedinsuranceliabilities. Incomefor expensesfrom
reinsurancecontractsare not offset againstexpensesor incomefrom relatedinsuranceassets.
Reinsuranceassetsor liabilities arederecognizedwhenthecontractualrightsareextinguishedor
expired.

Claims expense
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Premiums due but unpaid

Receivablesunder insurancecontractsare recognizedwhen due, at the fair value of the
considerationreceivablelessprovision for doubtful debts,if any. If thereis objectiveevidence
that the receivableis impaired, the Companyreducesthe carrying amountof the receivable
accordingly and recognizes that impairment loss in the profit and loss account.

The Companyrecognizesliability in respectof all claimsincurredup to the balancesheetdate,
which is measuredat the undiscountedvalue of the expectedfuture payments.The claims are
consideredto be incurredat the time of the incidentgiving rise to theclaim exceptasotherwise
expresslyindicatedin aninsurancecontract.Theliability for claimsincludesamountsrelatingto
unpaidreportedclaims,claimsincurredbut not reported(IBNR) andexpectedclaimssettlement
costs.

Reinsurance ceded

TheCompanyassessesits reinsuranceassetsfor impairmenton balancesheetdate.If thereis an
objective evidencethat the reinsuranceassetis impaired.The Companyreducesthe carrying
amountof thereinsuranceassetto its recoverableamountandrecognizesthat impairmentlossin
the profit and loss account.

Generalinsuranceclaimsincludeall claimsoccurringduring the year,whetherreportedor not,
relatedinternalandexternalclaimshandlingcoststhataredirectly relatedto the processingand
settlementof claims, a reduction for the value of salvageand other recoveries,and any
adjustments to claims outstanding from previous years.
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5.1.4

5.1.5

a)

b)

5.1.6

Provisionfor liability in respectof unpaidreportedclaimsis madeon thebasisof individual case
estimatesandprovisionfor thoseclaimswhich areincurredandnot reportedasat balancesheet
date are made on the basis of specified guidelines issuedby the Securitiesand Exchange
Commissionof Pakistanthrough letter no. ID/PRDD/IBNR/2017/9695datedMay 30, 2017,
which statesthatCompanyshouldrecordthoseclaimswhich areincurredbut not reportedon the
basisof collectionof dataof IBNR claimsreservesfrom thecedingcompanies(non-life insurers)
in accordancewith the shareof Companyon the accountof facultative and treaty business.
Provisionfor IBNR is basedon themanagement'sbestestimatewhich takesinto accountthepast
trends, expectedfuture patterns of reporting of claims and the claims actually reported
subsequent to the balance sheet date.

Premium deficiency reserve

Commissionexpensesare deferredand recognizedas an assetin correlationwith unearned
premium that will be recognizedin the subsequentreporting period to comply with the
requirements of SEC (Insurance) Rules, 2002 vide SRO 938(1) dated December 12, 2002.

Deferred commission expense

Commission income

Commissionincome is being taken to profit and loss accounton a time proportion basis in
accordancewith the pattern of recognition of reinsurancepremium to comply with the
requirements of SEC (Insurance) Rules, 2002 vide SRO 938(1) dated December 12, 2002.

Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims

Claimsrecoveriesreceivablefrom thereinsurerarerecognizedasanassetat thesametime asthe
claimswhich give rise to the right of recoveryarerecognizedasa liability andaremeasuredat
the amount expected to be received.

The Companyis required to maintain a provision in respectof premium deficiency for the
individual classof businesswherethe unearnedpremiumliability is not adequateto meetthe
expectedfuture liability, after reinsurance,from claims and other supplementaryexpenses
expectedto be incurredafter the balancesheetdatein respectof the unexpiredpolicies in that
classof businessat the balancesheetdate.Themovementin the premiumdeficiencyreserveis
recognisedasanexpensein theprofit andlossaccount.Judgmentis usedin assessingtheextent
to which past trends may not apply in future or the effects of one-off claims.

Commissionandotheracquisitioncostsincurredin obtainingandrecordingon direct,facultative
and reinsurance cessions has been deferred and recognized as assets and liability as under:

Commission
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Commission expenses are deferred and recognized as an asset in correlation with unearned  
premium that will be recognized in the subsequent reporting period to comply with the  
requirements of SECP (Insurance) Rules, 2002 vide SRO 938(1) dated December 12, 2002.
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5.1.4

5.1.5

a)

b)

5.1.6

Provisionfor liability in respectof unpaidreportedclaimsis madeon thebasisof individual case
estimatesandprovisionfor thoseclaimswhich areincurredandnot reportedasat balancesheet
date are made on the basis of specified guidelines issuedby the Securitiesand Exchange
Commissionof Pakistanthrough letter no. ID/PRDD/IBNR/2017/9695datedMay 30, 2017,
which statesthatCompanyshouldrecordthoseclaimswhich areincurredbut not reportedon the
basisof collectionof dataof IBNR claimsreservesfrom thecedingcompanies(non-life insurers)
in accordancewith the shareof Companyon the accountof facultative and treaty business.
Provisionfor IBNR is basedon themanagement'sbestestimatewhich takesinto accountthepast
trends, expectedfuture patterns of reporting of claims and the claims actually reported
subsequent to the balance sheet date.

Premium deficiency reserve

Commissionexpensesare deferredand recognizedas an assetin correlationwith unearned
premium that will be recognizedin the subsequentreporting period to comply with the
requirements of SEC (Insurance) Rules, 2002 vide SRO 938(1) dated December 12, 2002.

Deferred commission expense

Commission income

Commissionincome is being taken to profit and loss accounton a time proportion basis in
accordancewith the pattern of recognition of reinsurancepremium to comply with the
requirements of SEC (Insurance) Rules, 2002 vide SRO 938(1) dated December 12, 2002.

Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims

Claimsrecoveriesreceivablefrom thereinsurerarerecognizedasanassetat thesametime asthe
claimswhich give rise to the right of recoveryarerecognizedasa liability andaremeasuredat
the amount expected to be received.

The Companyis required to maintain a provision in respectof premium deficiency for the
individual classof businesswherethe unearnedpremiumliability is not adequateto meetthe
expectedfuture liability, after reinsurance,from claims and other supplementaryexpenses
expectedto be incurredafter the balancesheetdatein respectof the unexpiredpolicies in that
classof businessat the balancesheetdate.Themovementin the premiumdeficiencyreserveis
recognisedasanexpensein theprofit andlossaccount.Judgmentis usedin assessingtheextent
to which past trends may not apply in future or the effects of one-off claims.

Commissionandotheracquisitioncostsincurredin obtainingandrecordingon direct,facultative
and reinsurance cessions has been deferred and recognized as assets and liability as under:

Commission
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5.2

5.2.1
                       

- Investment at fair value through profit or loss - Held-for-trading

- Held-to-maturity

- Available-for-sale 

5.2.2

(a) Investment at fair value through profit or loss - held for trading. 

(b) Held-to-maturity

(c) Available-for-sale 

Investments

Recognition

Measurement

The managementconsidersthat the unearnedpremiumreservefor all classesof businessasat
the yearendis adequateto meetthe expectedfuture liability after reinsurance,from claimsand
otherexpenses,expectedto beincurredafterthebalancesheetdatein respectof policiesin those
classesof businessin force at the balancesheetdate.Hence,no reservefor the samehasbeen
made in these financial statements.

All investmentsare initially recognizedat cost,being the fair valueof the considerationgiven
and include transactioncosts, except for investmentsthrough profit or loss in which case
transactioncostsarechargedto the profit andlossaccount.Thesearerecognizedandclassified
as follows:

Available-for-salefinancialassetsarethosenon-derivativefinancialassetsthataredesignatedas
available-for-saleor are not classified as (a) loans and receivables(b) held-to-maturity
investments or (c) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
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Investments which are designated at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition.

After initial recognition,the aboveinvestmentsare remeasuredat fair value determinedwith
referenceto the ratesprevailing in the stock exchange,whereapplicable.Gainsor losseson
remeasurement of these investments are recognized in profit and loss account.

Investmentswith fixed maturityandfixed incomeinvestments,wheremanagementhasboth the
intent and the ability to hold to maturity, are classified as held-to-maturity. After initial
recognition, these are carried at amortized cost.
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5.2.3 Quoted

5.2.4 Unquoted

(d) Loans and receivables

5.2.5

5.3

Loansand receivablesare non-derivativefinancial assetswith fixed or determinablepayments
that arenot quotedin an activemarket.After initial recognition,thesearecarriedat amortized
cost.
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International Accounting Standard39 dealing with the recognition and measurementsof
financial instruments requires that these instruments should be measuredat fair value.
Accordingly, had theseinvestmentsbeenmeasuredat fair value, their carrying value as on
December31, 2017 would have beenhigher by Rs. 2,774.494million (2016: higher by Rs.
6,351.680million), andthe net equitywould havebeenhigherby Rs.2,774.494million (2016:
higher by 6,351.680 million).

Unquoted investments are recorded at cost less impairment loss (if any).

Subsequentto initial recognition,quotedinvestmentsarestatedat the lower of cost or market
value (marketvalueon an individual investmentbasisbeing takenas lower if the fall is other
than temporary)in accordancewith the requirementsof the SEC (Insurance)Rules,2002vide
SRO938(1)datedDecember12, 2002.Moreover,section16(a)of the SecuritiesandExchange
(Insurance)Rules,2002for availablefor sale- fixed incomeinvestmentsredeemableat a given
dateand wherethe cost is different from the redemptionvalue, requiresuchdifferenceto be
amortiseduniformly betweenthedateof acquisitionandthedateof maturity.TheCompanyuses
stock exchange quotations at the balance sheet date to determine the market value. 

Freeholdlandandbuilding areconsideredasinvestmentpropertyonly whentheyarebeingheld
to earn rentals or capital appreciation or both.

Regularway purchasesand salesof investmentsthat require delivery within the time frame
establishedby regulationsor marketconventionare recognizedat the tradedate.Tradedateis
the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the investment.

Investment properties

Investment properties are accountedfor under the cost model in accordancewith the
InternationalAccountingStandard(IAS) 40 "InvestmentProperty"andSEC(Insurance)Rules,
2002 vide SRO 938(1) dated December 12, 2002.

Date of recognition

Subsequent to initial recognition, quoted investments are stated at the lower of cost or market 
value (market value on an individual investment basis being taken as lower if the fall is other 
than temporary) in accordance with the requirements of the SECP (Insurance) Rules, 2002 vide 
SRO 938(1) dated December 12, 2002. Moreover, section 16(a) of the Securities and Exchange 
���,�Q�V�X�U�D�Q�F�H�����5�X�O�H�V���������������I�R�U���D�Y�D�L�O�D�E�O�H���I�R�U���V�D�O�H�������¿�[�H�G���L�Q�F�R�P�H���L�Q�Y�H�V�W�P�H�Q�W�V���U�H�G�H�H�P�D�E�O�H���D�W���D���J�L�Y�H�Q��
�G�D�W�H�� �D�Q�G�� �Z�K�H�U�H�� �W�K�H�� �F�R�V�W�� �L�V�� �G�L
u�H�U�H�Q�W�� �I�U�R�P�� �W�K�H�� �U�H�G�H�P�S�W�L�R�Q�� �Y�D�O�X�H���� �U�H�T�X�L�U�H�� �V�X�F�K�� �G�L
u�H�U�H�Q�F�H�� �W�R�� �E�H��
amortised uniformly between the date of acquisition and the date of maturity. The Company uses 
stock exchange quotations at the balance sheet date to determine the market value. 
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5.2.3 Quoted

5.2.4 Unquoted

(d) Loans and receivables

5.2.5

5.3

Loansand receivablesare non-derivativefinancial assetswith fixed or determinablepayments
that arenot quotedin an activemarket.After initial recognition,thesearecarriedat amortized
cost.
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International Accounting Standard39 dealing with the recognition and measurementsof
financial instruments requires that these instruments should be measuredat fair value.
Accordingly, had theseinvestmentsbeenmeasuredat fair value, their carrying value as on
December31, 2017 would have beenhigher by Rs. 2,774.494million (2016: higher by Rs.
6,351.680million), andthe net equitywould havebeenhigherby Rs.2,774.494million (2016:
higher by 6,351.680 million).

Unquoted investments are recorded at cost less impairment loss (if any).

Subsequentto initial recognition,quotedinvestmentsare statedat the lower of cost or market
value (marketvalueon an individual investmentbasisbeing takenas lower if the fall is other
than temporary)in accordancewith the requirementsof the SEC (Insurance)Rules,2002vide
SRO938(1)datedDecember12, 2002.Moreover,section16(a)of the SecuritiesandExchange
(Insurance)Rules,2002for availablefor sale- fixed incomeinvestmentsredeemableat a given
dateand wherethe cost is different from the redemptionvalue, requiresuchdifferenceto be
amortiseduniformly betweenthedateof acquisitionandthedateof maturity.TheCompanyuses
stock exchange quotations at the balance sheet date to determine the market value. 

Freeholdlandandbuilding areconsideredasinvestmentpropertyonly whentheyarebeingheld
to earn rentals or capital appreciation or both.

Regularway purchasesand salesof investmentsthat require delivery within the time frame
establishedby regulationsor marketconventionare recognizedat the tradedate.Tradedateis
the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the investment.

Investment properties

Investment properties are accountedfor under the cost model in accordancewith the
InternationalAccountingStandard(IAS) 40 "InvestmentProperty"andSEC(Insurance)Rules,
2002 vide SRO 938(1) dated December 12, 2002.

Date of recognition

-

-

-

5.4 Premium due but unpaid

5.5 Liability adequacy test

5.6

Installationsforming a partof building on leaseholdlandbut havingseparateusefullives are
depreciated at the rate of 20 percent under the reducing balance method.

Commission expense, other acquisition costs and commission income

Commissionexpenseandotheracquisitioncostsarechargedto theprofit andlossaccountat the
time the policiesareaccepted.Commissionincomefrom reinsurersis recognizedat the time of
issuanceof the underlying insurancepolicy by the Company.This income is deferredand
broughtto accountsasrevenuein accordancewith the patternof recognitionof the reinsurance
premiumto which it relates.Profit commission,if any, which the Companymaybe entitledto
under the terms of reinsurance, is recognized on accrual basis.

Building on leaseholdland is depreciatedto its estimatedsalvagevalueon reducingbalance
method over its useful life.
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Depreciation policy, subsequent capital expenditures on existing properties and gains or losses 
on disposals are accounted for in the same manner as tangible fixed assets.

At eachend of the reportingperiod, the Companyassesseswhetherits recognizedinsurance
liabilities are adequateusing current estimatesof future cash flows under its insurance
contracts.If that assessmentshows that the carrying amount of its insuranceliabilities is
inadequatein the light of estimatedfuture cash flows, the entire deficiency is immediately
recognized in the profit and loss account.

Leasehold land is stated at cost.

Thesearerecognizedwhendue,at the fair valueof the considerationreceivablelessprovision
for doubtful debts, if any. If there is objective evidencethat the receivableis impaired, the
Company reducesthe carrying amount of the receivableaccordingly and recognizesthat
impairment loss in the profit and loss account.

Investmentpropertiesare derecognizedwhen either they have beendisposedof or when the
investmentproperty is permanentlywithdrawn from use and no future economicbenefit is
expectedfrom its disposal. The differencebetweenthe net disposalproceedsand the carrying
amount of the asset is recognized in the statement of income in the period of derecognition.
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5.7 Provision for outstanding claims

5.8 Prepaid reinsurance ceded

5.9

5.9.1 Defined benefits plan

5.9.1.1 Post employment benefits - Retirements benefits and other post-employment benefits

TheCompanyalsooperatespostretirementmedicalbenefitplanandrecognizesliability for post
retirementmedicalfacilities in respectof its eligible employeesin accordancewith requirements
of IAS - 19 (Revised).

Reinsurancepremium is recognizedas an expenseevenly over the period of the underlying
policies. The portion of reinsurancepremiumnot yet recognizedas expenseis recognizedas
prepayment.

The Companyoperatesapprovedgratuity andpensionschemefor all its permanentemployees
who areentitled/ haveoptedfor eitherof theaboveschemes.TheCompanymakescontributions
or recordliability in respectof definedbenefitplanson thebasisof actuarialvaluations,carried
out annually by independentactuariesand in line with the provisions of the Income Tax
Ordinance,2001.Thelatestactuarialvaluationswerecarriedout asof December31, 2017using
the ProjectedUnit Credit Methodbasedon the significantassumptionsstatedin note41.1.9for
valuation of the funds as at December 31, 2017.

A liability is recognizedfor outstandingclaims incurred up to the balancesheetdate and is
consideredto beincurredat thetime of incidentgiving riseto theclaim.Unpaidreportedclaims
arebasedon prescribedstatutoryreturnssubmittedby thecedingcompanies.Outstandingclaims
reserveandclaimsincurredbut not reported(IBNR) to theCompanyup to thebalancesheetdate
are recordedon the basisof actuarialvaluation,resultsof which havebeenrecognizedin the
financial statements.The above liability is measuredat undiscountedvalue and includes
expectedsettlementcosts.Provisionfor liability in respectof unpaidreportedclaimsis madeon
thebasisof individual caseestimatesandprovisionfor thoseclaimswhich areincurredandnot
reportedas at balancesheetdateare madeon the basisof specifiedguidelinesissuedby the
SecuritiesandExchangeCommissionof Pakistanthroughletterno. ID/PRDD/IBNR/2017/9695
datedMay 30, 2017,which thatCompanyshouldrecordthoseclaimswhich areincurredbut not
reportedon the basisof collectionof dataof IBNR claimsreservesfrom the cedingcompanies
(non-life insurers)in accordancewith the shareof Companyon the accountof facultativeand
treaty business. 
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Staff retirement benefits
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5.7 Provision for outstanding claims

5.8 Prepaid reinsurance ceded

5.9

5.9.1 Defined benefits plan

5.9.1.1 Post employment benefits - Retirements benefits and other post-employment benefits

TheCompanyalsooperatespostretirementmedicalbenefitplanandrecognizesliability for post
retirementmedicalfacilities in respectof its eligible employeesin accordancewith requirements
of IAS - 19 (Revised).

Reinsurancepremium is recognizedas an expenseevenly over the period of the underlying
policies. The portion of reinsurancepremiumnot yet recognizedas expenseis recognizedas
prepayment.

The Companyoperatesapprovedgratuity andpensionschemefor all its permanentemployees
who areentitled/ haveoptedfor eitherof theaboveschemes.TheCompanymakescontributions
or recordliability in respectof definedbenefitplanson thebasisof actuarialvaluations,carried
out annually by independentactuariesand in line with the provisions of the Income Tax
Ordinance,2001.Thelatestactuarialvaluationswerecarriedout asof December31, 2017using
the ProjectedUnit Credit Methodbasedon the significantassumptionsstatedin note41.1.9for
valuation of the funds as at December 31, 2017.

A liability is recognizedfor outstandingclaims incurred up to the balancesheetdate and is
consideredto beincurredat thetime of incidentgiving riseto theclaim.Unpaidreportedclaims
arebasedon prescribedstatutoryreturnssubmittedby thecedingcompanies.Outstandingclaims
reserveandclaimsincurredbut not reported(IBNR) to theCompanyup to thebalancesheetdate
are recordedon the basisof actuarialvaluation,resultsof which havebeenrecognizedin the
financial statements.The above liability is measuredat undiscountedvalue and includes
expectedsettlementcosts.Provisionfor liability in respectof unpaidreportedclaimsis madeon
thebasisof individual caseestimatesandprovisionfor thoseclaimswhich areincurredandnot
reportedas at balancesheetdateare madeon the basisof specifiedguidelinesissuedby the
SecuritiesandExchangeCommissionof Pakistanthroughletterno. ID/PRDD/IBNR/2017/9695
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(non-life insurers)in accordancewith the shareof Companyon the accountof facultativeand
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Page - 14

Staff retirement benefits

5.9.1.2 Other long term employment benefits - Compensated absences 

5.9.2 Defined contribution plan

5.10 Taxation 

5.10.1 Current

5.10.2 Deferred

Current tax is the expectedtax payableon the taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enactedor substantivelyenactedat the reporting date,and any adjustmentto tax payablein
respectof previousyears.Provisionfor taxationis basedon taxableincomeat thecurrentratesof
tax after taking into account applicable tax credits, rebates and exemptions available, if any. 
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The Companymakesperiodic provisions in the financial statementsfor its liability towards
definedencashmentof leavesup to maximumof 6 monthsin respectof leavepreparatoryto
retirement(LPR) on the basisof basicplus all allowancesexceptconveyanceallowance.The
liability is estimatedon the basisof actuarialadviceunder the ProjectedUnit Credit method
carried out by a qualified actuary. 

Incometax expensecomprisescurrentand deferredtax. Incometax expenseis recognizedin
profit or lossexceptto the extentthat it relatesto itemsrecognizeddirectly in equity, in which
case it is recognized in equity.

The Companyaccountsfor all accumulatedcompensatedabsenceswhen the employeesrender
service that increasestheir entitlement to future compensatedabsencesbasedon actuarial
valuation. 

The Companycontributesto a providentfund schemewhich coversall permanentemployees.
Equalcontributionsaremadebothby theCompanyandtheemployeesto the fund at the rateof
10 percent of basic salary. 

Deferredtax is accountedfor usingthebalancesheetliability methodin respectof all temporary
differencearising from differencesbetweenthe carryingamountof assetsand liabilities in the
financialstatementsandthecorrespondingtax basesusedin thecomputationof taxableprofit. A
deferredtax assetis generallyrecognizedand only to the extent that is probablethat future
taxable profits will be available and the credits can be utilized. There are no temporary
differencesbetweenaccountingbaseand tax baseof assetsand liabilities, accordingly, no
deferred tax has been recognized in these financial statements.
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5.11

Owned 

5.12

5.12.1 Premium

Deferredtax assetis reducedto the extent that it is no longer probablethat the relatedtax
benefits will be realized. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognisedfor all taxable
temporarydifferencesanddeferredtax assetsarerecognisedto theextentthat it is probablethat
taxableprofits will be availableagainstwhich the deductibletemporarydifferences,unusedtax
losses and tax credits can be utilized. 

Depreciationon additionsduring the financial yearis chargedfrom the monthin which assetis
put to usewhereasno depreciationis chargedfrom themonthin which theassetis disposedoff.
The assetsresidualvaluesand useful lives are reviewed,and adjustedif appropriate,at each
balance sheet date. 

Maintenanceandnormal repairsarechargedto incomeasand when incurred.Major renewals
and improvements are capitalized and assets so replaced, if any are retired. 

Fixed assets - tangibles 

Premium received / receivable under a policy are recognizedevenly over the period of
underlyingpoliciesor in accordancewith thepatternof reinsuranceserviceprovided.Wherethe
patternof incidenceof risk variesover theperiodof thepolicy, thepremiumis recognizedasan
income in accordance with the pattern of incidence of risk.

Fixedassetsexceptleaseholdlands(otherthanlandof PRCHouseandPRCBuilding, which has
not beenbifurcated)arestatedat costlessaccumulateddepreciationcalculatedon written down
values and accumulated impairment losses thereon. Leasehold land is stated at cost. 
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Revenuefrom premium is basedon prescribedstatutory returns submitted by the ceding
companies.Premiumsare takento income,after (i) deductingreinsuranceand(ii) adjustedfor
provision for unearned premium.

Depreciation is charged to income applying the reducing balance method. The rates of
depreciation are stated in note 29.5 to the financial statements.

The carryingamountof fixed assetsarereviewedat eachbalancesheetdateto assesswhether
theyarerecordedin excessof their recoverableamounts,andwherecarryingvaluesexceedtheir
estimated recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amount. 

Gains and losses on disposal of fixed assets, if any, are included in current income. 

Revenue recognition
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5.11

Owned 

5.12

5.12.1 Premium

Deferredtax assetis reducedto the extent that it is no longer probablethat the relatedtax
benefits will be realized. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognisedfor all taxable
temporarydifferencesanddeferredtax assetsarerecognisedto theextentthat it is probablethat
taxableprofits will be availableagainstwhich the deductibletemporarydifferences,unusedtax
losses and tax credits can be utilized. 

Depreciationon additionsduring the financial yearis chargedfrom the monthin which assetis
put to usewhereasno depreciationis chargedfrom themonthin which theassetis disposedoff.
The assetsresidualvaluesand useful lives are reviewed,and adjustedif appropriate,at each
balance sheet date. 

Maintenanceandnormal repairsarechargedto incomeasand when incurred.Major renewals
and improvements are capitalized and assets so replaced, if any are retired. 

Fixed assets - tangibles 

Premium received / receivable under a policy are recognizedevenly over the period of
underlyingpoliciesor in accordancewith thepatternof reinsuranceserviceprovided.Wherethe
patternof incidenceof risk variesover theperiodof thepolicy, thepremiumis recognizedasan
income in accordance with the pattern of incidence of risk.

Fixedassetsexceptleaseholdlands(otherthanlandof PRCHouseandPRCBuilding, which has
not beenbifurcated)arestatedat costlessaccumulateddepreciationcalculatedon written down
values and accumulated impairment losses thereon. Leasehold land is stated at cost. 
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Revenuefrom premium is basedon prescribedstatutory returns submitted by the ceding
companies.Premiumsare takento income,after (i) deductingreinsuranceand(ii) adjustedfor
provision for unearned premium.

Depreciation is charged to income applying the reducing balance method. The rates of
depreciation are stated in note 29.5 to the financial statements.

The carryingamountof fixed assetsarereviewedat eachbalancesheetdateto assesswhether
theyarerecordedin excessof their recoverableamounts,andwherecarryingvaluesexceedtheir
estimated recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amount. 

Gains and losses on disposal of fixed assets, if any, are included in current income. 

Revenue recognition

5.12.2 Investments

Gain / loss on sale of investments is taken to the profit and loss account in the year of sale.

Profit / interest income on investments securities are recognized on effective interest method.

Profit on bank accounts are accounted for on accrual basis.

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive such dividend is established.

5.12.3 Rental income

Rentals from investment properties are recognized as income on time proportion basis.

5.13 Management expenses

5.14 Derivative financial instruments

5.15 Foreign currency translations

Managementexpensesallocated to the underwriting businessrepresentdirectly attributable
expensesandindirect expensesallocatedon the basisof net premiumrevenueunderindividual
business.

Derivative financial instrumentsare initially recognizedat fair valueon the dateon which the
derivativecontractis enteredinto andaresubsequentlyremeasuredat fair value.All derivative
financial instrumentsare carriedas assetswhen fair value is positive and liabilities when fair
value is negative.Any changein the fair value of derivativefinancial instrumentsis takento
profit and loss account.

Transactionsin foreign currenciesare translatedinto Pak Rupeesat the rates of exchange
prevailing on the dateof transactions.Significant exchangeratesapplied during the year are
providedin note38.7.Non-monetaryassetsandliabilities aretranslatedinto PakRupeesusing
exchangerates prevalent on transaction date. Exchange differences on foreign currency
translations are included in income currently.

Gains or losseson investmentson remeasurementof theseinvestmentsheld for trading are
recognized in profit and loss account.

Premiumrecognitionin caseof coinsuranceor pool arrangementsis restrictedto theCompany's
share only.
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5.16 Impairment

5.17 Cash and cash equivalents

5.18 Off setting of financial assets and financial liabilities

5.19 Segment reporting

5.20 Provisions

Page - 18

Cash and cashequivalentscomprise(a) cash in deposit accountswith banks (b) cash (and
cheques)in hand,in transit and at banksin currentaccounts(c) stampsin handand (d) term
depositsmaturingwithin 12 monthsasper the format prescribedby theSEC(Insurance)Rules,
2002 vide SRO 938(1) dated December 12, 2002.

A financial assetanda financial liability is offset andthe net amountis reportedin the balance
sheetif the Companyhas a legally enforceableright to set-off the recognizedamountsand
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

For managementpurposes,the Companyis organizedinto six departmentswhich deal with
specific type of insurancepolicies. These departmentsare businesssegmentsfor financial
reportingpurposes.Moreover,thereare'treatyarrangement'undereachdepartmentandis treated
asa separatesegment.Thusthe Companyhassevensegment- fire, marinecargo,marinehull,
accident and others, aviation, engineering and treaty. 

Thesesegmentsare the basison which the Companyreport its primary segmentinformation.
Other operationsof the Companycomprisesinvestmentin securitiesand in properties.The
Company operates in Pakistan only. There are no transactions between segments. 

Thecarryingamountof assetsis reviewedat eachbalancesheetdateto determinewhetherthere
is anyindicationof impairmentof anyassetor groupof assets.If anysuchindicationexists,the
recoverableamountof suchassetsis estimatedandimpairmentlossesarerecognizedin theprofit
and loss account.

A provision is recognizedin the balancesheetwhen the Companyhasa legal or constructive
obligationasa resultof pasteventsandit is probablethat anoutflow of economicbenefitswill
be requiredto settlethe obligationsand a reliable estimatecan be madeof the amountof the
obligation.

Assets,liabilities and capital expendituresthat are directly attributableto segmentshavebeen
assignedto them.Thoseassetsandliabilities which cannotbe allocatedto a particularsegment
on a reasonable basis are reported as unallocated corporate assets and liabilities.
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5.16 Impairment

5.17 Cash and cash equivalents

5.18 Off setting of financial assets and financial liabilities

5.19 Segment reporting

5.20 Provisions

Page - 18

Cash and cashequivalentscomprise(a) cash in deposit accountswith banks (b) cash (and
cheques)in hand,in transit and at banksin currentaccounts(c) stampsin handand (d) term
depositsmaturingwithin 12 monthsasper the format prescribedby theSEC(Insurance)Rules,
2002 vide SRO 938(1) dated December 12, 2002.

A financial assetanda financial liability is offset andthe net amountis reportedin the balance
sheetif the Companyhas a legally enforceableright to set-off the recognizedamountsand
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

For managementpurposes,the Companyis organizedinto six departmentswhich deal with
specific type of insurancepolicies. These departmentsare businesssegmentsfor financial
reportingpurposes.Moreover,thereare'treatyarrangement'undereachdepartmentandis treated
asa separatesegment.Thusthe Companyhassevensegment- fire, marinecargo,marinehull,
accident and others, aviation, engineering and treaty. 

Thesesegmentsare the basison which the Companyreport its primary segmentinformation.
Other operationsof the Companycomprisesinvestmentin securitiesand in properties.The
Company operates in Pakistan only. There are no transactions between segments. 

Thecarryingamountof assetsis reviewedat eachbalancesheetdateto determinewhetherthere
is anyindicationof impairmentof anyassetor groupof assets.If anysuchindicationexists,the
recoverableamountof suchassetsis estimatedandimpairmentlossesarerecognizedin theprofit
and loss account.

A provision is recognizedin the balancesheetwhen the Companyhasa legal or constructive
obligationasa resultof pasteventsandit is probablethat anoutflow of economicbenefitswill
be requiredto settlethe obligationsand a reliable estimatecan be madeof the amountof the
obligation.

Assets,liabilities and capital expendituresthat are directly attributableto segmentshavebeen
assignedto them.Thoseassetsandliabilities which cannotbe allocatedto a particularsegment
on a reasonable basis are reported as unallocated corporate assets and liabilities.

5.21 Provision for doubtful debts

5.22 Financial instruments

5.23 Dividend and other appropriations

5.24 Earnings per share

2017 2016
 Rupees  Rupees 

6 ISSUED SUBSCRIBED PAID UP CAPITAL

2016

8 Ordinary shares of Rs.10/-
each fully paid in cash 80                       80                         

8
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Dividend and appropriationto reservesare recognisedas liability in the Company'sfinancial
statements in the year in which these are approved.

The Companypresentsbasicand diluted earningsper share(EPS) for its shareholders.Basic
EPS is calculatedby dividing the profit or loss attributableto ordinary shareholdersof the
Companyby the weighted averagenumber of ordinary sharesoutstandingduring the year.
Diluted EPSis determinedby adjustingthe profit or loss attributableto ordinaryshareholders
and the weightedaveragenumberof ordinarysharesoutstandingfor the effectsof all dilutive
potentialordinaryshares,if any. However,therewere no dilutive potentialordinarysharesin
issue at December 31, 2017. 

Financial instrumentscarried on the balancesheet include cash and bank deposits,loans,
investments,amountsdue from / to other insurers/ reinsurers,premium and claim reserves
retainedfrom / by retrocessionaires/ cedants,accruedinvestmentincome,sundryreceivables,
provision for outstandingclaims, long term deposits,other creditors and accruals,retention
money payable, dividend payable and surplus profit payable. 

2017
(Number of shares)

An estimatedprovision is madeagainstdebtsconsidereddoubtful of recoverywhereasdebts
considered irrecoverable are written off.

All the financial assetsand financial liabilities are recognizedat the time when the Company
becomesa party to the contractualprovisionsof the instrumentand derecognizedwhen the
Companylosescontrolof contractualrights thatcomprisethefinancialassets,andin thecaseof
financial liabilities, when the obligation specifiedin the contract is discharged,cancelledor
expired. At the time of initial recognition, all financial assetsand financial liabilities are
measuredat cost,which is thefair valueof theconsiderationgivenor receivedfor it. Any gainor
loss on derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities is taken to income directly. 
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2016 2017 2016
 Rupees  Rupees 

5,000,000       Ordinary shares of Rs.10/-
each issued for consideration 
other than cash 50,000,000         50,000,000           

294,999,992   Ordinary shares of Rs.10/-
each issued as fully paid
bonus shares 2,949,999,920    2,949,999,920      

300,000,000   3,000,000,000    3,000,000,000      

7 RESERVES FOR EXCEPTIONAL  LOSSES

8 PROVISION FOR OUTSTANDING CLAIMS (INCLUDING IBNR)

Facultative business
Fire 1,250,561,544    994,479,472         
Marine cargo 45,634,627         35,404,588           
Marine hull 98,270,441         79,759,482           
Accident and others 172,267,889       192,339,624         
Aviation 116,351,952       1,261,479,243      
Engineering 921,658,158       220,017,329         

2,604,744,611    2,783,479,738      
Treaty 2,113,857,589    1,812,143,994      

4,718,602,200    4,595,623,732      
Claims related to Bangladesh, 
adjusted in note 30 8.2 (4,952,000)          (4,952,000)           

4,713,650,200    4,590,671,732      

8.1

5,000,000       

294,999,992   

2017
(Number of shares)

The SecuritiesandExchangeCommissionof Pakistan(SECP)issuedguidelinesfor estimation
of Incurred but Not Reported(IBNR) claim reservesfor non-life insurer companiesthrough
CircularNo. 9 of 2016datedMarch09, 2016.Theguidelinesprescribethestandardmethodfor
estimationof IBNR claim reservesso as to bring industrywide-uniformity in respectof such
estimationandto ensureadequacyof IBNR claimsreserve.All non-life insurancecompaniesare
requiredto comply with theseguidelineswith effect from July 01, 2016.However,during the
yearon May 30, 2017SECPhasissuedseparateguidelinesfor the Companyfor estimationof
Incurredbut Not Reported(IBNR) claim throughletter No. ID/PRDD/IBNR/2017/9695which
prescribethat,for thepurposesof ascertainingIBNR claim reservesby theCompany,guidanceis
herebyextended,that the Companyshall collect the data of IBNR claim reservesfrom the
cedants(non-life insurers)andin accordancewith its sharein the reinsuranceprogram(bothon
treaty and facultative basis) of the cedant(s) it shall record its IBNR claim reserves.

Thereservesfor exceptionallosseswassetasideprior to 1979andwaschargedto incomewith
theprovisionof IncomeTax Act of 1922(repealed).TheCompanyhasceasedto setasidesuch
reserves.

300,000,000   
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2016 2017 2016
 Rupees  Rupees 

5,000,000       Ordinary shares of Rs.10/-
each issued for consideration 
other than cash 50,000,000         50,000,000           

294,999,992   Ordinary shares of Rs.10/-
each issued as fully paid
bonus shares 2,949,999,920    2,949,999,920      

300,000,000   3,000,000,000    3,000,000,000      

7 RESERVES FOR EXCEPTIONAL  LOSSES

8 PROVISION FOR OUTSTANDING CLAIMS (INCLUDING IBNR)

Facultative business
Fire 1,250,561,544    994,479,472         
Marine cargo 45,634,627         35,404,588           
Marine hull 98,270,441         79,759,482           
Accident and others 172,267,889       192,339,624         
Aviation 116,351,952       1,261,479,243      
Engineering 921,658,158       220,017,329         

2,604,744,611    2,783,479,738      
Treaty 2,113,857,589    1,812,143,994      

4,718,602,200    4,595,623,732      
Claims related to Bangladesh, 
adjusted in note 30 8.2 (4,952,000)          (4,952,000)           

4,713,650,200    4,590,671,732      

8.1

5,000,000       

294,999,992   

2017
(Number of shares)

The SecuritiesandExchangeCommissionof Pakistan(SECP)issuedguidelinesfor estimation
of Incurred but Not Reported(IBNR) claim reservesfor non-life insurer companiesthrough
CircularNo. 9 of 2016datedMarch09, 2016.Theguidelinesprescribethestandardmethodfor
estimationof IBNR claim reservesso as to bring industrywide-uniformity in respectof such
estimationandto ensureadequacyof IBNR claimsreserve.All non-life insurancecompaniesare
requiredto comply with theseguidelineswith effect from July 01, 2016.However,during the
yearon May 30, 2017SECPhasissuedseparateguidelinesfor the Companyfor estimationof
Incurredbut Not Reported(IBNR) claim throughletter No. ID/PRDD/IBNR/2017/9695which
prescribethat,for thepurposesof ascertainingIBNR claim reservesby theCompany,guidanceis
herebyextended,that the Companyshall collect the data of IBNR claim reservesfrom the
cedants(non-life insurers)andin accordancewith its sharein the reinsuranceprogram(bothon
treaty and facultative basis) of the cedant(s) it shall record its IBNR claim reserves.

Thereservesfor exceptionallosseswassetasideprior to 1979andwaschargedto incomewith
theprovisionof IncomeTax Act of 1922(repealed).TheCompanyhasceasedto setasidesuch
reserves.

300,000,000   
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2017 2016
Rupees Rupees 

8.2 Claims related to Bangladesh

Facultative business
Fire 2,382,000           2,382,000             
Marine 1,470,000           1,470,000             
Miscellaneous 1,100,000           1,100,000             

4,952,000           4,952,000             

9 PROVISION FOR UNEARNED PREMIUM

Facultative business
Fire 794,543,789       698,320,157         
Marine cargo 8,230,638           3,138,704             
Marine hull 42,998,528         24,888,296           
Accident and others 74,427,811         79,469,401           
Aviation 1,071,031,799    973,138,918         
Engineering 813,241,446       790,793,476         

2,804,474,013    2,569,748,952      
Treaty 1,437,424,021    1,850,343,120      

4,241,898,034    4,420,092,072      

10 COMMISSION INCOME UNEARNED 

Facultative business
Fire 3,520,774           4,266,944             
Marine hull 3,027,963           1,343,184             
Accident and others 6,240                  53,114                  
Aviation 206,620,082       11,163,272           
Engineering 48,019,981         6,264,451             

261,195,040       23,090,965           
Treaty 1,304,056           1,086,513             

262,499,096       24,177,478           
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On the basisof aboveSECPspecifiedguidelines,the Companywrote letter to eachceding
Companyto sharedataof IBNR ClaimsReservesin accordancewith its sharein thereinsurance
programboth for facultativeandtreatybusiness.However,only six cedingcompaniesreported
their IBNR Claim Reserveson thebasisof which theCompanyrecordedIBNR amountingto Rs.
105.387 million. 
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2017 2016
Note Rupees Rupees 

11 DEFERRED LIABILITY-EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Defined benefit obligations of
Post employee benefits

Employee's pension fund 40.1 369,752,193       169,335,600         
Officer pension benefits 40.1 1,054,728,493    503,875,359         
Gratuity fund 40.1 8,705,954           6,496,130             

Other post employment benefits 
Post retirement medical benefits 40.1 635,814,007       506,908,928         

Other long term employment benefits 
Compensated absences 40.1 124,559,050       109,691,173         

2,193,559,697    1,296,307,190      
12 LONG TERM DEPOSITS 

13 AMOUNT DUE TO OTHER INSURERS 

Amount due to other insurers 422,398,813       190,752,854         
Amount due to other reinsurers 1,535,377,020    1,773,593,569      

13.1 1,957,775,833    1,964,346,423      

13.1

14 PREMIUM AND CLAIMS RESERVES 

Premium reserves 228,411              230,628                
Losses reserves 16,472,741         17,190,994           
Cash losses received from retrocessionaires 1,642,121           1,642,121             

14.1 18,343,273         19,063,743           

14.1
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This representstheCompany'sretentionof depositswithheldagainstthetotal amountretroceded
to other companies. 

This representsdepositsreceivedfrom tenantsin connectionwith letting of PRC Towersand
earnest money deposits for the purpose of securing tenders of suppliers and contractors.

RETAINED FROM RETROCESSIONAIRES 

Thesebalancesarebasedon underlyinginformationandreturnssubmittedby insurers/reinsurers
periodically.During the prior years,a ReconciliationCommitteewas formedvia Office Order
No. 169asapprovedby theAudit Committeeof theBoardduringits meetingheldon August25,
2015 to reconcileandagreethe balancesrelating to other insurer/ reinsurerto ensurethat the
balancesareaccurateandcompletein respectof informationavailable.Theprovisionheldis also
subject to review as a part of this exercise.
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2017 2016
Note Rupees Rupees 

11 DEFERRED LIABILITY-EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Defined benefit obligations of
Post employee benefits

Employee's pension fund 40.1 369,752,193       169,335,600         
Officer pension benefits 40.1 1,054,728,493    503,875,359         
Gratuity fund 40.1 8,705,954           6,496,130             

Other post employment benefits 
Post retirement medical benefits 40.1 635,814,007       506,908,928         

Other long term employment benefits 
Compensated absences 40.1 124,559,050       109,691,173         

2,193,559,697    1,296,307,190      
12 LONG TERM DEPOSITS 

13 AMOUNT DUE TO OTHER INSURERS 

Amount due to other insurers 422,398,813       190,752,854         
Amount due to other reinsurers 1,535,377,020    1,773,593,569      

13.1 1,957,775,833    1,964,346,423      

13.1

14 PREMIUM AND CLAIMS RESERVES 

Premium reserves 228,411              230,628                
Losses reserves 16,472,741         17,190,994           
Cash losses received from retrocessionaires 1,642,121           1,642,121             

14.1 18,343,273         19,063,743           

14.1
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This representstheCompany'sretentionof depositswithheldagainstthetotal amountretroceded
to other companies. 

This representsdepositsreceivedfrom tenantsin connectionwith letting of PRC Towersand
earnest money deposits for the purpose of securing tenders of suppliers and contractors.

RETAINED FROM RETROCESSIONAIRES 

Thesebalancesarebasedon underlyinginformationandreturnssubmittedby insurers/reinsurers
periodically.During the prior years,a ReconciliationCommitteewas formedvia Office Order
No. 169asapprovedby theAudit Committeeof theBoardduringits meetingheldon August25,
2015 to reconcileandagreethe balancesrelating to other insurer/ reinsurerto ensurethat the
balancesareaccurateandcompletein respectof informationavailable.Theprovisionheldis also
subject to review as a part of this exercise.

2017 2016
Note Rupees Rupees 

15 OTHERS CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS 

Employee's general provident  fund payable 362,400              373,124                
Government  provident  fund payable 82,230                88,668                  
Advance rent 783,927              1,436,516             
Others 31,999,177         24,128,354           

33,227,734         26,026,662           
16 SURPLUS PROFIT PAYABLE

17 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

17.1

17.2 The Companyhasreceiveda noticefrom SindhRevenueBoard(SRB) relatingto non-filing of
SalesTax returnon servicesprovidedby themto InsuranceCompanies.TheCompanycontested
thenotice,however,thedecisionwasmadeagainsttheCompanygiving riseto salestax liability
amountingto Rs. 3,242million andtax penaltyof Rs. 880 million for financial year2011and
2012. The Companyfiled an appealwith Commissionerof Appeals,Sindh RevenueBoard,
however,it was rejected.The Companyhasfiled an appealwith the AppellateTribunal where
during the prior year the decision was made against the Companyvide order number AT-
02/2013/109/2013datedFebruary03, 2016.The Companyhasfiled referencein the Honorable
High Court of Sindh against the orders of Appellant Tribunal.

This representstheamountsetasidefor theshareholdersin accordancewith therequirementsof
Pakistan Insurance Corporation Act,1952 (repealed).
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TheCompanyhasdisputein respectof theunilateralincreasein rentalsof its leasehold landby
KarachiPortTrust(KPT) beingexorbitantandunreasonable,aview supportedby theCompany's
legal advisor.The amountnot acknowledgedin this regardhoweverthe Companyhasrecorded
payablein this regardas at December31, 2017 amountingto Rs. 24.024million (2016: Rs.
14.796 million). 

In aforementionedtribunal orders,the SRB is beingdirectedto reconcileandseparatethe sales
tax liability on reinsurance premium generated within the province of Sindh and rest of Pakistan. 

Currently, stay is operatingin favour of the Companyand the matter is pendingbefore the
HonorableCourt of SeniorJudge- Karachi,West,for the issueandhearingof application.The
matteris currentlybeingcontestedby bothpartiesandtherehasbeenno negotiationto settlethe
matterout of the court.Most likely outcomeof the case,maybe in accordancewith the market
ratein thevicinity. Thecaseis pendingin theHonorableHigh Courtof Sindhandtherehasbeen
no further proceedings in this case since last year.
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During theyear,theCompanyhaspaidanamountof Rs.2,131.464million underprotestagainst
theprincipalamountof salestax liability in respectof abovenoticesissuedby SRBfor tax years
2011,2012 and 2013.The Companyhasalso appraisedMinistry of Commercethroughletter
datedApril 14, 2017 on the matterof disputedsalestax demandraisedby SRB. Ministry of
Commercethrough letter dated on May 03, 2017 directed to take action as per Board of
Directorsdecisionand also directedthat the Companymay keepcontestingthe casein High
Court vigorously.After obtaininglegal opinion,approvalfrom Boardof DirectorsandMinistry
of Commerce,theCompanywrotea letterdatedMay 17,2017to theCommission(SRB)thatthe
Companyis in agreementto makepaymentof theprincipalamountof thedemandunderprotest
subjectto condition that SRB will withdraw all noticesissuedu/s 66 of Sindh SalesTax Act,
2011to theclientsanddebtorsof theCompanyfor theattachmentof payablesto Company,SRB
will not initiate any further proceedingsin relation to the amount of default surchargeand
penaltyuntil the liability of tax on reinsuranceservicesis finally decidedby theSuperiorCourts
and SRB will not initiate any further proceedingsagainstthe Companyfor the tax periods
subsequentto thesethreetax periodsandmattershall be decidedafter the decisionof the final
appellate forum which is the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan.

Further,theCompanyhasalsoreceivedanoticefrom SindhRevenueBoard(SRB)for theperiod
from January2013 to December2013.The Companycontestedthe notice;however,the order
waspassedagainsttheCompanygiving riseto salestax liability amountingto Rs.1,385million
and tax penaltyamountingto Rs. 424 million. The Companyfiled an appealagainstthe order
with Commissionerof Appeals,SindhRevenueBoardwhich wasdecidedagainsttheCompany.
The Companybeingaggrievedby the saidorderhasfiled an appealbeforeAppellantTribunal-
SRB which hasbeenheardandorder is awaited.Stayof tax demandhasbeenobtainedin this
regard which was valid up to April 05, 2017.

Therefore,duringtheprior year,theCompanyhasreceivedtwo ordersin pursuanceof Appellate
Tribunal (SRB) Order in AppealNo. AT-02/2013andAT-109/2015datedMay 23, 2016from
Sindh RevenueBoard (SRB) demandingthe amount of sales tax liability on re-insurance
servicesprovided / renderedby the Companyin Sindh from the period from July 2011 to
November2011andfor theperiodfrom December2011to December2012which is workedout
andcalculatedby SRBamountingto Rs.372.200million andRs.1,118.094million respectively.
The Companyhasfiled referencein the HonorableHigh Court of Sindh,datedApril 18, 2016
againstthe Ordersof AppellantTribunal. On May 31, 2016,SRB recoveredan amountof Rs.
442.424million from the Company’sbank accountsundersection66 of Sindh SaleTax Act,
2011.On June03, 2016, the HonorableHigh Court of Sindh grantedstay to the Companyin
respectof this matterwhich restrainedSRB from proceedingagainstthe Company.The caseis
still pending before the Honorable High Court of Sindh.

SRB vide letter datedMay 17, 2017assuredthat SRB shall abideby all conditionsasstatedin
the Company letter dated May 17, 2017.
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During theyear,theCompanyhaspaidanamountof Rs.2,131.464million underprotestagainst
theprincipalamountof salestax liability in respectof abovenoticesissuedby SRBfor tax years
2011,2012 and 2013.The Companyhasalso appraisedMinistry of Commercethroughletter
datedApril 14, 2017 on the matterof disputedsalestax demandraisedby SRB. Ministry of
Commercethrough letter dated on May 03, 2017 directed to take action as per Board of
Directorsdecisionand also directedthat the Companymay keepcontestingthe casein High
Court vigorously.After obtaininglegal opinion,approvalfrom Boardof DirectorsandMinistry
of Commerce,theCompanywrotea letterdatedMay 17,2017to theCommission(SRB)thatthe
Companyis in agreementto makepaymentof theprincipalamountof thedemandunderprotest
subjectto condition that SRB will withdraw all noticesissuedu/s 66 of Sindh SalesTax Act,
2011to theclientsanddebtorsof theCompanyfor theattachmentof payablesto Company,SRB
will not initiate any further proceedingsin relation to the amount of default surchargeand
penaltyuntil the liability of tax on reinsuranceservicesis finally decidedby theSuperiorCourts
and SRB will not initiate any further proceedingsagainstthe Companyfor the tax periods
subsequentto thesethreetax periodsandmattershall be decidedafter the decisionof the final
appellate forum which is the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan.

Further,theCompanyhasalsoreceivedanoticefrom SindhRevenueBoard(SRB)for theperiod
from January2013 to December2013.The Companycontestedthe notice;however,the order
waspassedagainsttheCompanygiving riseto salestax liability amountingto Rs.1,385million
and tax penaltyamountingto Rs. 424 million. The Companyfiled an appealagainstthe order
with Commissionerof Appeals,SindhRevenueBoardwhich wasdecidedagainsttheCompany.
The Companybeingaggrievedby the saidorderhasfiled an appealbeforeAppellantTribunal-
SRB which hasbeenheardandorder is awaited.Stayof tax demandhasbeenobtainedin this
regard which was valid up to April 05, 2017.

Therefore,duringtheprior year,theCompanyhasreceivedtwo ordersin pursuanceof Appellate
Tribunal (SRB) Order in AppealNo. AT-02/2013andAT-109/2015datedMay 23, 2016from
Sindh RevenueBoard (SRB) demandingthe amount of sales tax liability on re-insurance
servicesprovided / renderedby the Companyin Sindh from the period from July 2011 to
November2011andfor theperiodfrom December2011to December2012which is workedout
andcalculatedby SRBamountingto Rs.372.200million andRs.1,118.094million respectively.
The Companyhasfiled referencein the HonorableHigh Court of Sindh,datedApril 18, 2016
againstthe Ordersof AppellantTribunal. On May 31, 2016,SRB recoveredan amountof Rs.
442.424million from the Company’sbank accountsundersection66 of Sindh SaleTax Act,
2011.On June03, 2016, the HonorableHigh Court of Sindh grantedstay to the Companyin
respectof this matterwhich restrainedSRB from proceedingagainstthe Company.The caseis
still pending before the Honorable High Court of Sindh.

SRB vide letter datedMay 17, 2017assuredthat SRB shall abideby all conditionsasstatedin
the Company letter dated May 17, 2017.
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17.3

17.4

17.5

17.6 There is no commitment as on the balance sheet date (2016: Nil). 

Contingencies related to income tax are presented in note 36. 

The Companyhasreceiveda notice from the RegionalDirector of EmployeeOld Age Benefit
Institution vide letter datedOctober31, 2009 that PakistanReinsuranceCompanyLimited is
requiredto beregisteredwith EOBI. TheCompanyis of theview thatsincePRCLis a statutory
body corporateunder the managementand control of Ministry of Commerce,Governmentof
Pakistanandhaveits own pensionerrulesandlimitation andthereforeprovisionsof EOBI Act,
1976 is not applicable.Suit was filed with the HonorableCivil Court JudgeKarachi East in
2011 wherethe judgmenthascameagainst the Company.Further,the Companyhasfiled an
appealin the HonorableHigh Court of Sindh againstthe Civil Court judgmentand therehas
beenno further proceedingand the managementexpectsa favorableoutcome.The financial
impactto the financialstatementsis currentlynot quantifiable.Therefore,no provisionhasbeen
made in these financial statements.

Theaggregateamountof Rs.2,573.889million paidhasbeenrecordedas“Sundaryreceivables”
in thefinancialstatements.Moreover,theCompanyhasnot recordedprovisionagainsttheorders
passedby SRB in pursuanceof AppellateOrder datedFebruary01, 2016 in Appeal No. AT-
02/2013andorderdatedFebruary03, 2016in AppealNo. AT-109/2015.However,in theevent
the matteris decidedagainstthe Company,the chargeto profit andlossaccountwould amount
to Rs.2,573.889million pertainingto the years2011,2012and2013,excludinganyadditional
penaltyor defaultsurcharge.Further,in the eventof adversedecision,theCompanywould also
haveto recordsalestax liability on re-insuranceserviceswith a correspondingchargeto profit
and loss accountsfor the years2014,2015,2016,2017, the financial impact of which on the
financial statements has remain unascertained.

Basedon thelegalopinionfrom legaladvisor,managementis confidentthatstronggroundsexist
to contestthe case.The managementbelievesthat eventualoutcomeswill be in favor of the
Company. Accordingly,no provisionfor salestax liability for the years2011to 2017hasbeen
recorded in these financial statements.

FederalBoard of Revenue(FBR) have issuedshow-causenoticesdatedNovember22, 2017,
wherebytheCompanyis requiredto explainasto why FederalExciseDuty (FED) on aggregate
reinsurancepremiumrevenuehasnot beenpaid in respectof tax periodsfrom October2012to
September2017.The Companyhassubmittedits reply againstshow-causechallenginglevy of
FED on variouslegal grounds.Further,the Companyalso filed ConstitutionalPetition against
shownoticesin theHonorableHigh Courtof SindhandtheHonorableHigh Courtof Sindh vide
orderdatedJanuary29, 2018hassuspendedthe proceedingsinitiated throughthe aboveshow-
causenotice.This caseis pendingfor finalization beforethe HonorableHigh Court of Sindh.
TheCompanyis confidentthat outcomeof the casewill be in the favor of Companyin light of
18th amendment in the Constitution of Pakistan.
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The aggregate amount of Rs. 2,573.889 million paid has been recorded as “Sundary receivables” 
�L�Q���W�K�H���¿�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���V�W�D�W�H�P�H�Q�W�V�����0�R�U�H�R�Y�H�U�����W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\���K�D�V���Q�R�W���U�H�F�R�U�G�H�G���S�U�R�Y�L�V�L�R�Q���D�J�D�L�Q�V�W���W�K�H���R�U�G�H�U�V��
passed by SRB in pursuance of Appellate Order dated February 01, 2016 in Appeal No. AT-02/2013 
and order dated February 03, 2016 in Appeal No. AT-109/2015. However, in the event the matter is 
�G�H�F�L�G�H�G���D�J�D�L�Q�V�W���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�����W�K�H���F�K�D�U�J�H���W�R���S�U�R�¿�W���D�Q�G���O�R�V�V���D�F�F�R�X�Q�W���Z�R�X�O�G���D�P�R�X�Q�W���W�R���5�V������������������������
million pertaining to the years 2011, 2012 and 2013, excluding any additional penalty or default 
surcharge. Further, in the event of adverse decision, the Company would also have to record sales 
�W�D�[���O�L�D�E�L�O�L�W�\���R�Q���U�H���L�Q�V�X�U�D�Q�F�H���V�H�U�Y�L�F�H�V���Z�L�W�K���D���F�R�U�U�H�V�S�R�Q�G�L�Q�J���F�K�D�U�J�H���W�R���S�U�R�¿�W���D�Q�G���O�R�V�V���D�F�F�R�X�Q�W�V���I�R�U��
�W�K�H���\�H�D�U�V�������������������������������������D�Q�G���������������W�K�H���¿�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���L�P�S�D�F�W���R�I���Z�K�L�F�K���R�Q���W�K�H���¿�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���V�W�D�W�H�P�H�Q�W�V���K�D�V��
remain unascertained.
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2017 2016
Note Rupees Rupees 

18 CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS

Cash and other equivalents 77,216                44,264                  
Current and other accounts 18.1 2,517,016,557    2,239,958,104      
Deposits maturing within 12 months 18.2 30,000,000         440,000,000         

2,547,093,773    2,680,002,368      

18.1

18.2

19 LOANS TO EMPLOYEES

Loans to employees - secured 19.1 181,767,723       72,949,886           

19.1 Loans to employees - secured

Non current portion of the loan 157,939,455       69,900,328           
Current portion of the loan 23,828,268         3,049,558             

181,767,723       72,949,886           

19.2

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,169,734           1,325,211             
Add: Disbursements during the year 2,621,000           1,261,347             
Less: Adjustments during the year (2,031,121)          (1,747,731)           
Balance at the end of the year 1,759,613           838,827                

19.3

19.4 The maximum month-endamountof theseloan during the year has beenamountingto Rs.
181,769,288 (2016: Rs. 80,105,483).
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Loansto employeesrepresentmark-upfree loansexceptmotor car loans,andthesearesecured
againstretirementbenefitsof respectiveemployeesincluding, whereapplicable,documentsof
assetsfor which the loanhasbeengiven.Motor car loanscarrymark-upat a rateof 10%(2016:
10%)perannum.Noneof the amountis eitherpastdueor impaired,consequentlyno provision
for bad or doubtful loans has been made.

This includesan amounttransferredby the Companyin bank accountof Window Retakaful
Operationsas per resolutionpassedby the Board of Directorsof the Companyin their 123rd
meeting held on June 16, 2017. 

This representsTerm DepositsReceipts(TDR) in local currencycarryingeffectiveinterestrate
rangingbetween 6.25% to 6.55%(2016:6.25%to 6.55%)per annum.Thesedepositsmature
within 12 months of the year end.

No loanhasbeenprovidedto theDirectorsof theCompany.Detailsof loansto Executivesof the
Company is as under: 
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2017 2016
Note Rupees Rupees 
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2017 2016
Note Rupees Rupees 

20 INVESTMENTS

Available-for-sale
Ordinary shares - listed 20.2 426,777,093       428,078,189         
Mutual fund units 20.3 1,377,204,671    1,957,007,894      
Ordinary shares - unlisted 20.4 617,613              617,613                

1,804,599,376    2,385,703,696      
Held-to-maturity

Pakistan Investment Bonds 20.5 2,426,809,141    2,978,233,840      
Treasury bills 20.5 1,759,054,473    1,127,806,300      

4,185,863,614    4,106,040,140      
Held-for-trading

Ordinary shares - listed 20.6 103,032,847       133,095,394         
6,093,495,837    6,624,839,230      
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20.1 Investments in related parties  

20.1.1 Available for sale

Name of company

Listed
National Bank of Pakistan 6,359,119          6,824,793          308,798,819      6,359,119          6,824,793          476,234,422      
National Refinery Limited 502,363             28,312,467        216,453,146      502,363             28,312,467        286,909,557      
Pakistan State Oil Company Limited 9,671                 371,225             2,834,667          8,127                 371,225             3,528,825          
Pakistan Petroleum Limited 396,000             27,388,953        81,540,360        396,000             27,388,953        74,519,280        
Sui Southern Gas Company Limited 12,694,227        36,461,488        387,046,981      12,694,227        36,461,488        463,339,286      
Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited * 8,698,203          17,110,611        822,936,986      8,698,203          17,110,611        709,512,419      

28,659,583        116,469,537      1,819,610,959   28,658,039        116,469,537      2,014,043,789   
Unlisted 

State Bank of Pakistan 4,900                 517,613             -                    4,900                 517,613             -                    
National Investment Trust Limited 79,200               100,000             -                    79,200               100,000             -                    

84,100               617,613             -                    84,100               617,613             -                    
28,743,683        117,087,150      1,819,610,959   28,742,139        117,087,150      2,014,043,789   

2017 2016

20.1.2 Held to maturity

Pakistan investment Bonds 2,426,809,141   2,978,233,840   
Treasury bills 1,759,054,473   1,127,806,300   

4,185,863,614   4,106,040,140   
20.1.3 Held for trading 

Name of company

Listed
National Bank of Pakistan 399,266             17,147,638        19,388,357        399,266             17,147,638        29,901,031        

2017 2016
Note Rupees Rupees 

20.2 Investment in listed companies - available-for-sale

Cost of investment in listed companies 20.2.1 432,599,270      433,472,850      
Less: Provision for diminution in value
Balance brought forward from last year (5,394,661)        (13,062,563)      
Provision made during the year (427,516)           -                    
Provision reversed during the year -                    7,667,902          

(5,822,177)        (5,394,661)        
20.2.1 426,777,093      428,078,189      

20.2.1 Book values and market values of investment in listed companies classified as available-for-sale are:
 

Name of the Company

Financial Services
Escort Investment Bank 16,846               25,269               264,482             16,846               25,269               67,384               

16,846               25,269               264,482             16,846               25,269               67,384               
Banks

Askari Bank Limited 7,276                 101,907             140,500             7,276                 101,907             181,536             
Bank Al-Falah Limited 9,232                 147,079             392,360             9,232                 147,079             350,447             
Faysal Bank Limited 77,049               391,273             1,638,062          70,045               391,273             1,525,580          
MCB Bank Limited** 573,370             106,797,403      121,737,918      370,432             55,357,113        88,096,138        
National Bank of Pakistan 6,359,119          6,824,793          308,798,819      6,359,119          6,824,793          476,234,422      
N.I.B Bank Limited** -                    -                    -                    28,420,050        51,440,290        51,440,290        
Silk Bank Limited 24,656               38,955               38,956               24,656               45,614               45,614               
The Bank of Punjab Limited 30,080               175,667             247,859             30,080               175,667             530,912             
United Bank Limited 1,024                 4,350                 192,481             1,024                 4,350                 244,634             

7,081,806          114,481,427      433,186,955      35,291,914        114,488,086      618,649,573      
Balance carried forward 7,098,652          114,506,696      433,451,437      35,308,760        114,513,355      618,716,957      

Book value
 ---------------- Rupees ---------------

2017 2016
 Number of 

shares / 
certificates / 

units 

 Book value Market value
 Number of 

shares / 
certificates / 

units 

 Book value Market value

 Rupees  Rupees 

2017 2016
 Number of 

shares / 
certificates / 

units 

 Book value  Market value 
 Number of 

shares / 
certificates / 

units 

 Book value  Market value 

 Rupees  Rupees 

2017 2016
 Number of 

shares / 
certificates / 

units 

 Book value  Market value 
 Number of 

shares / 
certificates / 

units 

 Book value  Market value 

 Rupees  Rupees 
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Name of company

Balance brought forward           7,098,652       114,506,696       433,451,437         35,308,760       114,513,355       618,716,957 
Insurance

Adamjee Insurance Company
Limited 1,398,536          32,124,622        72,681,916        1,398,536          32,124,622        103,687,459      
Asia Insurance Company Limited 33,104               224,800             615,734             33,104               224,800             615,734             

604,491             1,208,982          2,472,368          604,491             1,208,982          6,359,245          
Habib Insurance Company Limited 12,700               1,724                 174,625             12,700               1,724                 241,300             

22,029               -                    -                    22,029               -                    -                    
PICIC Insurance Company Limited 855,790             4,450,108          6,195,920          855,790             4,450,108          4,818,097          
Sterling Insurance Company Limited 23,250               -                    -                    23,250               -                    -                    

56,227               -                    -                    56,227               -                    -                    

852,774             166,165             13,200,944        768,265             166,165             17,116,944        
3,858,901          38,176,401        95,341,507        3,774,392          38,176,401        132,838,780      

Personal Goods
Brothers Textile Mills Limited 353                    -                    -                    353                    229                    2,122                 
Khurshid Spinning Mills Limited 7,600                 -                    -                    7,600                 -                    -                    
Sahrish Textile Mills Limited 13,510               -                    -                    13,510               -                    -                    
Pakistan Synthetics Limited 2,846                 21,252               57,916               2,846                 21,252               100,606             
Crescent Jute Products Limited 157,314             -                    -                    157,314             64,498               651,280             
Usman Textile Mills Limited 300                    -                    -                     300                    -                    -                    
Colony Textile Limited 118,552             149,762             486,063             118,552             149,762             688,787             
Kohinoor Industries Limited 11,681               10,513               44,388               11,681               10,513               92,981               

4,100                 -                    -                    4,100                 2,255                 17,466               
Taj Textile Mills Limited 5,600                 -                    -                    5,600                 -                    -                    

321,856             181,527             588,367             321,856             248,509             1,553,241          
General Industries

Packages Limited 821,714             90,388,540        418,934,449      821,714             90,388,540        698,867,757      
Hashmi Can Company Limited 5,250                 -                    -                    5,250                 -                    -                    

             826,964         90,388,540       418,934,449              826,964         90,388,540       698,867,757 
Household Goods

Hussain Industries Limited 15,820               -                    -                    15,820               -                    -                    
Towellers Limited 129,759             1,048,453          16,213,387        241,759             1,953,413          8,340,686          

145,579             1,048,453          16,213,387        257,579             1,953,413          8,340,686          
Food Producers

Imperial Sugar Mills Limited 39,924               71,863               778,518             39,924               71,863               353,727             
Kohinoor Sugar Mills Limited 28,963               92,579               1,540,008          26,451               92,579               1,658,478          
Pangrio Sugar Mills Limited 100,000             -                    -                    100,000             277,000             480,000             
Sakrand Sugar Mills Limited 23,800               129,948             344,624             11,900               10,948               91,273               
Shahtaj Sugar Mills Limited 397                    2,974                 58,010               397                    2,974                 14,204               
Sind Abadgar Sugar Mills Limited 98,500               492,500             1,743,450          98,500               492,500             2,413,250          
Universal Oil Mills Limited 30,000               -                    -                    30,000               -                    -                    

321,584             789,864             4,464,610          307,172             947,864             5,010,932          
Construction and Materials

Akzo Nobel Pakistan Limited 154,518             17,899,449        32,912,334        154,518             17,899,449        36,160,302        

17,300               -                    -                    17,300               27,853               -                    
Fauji Cement Company Limited 5,238                 17,286               131,002             5,238                 17,286               236,129             
Javedan Cement Limited 118                    1,126                 4,219                 118                    1,126                 4,004                 
D.G Khan Cement Limited 12,000               228,360             1,604,640          12,000               228,360             2,660,760          
Zeal Pak Cement Factory Limited 39,130               -                    -                    39,130               -                    -                    

228,304             18,146,221        34,652,195        228,304             18,174,074        39,061,195        
Tobacco

Philip Morris (Pakistan) Limited 21,206               36,893               67,859,200        21,206               36,893               57,673,110        
Pakistan Tobacco Company Limited 68,740               229,533             147,648,021      70,140               234,209             100,511,321      

89,946               266,426             215,507,221      91,346               271,102             158,184,431      
Balance carried forward 12,891,786        263,504,128      1,219,153,173   41,116,373        264,673,258      1,662,573,979   

Union Insurance Company of 
Pakistan Limited

2017 2016
 Number of 

shares / 
certificates / 

units 

 Book value Market value
 Number of 

shares / 
certificates / 

units 

 Book value Market value

 Rupees  Rupees 

Crescent Star Insurance Company 
Limited

Pakistan Guarantee Insurance 
Company Limited

United Insurance Company of 
Pakistan Limited

Muhammad Farooq Textile Mills 
Limited 

Dada Bhoy Cement Industries 
Limited
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Name of company

Balance brought forward         12,891,786       263,504,128    1,219,153,173         41,116,373       264,673,258    1,662,573,979 

Oil and Gas
National Refinery Limited 502,363             28,312,467        216,453,146      502,363             28,312,467        286,909,557      
Pakistan State Oil Company Limited 9,671                 371,225             2,834,667          8,127                 371,225             3,528,825          
Pakistan Petroleum Limited 396,000             27,388,953        81,540,360        396,000             27,388,953        74,519,280        

908,034             56,072,645        300,828,173      906,490             56,072,645        364,957,662      
Electricity

The Hub Power Company Limited 582,085             10,773,636        52,969,735        582,085             10,773,636        71,875,856        
K-Electric Limited 385,548             863,418             2,432,808          385,548             863,418             3,612,585          
Kot Addu Power Company Limited 30,000               1,481,678          1,617,000          30,000               1,481,678          2,364,000          

13,963               -                    -                    13,963               9,774                 -                    
1,011,596          13,118,732        57,019,543        1,011,596          13,128,506        77,852,441        

Gas Water and Multiutilities
Sui Southern Gas Company Limited 12,694,227        36,461,488        387,046,981      12,694,227        36,461,488        463,339,286      
Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited * 8,698,203          17,110,611        822,936,986      8,698,203          17,110,611        709,512,419      

21,392,430        53,572,099        1,209,983,967   21,392,430        53,572,099        1,172,851,704   
Engineering

52,333               -                    -                    52,333               39,249               -                    

43,776               364,738             9,619,776          43,776               364,738             14,927,616        
96,109               364,738             9,619,776          96,109               403,987             14,927,616        

Fixed Line Telecommunication
Worldcall Telecom Limited 3,672                 3,672                 10,355               3,672                 3,672                 10,135               

3,672                 3,672                 10,355               3,672                 3,672                 10,135               
Forestry and Paper

Security Papers Limited 928,689             195,915             113,374,353      928,689             195,915             91,605,883        
928,689             195,915             113,374,353      928,689             195,915             91,605,883        

Chemicals
Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited 20,035               452,878             712,044             20,035               452,878             1,025,992          
ICI Pakistan Limited 307,281             35,595,431        235,976,444      307,281             35,595,431        305,354,348      
Lotte Chemical Pakistan Limited 1,206,602          3,874,321          8,651,336          1,206,602          3,874,321          10,038,929        
Linde Pakistan Limited 235                    22,534               51,900               1,100                 105,477             214,907             

1,534,153          39,945,164        245,391,724      1,535,018          40,028,107        316,634,176      

Total 38,766,469        426,777,093      3,155,381,063   66,990,377        428,078,189      3,701,413,596   

* Frozen shares

20.3 Investment in Mutual Fund Units

Cost of investments 20.3.1    1,701,457,734    1,957,007,894 
Less: Provision for impairment
Balance brought forward from last year                        -                          -   
Provision made during the year      (324,253,063)                       -   

     (324,253,063)                       -   
1,377,204,671   1,957,007,894   

2017 2016

 Book value Market value

 Rupees  Rupees 

 Number of 
shares / 

certificates / 
units 

 Book value Market value
 Number of 

shares / 
certificates / 

units 
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**The shareholdersof MCB Bank Limited at their extraordinarymeetingheld on January23, 2017haveunanimouslyapprovedandadoptedthe schemeof
amalgamationof NIB Bank Limited with and into MCB Bank Limited throughshareswaparrangementby issuingone new ordinary shareof MCB Bank
Limited for every140.043sharesof NIB Bank Limited underthe schemeof amalgamation.As per the said schemethe Companyacquired202,938shares
amounting to Rs. 51.440 million of MCB Bank Limited in exchange for 2,842,050 shares amounting to Rs. 51.440 million of NIB Bank Limited.

Southern Electric Power Company 
Limited

Dewan Automotive Engineering 
Limited
Pakistan Engineering Company 
Limited

This represents8,698,203ordinarysharesof Sui NorthernGasPipelinesLimited which are frozenon the basisof Governmentof Pakistan(GoP)directives
F.10(6&14)EN-94/2005dated April 13, 2005,as the sameform part of the strategicshareholdingunderthe control of the GoP.As a result,the Companyis
restrictedfrom selling, transferring,encumberingor otherwisedisposingof or dealingwith any interestin the said shares,including any future bonus/right
shares in respect thereof.



87

20.3.1 Book values and market values of investment in certificates and units of mutual funds classified as available-for-sale are:

Name of company

Open-End Mutual Funds
Pakistan Capital Market Fund 23,957               108,959             258,012             20,767               79,326               277,239             
National Investment Unit Trust         20.3.2 8,292,733          800,000,000      585,218,203      46,328,425        1,455,639,114   4,055,590,325   
JS Value Fund Limited 40,949               2,267,483          8,208,227          40,949               2,267,483          10,529,626        
Pakistan Stock Market Fund Limited 7,376                 170,657             671,395             6,779                 111,336             786,974             
NAFA Stock Fund 20,671,728        400,000,000      290,528,734      -                    -                    -                    
JS Growth Fund 3,496                 140,039             630,654             3,496                 140,039             780,132             

29,040,239        1,202,687,138   885,515,225      46,400,416        1,458,237,298   4,067,964,296   
Close-End Mutual Funds

PICIC Growth Fund 30,406,721        498,670,224      862,030,540      30,406,721        498,670,224      926,188,722      
PICIC Investment Fund 17,246               100,372             230,234             17,246               100,372             239,719             

30,423,967        498,770,596      862,260,774      30,423,967        498,770,596      926,428,441      
59,464,206        1,701,457,734   1,747,775,999   76,824,383        1,957,007,894   4,994,392,737   

20.3.2

20.3.3

2017 2016
Note Rupees Rupees 

20.4 Investment in unlisted companies

Cost of investment in unlisted companies 20.4.1 2,608,105          2,608,105          
Less: Provision for diminution in value
Balance brought forward from last year (1,990,492)        (1,990,492)        
Provision made during the year -                    -                    

(1,990,492)        (1,990,492)        
617,613             617,613             

20.4.1 Cost of investment in unlisted companies

Banks

4,900                 517,614             4,900                 517,614             

6,213                 618,227             6,213                 618,227             
11,113               1,135,841          11,113               1,135,841          

Mutual Funds

79,200               100,000             79,200               100,000             
Insurance

Indus Assurance Limited * 25,000               250,000             25,000               250,000             
Cotton and Textile

Afsar Textile Mills Limited * 1,000                 9,950                 1,000                 9,950                 
Kohinoor Cotton Mill Limited * 22,397               219,801             22,397               219,801             

23,397               229,751             23,397               229,751             
Chemical

Synthetic Chemical Limited * 20,000               200,000             20,000               200,000             
Vanaspati and Allied Industries

Burma Oil Limited * 861                    6,470                 861                    6,470                 
Burma Soap Limited * 64                      640                    64                      640                    

925                    7,110                 925                    7,110                 
Miscellaneous

Arag Industries Limited * 133,333             685,403             133,333             685,403             
292,968             2,608,105          292,968             2,608,105          

2017 2016
 Number of 

shares / 
certificates / 

units 

 Book value Market value
 Number of 

shares / 
certificates / 

units 

 Book value Market value

 Rupees  Rupees 
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2017 2016
 Number of

shares /
certificates 

 Book Value

(Rupees) 

 Number of
shares /

certificates 

 Book Value

(Rupees) 
Name of company

The Companyholds8,292,733units (2016:46,328,425units). The cost rangesfrom Rs. 96.47(2016:Rs. 63.24to Rs. 66.03)per unit. The units repurchase
price as at year end was Rs. 72.7 (2016: Rs. 90.00) per unit. 

The Companyhas recordedimpairmentamountingto Rs. 324.253million on National InvestmentUnit trust and NAFA Stock Fund on the accountof
permanent and significant decline in value of these units.

   State Bank of Pakistan 
   (Break-up value is Rs. 570,039 per share based
   on financial statements for the year ended June 30,  2017) 
   Governor: Mr. Ashraf Mahmood Wathra
   Industrial Development Bank of Pakistan * / **
   (Break-up value is Rs. Nil per share based on financial 
   statements for the year ended June 30, 2012)
   Chairman/Managing Director: Mr. Jamal Nasim

   National Investment Trust Limited 
   (Break-up value is Rs. 13,624 per share based on financial 
   statements for the year ended June 30, 2017) 
   Managing Director & Chairman:  Mr. Shahid Ghaffar
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*

**

2017 2016 2017 2016

20.5 Held-to-maturity - secured 1,759,054,473  1,127,806,300  2,426,809,141  2,978,233,840  

Tenure

Face value - Rupees in million 1,774                1,147                2,440                3,000                
Market value - Rupees in million 1,759                1,133                2,641                3,240                
Maturity dates 

Profit repayment - frequency On maturity On maturity On maturity On maturity
Principal repayment - frequency On maturity On maturity On maturity On maturity

20.5.1

2017 2016
Note Rupees Rupees 

20.6 Investment in listed companies - held-for-trading

Cost of investment in listed companies 21.6.1 58,502,720       58,502,720       
Prior year gain 74,592,674       47,089,678       
(Loss) / gain for the current year (30,062,547)      27,502,996       

Gain on revaluation of investments 44,530,127       74,592,674       
103,032,847     133,095,394     

20.6.1 Book values and market values of investment in listed companies classified as held-for-trading are:

Cement 
Attock Cement Limited 57,500              4,990,500         10,408,075       57,500              4,990,500         19,334,950       

Commercial Banks
National Bank of Pakistan 399,266            17,147,638       19,388,357       399,266            17,147,638       29,901,031       

Electricity
The Hubpower Company Limited 100,004            4,524,181         9,100,364         100,004            4,524,181         12,348,494       

Technology and Communication
Pakistan Telecommunication
Company Limited 319,500            5,543,325         4,169,475         319,500            5,543,325         5,489,010         

Chemicals
Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited 60,000              7,028,400         4,746,600         60,000              7,028,400         6,262,200         
Engro Fertilizer Company Limited 17,078              1,019,533         1,156,522         17,078              1,019,533         1,160,962         
Engro Corporation  Limited 170,786            15,719,143       46,923,454       170,786            15,719,143       53,983,747       
Engro Polymer and Chemicals Limited 250,000            2,530,000         7,140,000         250,000            2,530,000         4,615,000         

497,864            26,297,076       59,966,576       497,864            26,297,076       66,021,909       
1,374,134         58,502,720       103,032,847     1,374,134         58,502,720       133,095,394     
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8.75% 
to 12.00%

The amountof PakistanInvestmentBondsincludesRs. 308 million (2016:Rs. 308 million) depositedwith the StateBank of Pakistanas requiredby
section 29 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000. 

Effective interest rate / coupon rate - 
per annum

5.90% 
to 5.96%

5.85% 
to 5.94%

8.75% 
to 12.00%

2017 2016

Name of company

 Number of 
shares / 

certificates / 
units 

 Book value 
Market 
value

 Number of 
shares / 

certificates / 
units 

Financial statements of these companies are not available, therefore, the break-up value and the name of the Chief Executive Officer is not presented. 

 Book value 
Market 
value

January 2018  
to July 2018

January 2017  
to May 2017

March 2018  
to March 2025

July 2016  
to March 2025

IndustrialDevelopmentBankof Pakistan(IDBP) hasbeendissolvedandall assetsandliabilities arevestedin the IndustrialDevelopmentBankLimited
(IDBL) vide Government of Pakistan (GoP)'s Finance division's S.R.O. (1)/2012 dated November 13, 2012.  
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year

3 months to 1 
year

3 years to 10 
year

3 years to 10 
year
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2017 2016 2017 2016

20.5 Held-to-maturity - secured 1,759,054,473  1,127,806,300  2,426,809,141  2,978,233,840  

Tenure

Face value - Rupees in million 1,774                1,147                2,440                3,000                
Market value - Rupees in million 1,759                1,133                2,641                3,240                
Maturity dates 

Profit repayment - frequency On maturity On maturity On maturity On maturity
Principal repayment - frequency On maturity On maturity On maturity On maturity

20.5.1

2017 2016
Note Rupees Rupees 

20.6 Investment in listed companies - held-for-trading

Cost of investment in listed companies 21.6.1 58,502,720       58,502,720       
Prior year gain 74,592,674       47,089,678       
(Loss) / gain for the current year (30,062,547)      27,502,996       

Gain on revaluation of investments 44,530,127       74,592,674       
103,032,847     133,095,394     

20.6.1 Book values and market values of investment in listed companies classified as held-for-trading are:

Cement 
Attock Cement Limited 57,500              4,990,500         10,408,075       57,500              4,990,500         19,334,950       

Commercial Banks
National Bank of Pakistan 399,266            17,147,638       19,388,357       399,266            17,147,638       29,901,031       

Electricity
The Hubpower Company Limited 100,004            4,524,181         9,100,364         100,004            4,524,181         12,348,494       

Technology and Communication
Pakistan Telecommunication
Company Limited 319,500            5,543,325         4,169,475         319,500            5,543,325         5,489,010         

Chemicals
Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited 60,000              7,028,400         4,746,600         60,000              7,028,400         6,262,200         
Engro Fertilizer Company Limited 17,078              1,019,533         1,156,522         17,078              1,019,533         1,160,962         
Engro Corporation  Limited 170,786            15,719,143       46,923,454       170,786            15,719,143       53,983,747       
Engro Polymer and Chemicals Limited 250,000            2,530,000         7,140,000         250,000            2,530,000         4,615,000         

497,864            26,297,076       59,966,576       497,864            26,297,076       66,021,909       
1,374,134         58,502,720       103,032,847     1,374,134         58,502,720       133,095,394     

 Rupees  Rupees 
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8.75% 
to 12.00%

The amountof PakistanInvestmentBondsincludesRs. 308 million (2016:Rs. 308 million) depositedwith the StateBank of Pakistanas requiredby
section 29 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000. 

Effective interest rate / coupon rate - 
per annum

5.90% 
to 5.96%

5.85% 
to 5.94%

8.75% 
to 12.00%

2017 2016

Name of company

 Number of 
shares / 

certificates / 
units 

 Book value 
Market 
value

 Number of 
shares / 

certificates / 
units 

Financial statements of these companies are not available, therefore, the break-up value and the name of the Chief Executive Officer is not presented. 

 Book value 
Market 
value

January 2018  
to July 2018

January 2017  
to May 2017

March 2018  
to March 2025

July 2016  
to March 2025

IndustrialDevelopmentBankof Pakistan(IDBP) hasbeendissolvedandall assetsandliabilities arevestedin the IndustrialDevelopmentBankLimited
(IDBL) vide Government of Pakistan (GoP)'s Finance division's S.R.O. (1)/2012 dated November 13, 2012.  

Pakistan Investment BondsTreasury bills

3 months to 1 
year

3 months to 1 
year

3 years to 10 
year

3 years to 10 
year

---------------------------------- Rupees -------------------------------------
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2017 2016
Note Rupees Rupees 

22 AMOUNT DUE FROM OTHER 
INSURERS AND REINSURERS

Amount due from other insurers 4,660,061,719    4,824,648,843      
Amount due from other reinsurers 158,204,030       233,397,326         

4,818,265,749    5,058,046,169      
Less: Provision for doubtful debts 22.3 (524,634,292)      (524,634,292)       

4,293,631,457    4,533,411,877      

22.1

Upto 3 months 1,414,232,396    400,610,734         
Over 3 months and above 130,675,726       997,637,350         

1,544,908,122    1,398,248,084      

22.2

22.3

        524,634,292          386,000,000 
                         -            138,634,292 
        524,634,292          524,634,292 

23 PREMIUM AND CLAIMS RESERVES
RETAINED BY CEDANTS 

Premium reserves 1,000,814           1,085,599             
Losses reserves 29,229,894         29,711,419           
Cash losses received from ceding companies (2,111,200)          (2,111,200)           
Less: Provision for doubtful debts (17,000,000)        (17,000,000)         

23.1 11,119,508         11,685,818           

This includesgrossamountRs.1,544,908,122(2016:Rs.1,398,248,084)duefrom relatedparty
National InsuranceCompanyLimited. The ageanalysisof amountduefrom relatedparty is as
follows:

Thesebalancesarebasedon underlyinginformationandreturnssubmittedby insurers/reinsurers
periodically.During the prior years,a ReconciliationCommitteewas formedvia Office Order
No. 169asapprovedby theAudit Committeeof theBoardduringits meetingheldon August25,
2015 to reconcileandagreethe balancesrelating to other insurer/ reinsurerto ensurethat the
balancesareaccurateandcompletein respectof informationavailable.Theprovisionheldis also
subject to review as a part of this exercise.

Page - 34

22.1 & 22.2

Provision for doubtful debts

Balance as at January 01
Provision made during the year
Balance as at December 31
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2017 2016
Note Rupees Rupees 

22 AMOUNT DUE FROM OTHER 
INSURERS AND REINSURERS

Amount due from other insurers 4,660,061,719    4,824,648,843      
Amount due from other reinsurers 158,204,030       233,397,326         

4,818,265,749    5,058,046,169      
Less: Provision for doubtful debts 22.3 (524,634,292)      (524,634,292)       

4,293,631,457    4,533,411,877      

22.1

Upto 3 months 1,414,232,396    400,610,734         
Over 3 months and above 130,675,726       997,637,350         

1,544,908,122    1,398,248,084      

22.2

22.3

        524,634,292          386,000,000 
                         -            138,634,292 
        524,634,292          524,634,292 

23 PREMIUM AND CLAIMS RESERVES
RETAINED BY CEDANTS 

Premium reserves 1,000,814           1,085,599             
Losses reserves 29,229,894         29,711,419           
Cash losses received from ceding companies (2,111,200)          (2,111,200)           
Less: Provision for doubtful debts (17,000,000)        (17,000,000)         

23.1 11,119,508         11,685,818           

This includesgrossamountRs.1,544,908,122(2016:Rs.1,398,248,084)duefrom relatedparty
National InsuranceCompanyLimited. The ageanalysisof amountduefrom relatedparty is as
follows:

Thesebalancesarebasedon underlyinginformationandreturnssubmittedby insurers/reinsurers
periodically.During the prior years,a ReconciliationCommitteewas formedvia Office Order
No. 169asapprovedby theAudit Committeeof theBoardduringits meetingheldon August25,
2015 to reconcileandagreethe balancesrelating to other insurer/ reinsurerto ensurethat the
balancesareaccurateandcompletein respectof informationavailable.Theprovisionheldis also
subject to review as a part of this exercise.
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22.1 & 22.2

Provision for doubtful debts

Balance as at January 01
Provision made during the year
Balance as at December 31

23.1

2017 2016
Rupees Rupees 

24 ACCRUED INVESTMENT INCOME 

Dividend receivable 5,667,442           4,386,956             
Interest on held to maturity investments 103,468,121       152,417,559         
Interest on deposits maturity within 12 months 1,000,848           236,640                
Rentals receivable 55,866,324         35,167,107           

166,002,735       192,208,262         
Provision for dividend receivable (1,997,534)          (1,997,534)           

164,005,201       190,210,728         

25 REINSURANCE RECOVERIES AGAINST 
OUTSTANDING CLAIMS

Facultative business
Fire 542,010,270       512,049,237         
Marine hull 27,864,737         20,071,757           
Aviation 46,134,162         1,122,889,424      
Engineering 706,346,795       91,506,402           

1,322,355,964    1,746,516,820      
Treaty 837,338,073       986,265,323         

2,159,694,037    2,732,782,143      

26 DEFERRED COMMISSION EXPENSE

Facultative business
Fire 125,689,869       124,714,997         
Marine cargo 1,358,132           653,118                
Marine hull 4,165,682           1,803,517             
Accident and others 7,643,989           8,426,354             
Aviation 153,634,349       1,328,262             
Engineering 57,799,801         29,061,745           

350,291,822       165,987,993         
Treaty 371,911,480       432,298,403         

722,203,302       598,286,396         

This representsretentionof depositsby the cedingcompaniesfrom the total amountcededby
them to the Company.

Page - 35
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2017 2016
Note Rupees Rupees 

27 PREPAYMENTS

Prepayment reinsurance ceded-Facultative business
Fire 92,323,006         76,875,785           
Marine hull 20,614,061         8,001,608             
Accident and others 6,852,358           2,124,549             
Aviation 972,286,299       859,502,506         
Engineering 583,719,828       565,351,377         

1,675,795,552    1,511,855,825      
Prepayment reinsurance ceded-Treaty business 318,843,821       250,725,804         

1,994,639,373    1,762,581,629      
Other prepayments 5,686,763           5,688,672             

2,000,326,135    1,768,270,301      

28 SUNDRY RECEIVABLE 

Employee welfare fund receivable 888,135              888,135                
Export Credit Guarantee schemes 28.1 56,142,435         56,142,435           
Receivable against National Co-insurance Scheme 4,939,471           4,939,471             
Receivable against War Risk Insurance-Karachi28.2 7,724,303           7,724,303             
Receivable against War Risk Insurance-Lahore 10,541,524         10,541,524           
Receivable From Economic Cooperation 
Organization (ECO) Reinsurance Pool 28.3 -                      36,215,493           
Receivable from Investment Corporation of 
Pakistan 28.4 4,565,000           4,565,000             
Advances 6,734,130           5,539,389             
Security deposits 4,917,065           4,901,855             
Receivable from Sindh Revenue Board 17.2 2,573,888,727    442,424,338         
Receivable from NAB 28.5 86,219,000         -                       
Others 8,924,148           6,846,620             

2,765,483,938    580,728,563         
Less: Provision for doubtful debts

   Balance brought forward from last year (70,800,842)        (42,729,624)         
   Provision made during the year (28,071,218)        (28,071,218)         
   Provision written off during the year 18,107,746         -                       

(80,764,314)        (70,800,842)         
2,684,719,626    509,927,721         

Page - 36
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2017 2016
Note Rupees Rupees 

27 PREPAYMENTS

Prepayment reinsurance ceded-Facultative business
Fire 92,323,006         76,875,785           
Marine hull 20,614,061         8,001,608             
Accident and others 6,852,358           2,124,549             
Aviation 972,286,299       859,502,506         
Engineering 583,719,828       565,351,377         

1,675,795,552    1,511,855,825      
Prepayment reinsurance ceded-Treaty business 318,843,821       250,725,804         

1,994,639,373    1,762,581,629      
Other prepayments 5,686,763           5,688,672             

2,000,326,135    1,768,270,301      

28 SUNDRY RECEIVABLE 

Employee welfare fund receivable 888,135              888,135                
Export Credit Guarantee schemes 28.1 56,142,435         56,142,435           
Receivable against National Co-insurance Scheme 4,939,471           4,939,471             
Receivable against War Risk Insurance-Karachi28.2 7,724,303           7,724,303             
Receivable against War Risk Insurance-Lahore 10,541,524         10,541,524           
Receivable From Economic Cooperation 
Organization (ECO) Reinsurance Pool 28.3 -                      36,215,493           
Receivable from Investment Corporation of 
Pakistan 28.4 4,565,000           4,565,000             
Advances 6,734,130           5,539,389             
Security deposits 4,917,065           4,901,855             
Receivable from Sindh Revenue Board 17.2 2,573,888,727    442,424,338         
Receivable from NAB 28.5 86,219,000         -                       
Others 8,924,148           6,846,620             

2,765,483,938    580,728,563         
Less: Provision for doubtful debts

   Balance brought forward from last year (70,800,842)        (42,729,624)         
   Provision made during the year (28,071,218)        (28,071,218)         
   Provision written off during the year 18,107,746         -                       

(80,764,314)        (70,800,842)         
2,684,719,626    509,927,721         
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28.1

28.2

28.3

28.4 InvestmentCorporationof Pakistan(ICP) wasamalgamatedwith andinto IndustrialDevelopment
Bank of Pakistan in terms of Schemeof Amalgamation-2006.All the shareholdersof ICP
(Defunct) were convertedinto creditors.The saidamountrepresentsreceivablefrom ICP in this
regard.The matteris still pendingfor recordingof evidencesfrom thedefendantside(Investment
Development Bank Pakistan Limited).

Page - 37

This representsthetotal amountof incometax depositedby theCompanysincetheyear1984-85to
the year 2001-02in respectof Export CreditsGuaranteescheme.The incomeof the respective
yearsundertheSchemewastransferredto theGovernment.The incometax department,however,
taxedECGSincomeby clubbing it with the Company'sincome.The Company'sappealin this
respectwhich was pendingbeforeHigh Court hasbeendismissed.This amountwas previously
classifiedas advancetax and has beentransferredas amount receivablefrom the Ministry of
Finance, Government of Pakistan. 

The Companyhad filed an appealin the SupremeCourt of Pakistanin this respectwhich vide
orderdatedAugust21,2007grantedleaveto appealfiled by theCompanyagainstthe judgmentof
the High Court. The matter is now before Alternate Dispute Resolution Committee (ADRC).

The ADRC thereforeconcludedthat they would refer the matterto the FBR for providing a legal
expertto the ADRC or to re-constitutethe ADRC by including thereinthe legal expertwho can
interpretanddecideon theapplicabilityof theArticle 165A of theConstitutionof Pakistanin this
case.

FBR via letter No. 2(48) IT-Jud/2006-ADR/45098-Rregrettedthe requestfor reconstitutionof
ADRC. Thereforethe Companypursuedits casewith the SupremeCourt of Pakistanwhich has
alreadygranteda leaveto appealagainstorderof High Court hasremandedbackthe caseto the
High Court of Sindh wherethe matter is still pendingfor dateof hearing.During the year, the
Companyhasrecordedprovision amountingto Rs. 28.071million (2016: Rs. 28.071million) in
these financial statements.

Amount is receivablefrom Governmentof Pakistanagainstexpensesfor runningtheaffairsof War
Risk InsuranceDepartment(the Department)working underthesupervisionof PakistanInsurance
Company(defunct).TheDepartmentwassetup for insuranceof losseswhich couldhaveoccurred
due to war.

The amountrepresentsthe managementfee receivablefrom EconomicCooperationOrganization
(ECO) in respectof arrangementsof meetingsin Pakistanin relation to ECO Reinsurancepool.
During the year, the Companyhasadjustedoff this balanceamountingto Rs. 36.215million in
these financial statements against the payments received in prior years.
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28.5

2017 2016
Note Rupees Rupees 

29 FIXED ASSETS

29.1 Land and Building 

355,951              374,685                
223,622              223,622                

13,283,334         13,982,457           
29.5 13,862,907         14,580,764           

29.2

1,315,321           1,397,565             
Office equipments 2,279,343           1,882,666             
Books 346,084              337,337                
Computers 5,845,403           6,533,208             

29.5 9,786,151           10,150,776           
29.3 Electrical installation, air-conditioning and lifts 

Electrical installation 1,458,458           1,823,072             
Air-conditioning 3,789,733           4,737,166             
Lifts 1,194,442           1,493,053             

29.5 6,442,633           8,053,291             
29.4 Motor vehicles 29.5 6,479,029           6,141,640             

29.5 36,570,720         38,926,471           

Book Value

After lodging complaintNAB in collaborationwith SECPconductedInvestigationsunderthe
provisionsof NationalAccountabilityOrdinance,1999andduringthecourseof investigation,it
was revealedfrom the availablerecordthat, PGIL causedloss to PRCL of Rs. 86.219million
(Principal+ consequentialgains)by way of submitting87 bogusreinsuranceclaimsasagainst
the losscalculatedby SECPi.e Rs.57.156million by the way of 57 bogusreinsuranceclaims.
The said investigationhasbeenculminatedas the accusedPIGL optedfor PleaBargainunder
section25(b) of NationalAccountabilityOrdinance,1999of Rs.86.219million asliability and
accusedis convictedby the accountabilitycourt no. 4, Lahorevide order datedDecember13,
2017andtherecoveredamountfrom accusedwill bereimbursedto thePRCLwithin duecourse
of time.

During the year,NationalAccountabilityBureauLahoreoffice informedthe Companythrough
letterRef No. 1(9)/1780/CO-M/T-37/NAB-LdatedAugust24,2017aboutconductinganinquiry
which has beenforwardedby SECPunder section18 of National Accountability Ordinance,
1999 which statesthat SECPconductedan investigationunderthe InsuranceOrdinance,2000
with the findings that, throughbogusclaims the PakistanGeneralInsuranceCompanyLimited
(PGIL) has causedloss to the Companyamountingto Rs. 57.156million on accountof re-
insurance bogus claims.
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2017 2016
Note Rupees Rupees 

29 FIXED ASSETS

29.1 Land and Building 

355,951              374,685                
223,622              223,622                

13,283,334         13,982,457           
29.5 13,862,907         14,580,764           

29.2

1,315,321           1,397,565             
Office equipments 2,279,343           1,882,666             
Books 346,084              337,337                
Computers 5,845,403           6,533,208             

29.5 9,786,151           10,150,776           
29.3 Electrical installation, air-conditioning and lifts 

Electrical installation 1,458,458           1,823,072             
Air-conditioning 3,789,733           4,737,166             
Lifts 1,194,442           1,493,053             

29.5 6,442,633           8,053,291             
29.4 Motor vehicles 29.5 6,479,029           6,141,640             

29.5 36,570,720         38,926,471           

Book Value

After lodging complaintNAB in collaborationwith SECPconductedInvestigationsunderthe
provisionsof NationalAccountabilityOrdinance,1999andduringthecourseof investigation,it
was revealedfrom the availablerecordthat, PGIL causedloss to PRCL of Rs. 86.219million
(Principal+ consequentialgains)by way of submitting87 bogusreinsuranceclaimsasagainst
the losscalculatedby SECPi.e Rs.57.156million by the way of 57 bogusreinsuranceclaims.
The said investigationhasbeenculminatedas the accusedPIGL optedfor PleaBargainunder
section25(b) of NationalAccountabilityOrdinance,1999of Rs.86.219million asliability and
accusedis convictedby the accountabilitycourt no. 4, Lahorevide order datedDecember13,
2017andtherecoveredamountfrom accusedwill bereimbursedto thePRCLwithin duecourse
of time.

During the year,NationalAccountabilityBureauLahoreoffice informedthe Companythrough
letterRef No. 1(9)/1780/CO-M/T-37/NAB-LdatedAugust24,2017aboutconductinganinquiry
which has beenforwardedby SECPunder section18 of National Accountability Ordinance,
1999 which statesthat SECPconductedan investigationunderthe InsuranceOrdinance,2000
with the findings that, throughbogusclaims the PakistanGeneralInsuranceCompanyLimited
(PGIL) has causedloss to the Companyamountingto Rs. 57.156million on accountof re-
insurance bogus claims.
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PRC House
PRC Tower-leasehold land 
PRC Tower-building

Furniture and fixtures

Furniture, fixtures, books, office equipments and computer
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2017 2016
Rupees Rupees 

30 ASSETS RELATING TO BANGLADESH
(FORMER EAST PAKISTAN)-NET

Assets relating to Bangladesh comprise of fixed assets and investments are as follows:

Fixed assets
  Land and building 8,608,000           8,608,000             
  Furniture and fixtures 4,000                  4,000                    

8,612,000           8,612,000             
Investments 
  Stock and shares 7,112,000           7,112,000             
  Debenture 250,000              250,000                

7,362,000           7,362,000             
15,974,000         15,974,000           

Liabilities 
   Outstanding claims (4,952,000)          (4,952,000)           
   Other liabilities (809,000)             (809,000)              

(5,761,000)          (5,761,000)           
10,213,000         10,213,000           

Provision for loss on assets in Bangladesh (10,213,000)        (10,213,000)         
-                      -                       

31 OTHER MANAGEMENT EXPENSES 

Salaries, wages and benefits 498,540,000       396,657,978         
Employee benefits

Officers' pension 64,937,000         71,691,000           
Employees' pension 26,812,000         23,251,000           
Post retirement medical benefits 52,294,000         58,076,000           
Gratuity fund 2,825,000           2,649,000             
Compensated absences 30,621,000         19,244,000           

177,489,000       174,911,000         
Travelling and conveyance 9,957,807           9,875,268             
Entertainment 12,737,546         9,661,417             
Subscription and membership 828,172              463,177                
Legal fees 4,116,376           5,654,000             

Page - 41
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2017 2016
Rupees Rupees 

Communication 1,157,169           934,069                
Insurance 4,649,691           4,716,356             
Utilities 31,983,989         32,484,116           
Printing and stationary 1,994,987           4,075,787             
Repairs and renewal 1,512,430           1,796,822             
Medical 20,677,805         20,300,620           
Rent, rates and taxes 4,913,269           9,855,774             
Computer related expenses 2,977,472           2,661,167             
Consultancy and professional charges 2,428,787           1,864,350             
Newspaper and periodicals 7,263,323           7,569,544             
Financial and CDC charges 198,683              484,291                
Others 620,457              538,291                

784,046,963       684,504,028         
Expenses allocated to rental income (22,698,251)        (17,026,310)         
Expenses allocated to investment income (17,180,306)        (10,389,460)         

744,168,406       657,088,258         
31.1 General Provident Fund

Size of the fund 116,045,285       98,488,402           

Cost of investment made 149,130,808       148,953,887         

Fair value of investment 186,305,912       188,732,365         

Number of members 189                     205                       

Composition of fund
  Special account in scheduled bank(s) 1,201,253           1,955,482             
  Government securities 140,000,000       139,068,850         
  National investment trust units 7,929,555           7,929,555             

149,130,808       148,953,887         

Percentage Percentage 
Percentage of investments made in.
  Special account in scheduled bank(s) 1% 1%
  Government securities 94% 93%
  National investment trust units 5% 5%

Page - 42
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2017 2016
Rupees Rupees 
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31.1.1

2017 2016
Note Rupees Rupees 

32 RENTAL INCOME

Rental income 32.1 78,966,046         72,805,590           
Investment property related expenditures (22,698,251)        (17,026,310)         

56,267,795         55,779,280           

32.1 The rental income represents income from letting out of PRC Tower.

33 OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets
Interest on deposits 33.1 605,453              143,349                
Interest on loans 1,066                  11,347                  

Income from non-financial assets
Miscellaneous income 33.2 117,892,302       3,578,214             

-                      28,081,208           

33.3 -                      54,586,075           
Gain on disposal of fixed assets -                      812                       
Other 28.5 13,396,589         -                       

131,895,410       86,401,005           

33.1

33.2

The investmentout of provident fund have beenmadein accordancewith the provisionsof
Section 218 of  the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules made thereunder.

TheCurrentyearfinancialstatementsof the fund havenot beenauditedtill thedateof issuance
of financial statements.

Due to foreign reinsurers no longer
payable written back

Liabilities no longer payable written back

During the year, the CompanyhasreceivedRs. 113.729million from the National Investment
Trust (NIT) againstZakat deductedunder the Zakat & Ushr Ordinance,1980 on dividend
income. 

This representsinterestreceivedby theCompanyin respectof premiumdepositsretainedby the
ceding companies.
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2017 2016
Note Rupees Rupees 

34 OTHER CHARGES

Provision against amount due from other insurers
insurers and reinsurers 22.3 -                      138,634,292         
Provision against receivable of Export Credit
Guarantee Scheme 28.1 28,071,218         28,071,218           
Provision against receivable of 
Economic Cooperation 
Organization (ECO) Reinsurance Pool 28.3 18,244,677         -                       
Provision against lease rental payable-KPT 9,226,859           -                       

55,542,754         166,705,510         

35 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

Depreciation-fixed assets 5,642,213           5,963,255             
Depreciation - investment properties 1,618,958           1,724,245             
Director's meetings 17,753,908         15,794,520           
Advertisement and business promotion 3,350,420           3,579,523             
Training and research 5,837,711           2,611,108             
Repairs and maintenance 19,400,244         17,604,863           
Shares transaction costs 9,445                  7,271                    
Auditors' remuneration 35.1 762,300              726,000                
Other certification 544,330              185,860                
Others 5,221,309           5,525,978             

60,140,838         53,722,622           
35.1 Auditors' remuneration

Audit fee 554,400 528,000                
Interim review 138,600 132,000                
Out of pocket expense 69,300 66,000                  

762,300              726,000                
36 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

36.1 Provision for taxation

Current 725,108,217       452,684,601         
Prior 29,168,233         -                       

754,276,450       452,684,601         

Page - 44
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2017 2016
Note Rupees Rupees 

34 OTHER CHARGES
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insurers and reinsurers 22.3 -                      138,634,292         
Provision against receivable of Export Credit
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36.2

36.3

ATIR passedorderagainstthe CompanydatedOctober03, 2016for tax demandundersection
161,defaultsurchargeundersection205andpenaltyfor defaultundersection182for theperiod
from January01, 2013to September30, 2014amountingto Rs.260,214,169on non-deduction
of withholding tax on commissionexpense.The Companyhas challengedthe order dated
October 03, 2016 passed by ATIR in the Honorable High Court of Sindh.

Page - 45

Further,the Additional CommissionerInland Revenue(ACIR) has issuedshow causenotices
undersection122(5A),124and129of the IncomeTax Ordinance,2001for theTax Year2015
and2016disallowingexpenditureson the accountof exchangeloss,provisionfor compensated
absencesandlosson measurementof definedbenefitobligationanddemandedthe incometax
amounting to Rs. 3.851 million and 224.242 million, respectively.

The AssistantCommissionerof Inland Revenue(ACIR) has also issuedshow causenotices
undersection161/205and122(5A)of theIncomeTax Ordinance,2001for theTax Years2008,
2009, 2010, 2012, 2015 and 2016 for non-deductionof tax on commissionpaid to local
reinsurancecompanies.The tax demandagainsttheseshowcausesnoticesareamountingto Rs.
217,443,078,Rs. 252,776,143Rs. 20,931,772,Rs. 148,318,431,Rs. 55,305,922and Rs.
182,669,756,respectively.TheCompanyfiled appealsagainstthe orderspertainingto tax years
2010,2015and2016which havebeendecidedagainsttheCompanyby CIRA beforeAppellate
Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR), which are still pending in ATIR.  

Further, ATIR has passedthe order in favor of the Companythrough a single order dated
December19,2016,againsttax demandsupheldby CommissionerInlandRevenuefor Tax Year
2008,2009and2012undersection122(5A)amountingto Rs.217,443,078,Rs.252,776,143and
Rs.148,318,431respectively.Pursuantto ATIR order,theCompanyfiled anappealeffectorder
beforeFBR (department),which is grantedandthuseliminatedtheaforementionedtax liabilities
andalsocreatedrefundsto Companyamountingto Rs.10,096,413andRs.36,669,758for Tax
Year 2008andTax Year2009,respectivelyandfor Tax year2012the appealis pendingbefore
Additional Commissioner FBR. 

The AssistantCommissionerof Inland Revenue(ACIR) has also issuedshow causenotices
undersection122(5A)of the IncomeTax Ordinance,2001for the Tax years2009,2010,2011,
2012,2013,2014,2015,2016and2017by initiating theconceptof single/onebasketincometo
insuranceindustry, i.e., clubbingall othersourcesof income(e.g.dividendand rental income)
into businessincome for charging the businessrate of tax under Fourth Scheduleof the
Ordinance,andchargingworker welfare fund anddisallowanceof actuarialloss throughother
comprehensiveincome)from TY 2015andonwards,Thetax demandagainsttheseshowcauses
noticesare amountingto Rs. 370,037,784,Rs. 97,552,694,Rs. 443,039,254,Rs. 320,013,363,
Rs. 191,405,099,Rs. 542,653,335,Rs, 498,357,134and Rs. 742,375,175respectively.The
Companyfiled appealbeforeCommissionerInlandRevenueAppeal(CIRA). TheCommissioner
Inland RevenueAppeal (CIRA) passedorder against the Companyfor tax year 2009, the
Company filed an appeal before ATIR, which is pending for final verdict.
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2017 2016
Rupees Rupees 

36.4 Relationship between tax expenses and accounting profit

Profit before tax      2,973,540,710       1,426,947,799 

Tax at the applicable rate of 30% (2016: 31%) 892,062,213       442,353,818         
Tax effect of income that are deductible in
determining the taxable profit (166,953,993)      10,330,783           
Prior year tax adjustment 29,168,233         -                       
Charge  for the year 754,276,450       452,684,601         

37 EARNINGS PER SHARE - basic and diluted

Profit after tax for the year - Rupees 2,219,264,260    974,263,198         

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 300,000,000       300,000,000         

Earnings per share - Rupees - basic and diluted 7.40                    3.25                      

37.1

Page - 46

No figure for diluted earningsper sharehasbeenpresentedasthe Companyhasnot issuedany
instrumentwhich whenexercisedwould haveanimpacton earningspershare,i.e. therewereno
convertible dilutive potential shares outstanding on December 31, 2017. 

Out of aboveorders,in Tax year2010,2011,2015and2016,certainissueshavebeendecidedin
favour of the Company by CIRA. Pursuant to these orders, the Company filed appeal
effect/refundapplicationsto FBR (department),this resultedin reductionin tax liability for Tax
year2010and2016amountingto Rs.82,409,843,Rs.224,242,362andrefundcreatedin favor
of Companyfor Tax year 2011 and 2015 amountingto Rs, 220,905,279,and Rs. 24,228,768
respectively. The Company is contesting remaining outstanding issues before ATIR, (i.e
withholding tax on commissionexpense,disallowanceof actuarial loss IAS19 through other
comprehensive income).

The CommissionerInland Revenue(Appeals-II)passedorderdatedAugust20, 2017in respect
of appealfiled by the Companyagainstre-assessmentorder for Tax year2015datedApril 24,
2017 passedby ACIR under section 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 on
remeasurement of defined benefit obligation in favor of Company.



103

2017 2016
Rupees Rupees 
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No figure for diluted earningsper sharehasbeenpresentedasthe Companyhasnot issuedany
instrumentwhich whenexercisedwould haveanimpacton earningspershare,i.e. therewereno
convertible dilutive potential shares outstanding on December 31, 2017. 

Out of aboveorders,in Tax year2010,2011,2015and2016,certainissueshavebeendecidedin
favour of the Company by CIRA. Pursuant to these orders, the Company filed appeal
effect/refundapplicationsto FBR (department),this resultedin reductionin tax liability for Tax
year2010and2016amountingto Rs.82,409,843,Rs.224,242,362andrefundcreatedin favor
of Companyfor Tax year 2011 and 2015 amountingto Rs, 220,905,279,and Rs. 24,228,768
respectively. The Company is contesting remaining outstanding issues before ATIR, (i.e
withholding tax on commissionexpense,disallowanceof actuarial loss IAS19 through other
comprehensive income).

The CommissionerInland Revenue(Appeals-II)passedorderdatedAugust20, 2017in respect
of appealfiled by the Companyagainstre-assessmentorder for Tax year2015datedApril 24,
2017 passedby ACIR under section 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 on
remeasurement of defined benefit obligation in favor of Company.

38 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

38.1 Financial risk management objectives and policies

38.2 Credit risk and concentration of credit risk 

2017 2016
Rupees Rupees 

Bank deposits 2,547,016,557     2,679,958,104     
Investments 1,907,632,223     2,518,799,090     
Amount due from other insurers and reinsurers 4,293,631,457     4,533,411,877     
Premium and claim reserves retained by cedants 11,119,508          11,685,818          

TheCompany’sactivitiesexposeto financialrisks,credit risk, liquidity risk andmarketrisk
(including interest / mark-up rate risk and price risk). The Company’s overall risk
managementprogrammefocuseson the unpredictabilityof financial marketsandseeksto
minimizepotentialadverseeffectson the financialperformance.Overall, risksarisingfrom
the Company’s financial assetsand liabilities are limited. The Company consistently
managesits exposureto financial risk without anymaterialchangefrom previousperiodin
the mannerdescribedin notes below. The Board of Directors (the Board) has overall
responsibility to the establishmentand oversight of company’s risk management
framework.The Board is alsoresponsiblefor developingthe company’srisk management
policies.

Credit risk is therisk thatariseswith thepossibilitythatonepartyto a financial instrument
will fail to dischargeits obligationandcausethe otherparty to incur a financial loss.The
Companyattemptsto control credit risk by monitoring credit exposuresby undertaking
transactionswith a largenumberof counterpartiesin variousindustriesandby continually
assessing the credit worthiness of counterparties. 

Concentrationof credit risk occurswhena numberof counterpartieshavea similar typeof
businessactivities.As a result,anychangein economic,political or otherconditionswould
effect their ability to meetcontractualobligationsin similar manner.TheCompany’scredit
risk exposure is not significantly different from that reflected in the financial statements.

The managementmonitors and limits the company’s exposureto credit risk through
monitoringof client’s exposureandconservativeestimatesof provisionsfor doubtfulassets,
if any.Themanagementis of theview that it is not exposedto significantconcentrationof
credit risk as its financial assetsare adequatelydiversified in entitiesof soundfinancial
standing, covering various industrial sectors. 

The carrying amount of financial assetsrepresentsthe maximum credit exposureas
specified below:
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2017 2016
Rupees Rupees 

Accrued investment income 60,537,080          37,793,169          
Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims 2,159,694,037     2,732,782,143     
Sundry receivables 2,684,719,626     509,927,721        

13,664,350,488   13,024,357,922   

2017 2016

Upto three months 2,149,542            785,382               
Over three months but upto one year 1,866,055            1,958,524            
Over one year but upto two year 462,766               950,668               
Over two years but upto three year 132,280               544,804               
Over three years 280,445               818,667               

4,891,088            5,058,045            
Provision against amount due from other 
insurers and reinsurers (524,634)             (524,634)             

4,366,454            4,533,411            

Page - 48

The Companydid not hold any collateral against the above during the year. General
provision is made for receivablesaccordingto the company’spolicy. The impairment
provision is written off when the company expects that it cannot recover the balance due. 

The ageanalysisof receivablescomprising'amountdue from other insurers'and 'amount
due from other reinsurers' is as follows:

Rupees in thousand

The credit quality of the Company'sbank balancescan be assessedwith referenceto
external credit ratings as follows:

2017 2016

National Bank of Pakistan A-1+ AAA JCR-VIS 73,178                          8,029                     
Bank Al-Habib Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA 2,398,042                     2,648,191              
United National Bank Limited, London A-1+ AAA JCR-VIS 5,818                            5,472                     
Bank Alfalah Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA 16,979                          16,306                   
Faysal Bank Limited A-1+ AA JCR-VIS -                                21                          
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA -                                -                        
Sindh Bank Limited A1+ AA JCR-VIS 53,000                          -                        

2,547,017                     2,678,019              

Short 
term 

Long 
term

Rating 
agency Rupees in thousand

Rating

2,149,542 
1,866,055 

462,766 
59,458

280,445 
4,818,266

4,293,632
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2017 2016
Rupees Rupees 
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insurers and reinsurers (524,634)             (524,634)             

4,366,454            4,533,411            
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The Companydid not hold any collateral against the above during the year. General
provision is made for receivablesaccordingto the company’spolicy. The impairment
provision is written off when the company expects that it cannot recover the balance due. 

The ageanalysisof receivablescomprising'amountdue from other insurers'and 'amount
due from other reinsurers' is as follows:

Rupees in thousand

The credit quality of the Company'sbank balancescan be assessedwith referenceto
external credit ratings as follows:

2017 2016

National Bank of Pakistan A-1+ AAA JCR-VIS 73,178                          8,029                     
Bank Al-Habib Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA 2,398,042                     2,648,191              
United National Bank Limited, London A-1+ AAA JCR-VIS 5,818                            5,472                     
Bank Alfalah Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA 16,979                          16,306                   
Faysal Bank Limited A-1+ AA JCR-VIS -                                21                          
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA -                                -                        
Sindh Bank Limited A1+ AA JCR-VIS 53,000                          -                        

2,547,017                     2,678,019              

Short 
term 

Long 
term

Rating 
agency Rupees in thousand

Rating

38.3 Liquidity risk

38.4
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Market risk

Market risk is a risk that the value of a financial instrumentwill fluctuateas a result of
changesin market prices. The Companyis exposedto market risk with respectto its
investments.Thecompanyhasinvestedits fundsin governmentsecurities,ordinaryshares,
NationalInvestmentTrustUnits andcloseendedmutualfundsresultingin risk arisingfrom
fluctuationin the rateof interestanddividendearnedthereonandthe possibilityof capital
gains or losses arising from the sale of these investments.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the companywill beunableto meetits fundingrequirements.
To guard againstthe risk, the companyhas diversified funding sourcesand assetsare
managedwith liquidity in mind,maintaininga healthybalanceof cashandcashequivalents
and readily marketablesecurities.The maturity profile is monitoredto ensureadequate
liquidity.

The following are the contractualmaturitiesof financial liabilities, including estimated
interest payments on an undiscounted cash flow basis:

December 31, 2017
Provision for outstanding claims 4,713,650    4,713,650     4,713,650                     -                        
Amount due to other insurers / reinsurers 1,957,776    1,957,776     1,957,776                     -                        

18,343         18,343          -                                18,343                   
Other creditors and accruals 33,228         33,228          33,228                          -                        
Accrued expenses 14,160         14,160          14,160                          -                        
Retention money payable 6,368           6,368            6,368                            -                        
Unclaimed dividend 129,369       129,369        129,369                        -                        
Surplus profit payable 1,213           1,214            1,213                            -                        

6,874,107    6,874,107     6,855,764                     18,343                   

December 31, 2016
Provision for outstanding claims 4,590,672    4,590,672     4,590,672                     -                        
Amount due to other insurers / reinsurers 1,964,346    1,964,346     1,964,346                     -                        

19,064         19,064          -                                19,064                   
Other creditors and accruals 26,027         26,027          26,027                          -                        
Accrued expenses 19,909         19,909          19,909                          -                        
Retention money payable 6,368           6,368            6,368                            -                        
Unclaimed dividend 119,431       119,431        119,431                        -                        
Surplus profit payable 1,213           1,214            1,213                            -                        

6,747,029    6,747,029     6,727,965                     19,064                   

Rupees in thousand

Premium and claim reserves retained 
from retrocessionaires 

Carrying 
amount

Contractual 
cash flows

Maturity in 
one year

Maturity 
exceeding 
one year

Premium and claim reserves retained 
from retrocessionaires 
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Sensitivity analysis

December 31, 2017
10% increase 5,006,190        5,506,809        330,409           500,619           
10% decrease 4,505,571        (330,408)          (500,619)          

December 31, 2016
10% increase 8,828,902        9,711,792        582,708           882,890           
10% decrease 7,946,012        (582,707)          (882,890)          

38.5 Fair value of financial instruments 

38.6 Interest/ Mark-up rate risk

Rupees in thousands

Fair value is the amountfor which an assetcould be exchangedor a liability settled,between
knowledgeable,willing partiesin an arm’s lengthtransaction.The carryingvaluesof all financial
assetsandfinancial liabilities approximatetheir fair valuesexceptfor equityanddebtinstruments
held whose fair values have been disclosed in their respective notes to these financial statements. 

TheCompanyinvestsin securitiesandhasdepositsthat aresubjectto interest/ mark-upraterisk.
Interest/ mark-upraterisk to theCompanyis therisk of changesin marketinterest/ mark-uprates
reducingtheoverall returnon its interestbearingsecurities.TheCompanylimits interest/ mark-up
raterisk by monitoringchangesin interest/ mark-upratesin the currenciesin which its cashand
investmentsaredenominated.The following tableprovidesinformationaboutthe exposureof the
Companyto interest/ mark-upraterisk at thebalancesheetdatebasedon contractualre-pricingor
maturity dates which ever is earlier: 
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The Companyminimizessuchrisk by havinga diversified investmentsportfolio. In addition,the
Company actively monitors the key factors that affect investment market.

The tablebelow summarizescompany’sequityprice risk asof December31, 2017and2016and
showsthe effectsof a 10% increaseanda 10% decreasein marketpricesasat the yearend.The
selectedchangedoesnot reflect what could be consideredto be the bestor worst casescenarios.
Indeed,resultscould be worsein company'sequity investmentportfolio becauseof the natureof
equity markets.

Fair value

Estimated fair 
value after 
change in 

prices

Increase / (decrease) in

Shareholders' 
equity

Profit / 
before tax
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Financial assets
Cash and bank deposits 5.00 to 8.00 2,171,059      -                   -                   2,171,059         376,035            2,547,094         
Investments 5.90 to 12 2,231,885      808,704            1,145,274         4,185,864         1,907,632         6,093,496         

-                   -                -                   -                   -                    4,293,631         4,293,631         

-                   -                -                   -                   -                    11,120              11,120              
Accrued investment income -                   -                -                   -                   -                    164,005            164,005            

-                   -                -                   -                   -                    2,159,694         2,159,694         
Sundry receivables -                   -                -                   -                   -                    110,831            110,831            

Subtotal 4,402,944      808,704            1,145,274         6,356,923         9,022,948         15,379,871       
Financial liabilities

Provision for outstanding claims -                   -                -                   -                   -                   4,713,650         4,713,650         
Deferred liability - employee benefits -                   -                -                   -                   -                   2,193,560         2,193,560         
Long term deposits -                   -                -                   -                   -                   17,153              17,153              

-                   -                -                   -                   -                   1,957,776         1,957,776         

-                   -                -                   -                   -                   18,343              18,343              
Other creditors and accruals -                   -                -                   -                   -                   30,840              30,840              
Accrued expenses -                   -                -                   -                   -                   14,160              14,160              
Retention money payable -                   -                -                   -                   -                   6,368                6,368                
Unclaimed dividend -                   -                -                   -                   -                   129,369            129,369            
Surplus profit payable -                   -                -                   -                   -                   1,213                1,213                

Subtotal -                -                   -                   -                   9,082,432         9,082,432         

Total 4,402,944    808,704          1,145,274       6,356,923       (59,484)           6,297,439       

Interest risk sensitivity gap 4,402,944      808,704            1,145,274         6,356,923         

Cumulative interest risk sensitivity gap 4,402,944      5,211,648         6,356,922         

Financial assets
Cash and bank deposits 5.00 to 8.00 2,588,486      -                   -                   2,588,486         91,516              2,680,002         
Loans to employees 10 3,050             69,900              -                   72,950              -                    72,950              
Investment 5.46 to 12 2,158,799      441,967            1,145,274         3,746,040         2,518,799         6,264,839         

-                    
-                   -                -                   -                   -                    4,533,412         4,533,412         

-                    
-                   -                -                   -                   -                    11,686              11,686              

Accrued investment income -                   -                -                   -                   -                    190,211            190,211            
-                    

-                   -                -                   -                   -                    2,732,782         2,732,782         
Sundry receivables -                   -                -                   -                   -                    509,928            509,928            

Subtotal 4,750,335      511,867            1,145,274         6,407,476         10,588,334       16,995,810       
Financial liabilities

Provision for outstanding claims -                   -                 -                    -                    -                    4,590,672         4,590,672         
Deferred liability - employee benefits -                   -                 -                    -                    -                    1,296,307         1,296,307         
Long term deposits -                   -                 -                    -                    -                    16,299              16,299              

-                    
-                   -                 -                    -                    -                    1,964,346         1,964,346         

-                    
-                   -                 -                    -                    -                    19,064              19,064              

Other creditors and accruals -                   -                 -                    -                    -                    26,027              26,027              
Accrued expenses -                   -                 -                    -                    -                    19,909              19,909              
Retention money payable -                   -                 -                    -                    -                    6,368                6,368                
Unclaimed dividend -                   -                 -                    -                    -                    119,431            119,431            
Surplus profit payable -                   -                 -                    -                    -                    1,214                1,214                

Subtotal -                 -                    -                    -                    8,059,635         8,059,635         

Total 4,750,335    511,867          1,145,274       6,407,476       2,528,699       8,936,175       

Interest risk sensitivity gap 4,750,335      511,867            1,145,274         6,407,476         

Cumulative interest risk sensitivity gap 4,750,335      5,262,202         6,407,476         

Rupees in thousand

Total

Reinsurance recoveries 
against outstanding claims 

Effective 
rate per 
annum 

(percentage) 

Interest / mark-up bearing financial instruments Non-interest / 
mark-up 
bearing 
financial 

instruments 

Maturity 
up to 

one year

Maturity 
over one year 
to five years

Maturity 
more than 
five years

Sub total

Premium and claim reserves 
retained by cedants 

Amount due to other 
insurers / reinsurers 
Premium and claim reserves 
 retained from retrocessionaires 

Reinsurance recoveries 
against outstanding claims 

Amount due to other 
insurers / reinsurers 
Premium and claim reserves 
 retained from retrocessionaires 

Amount due from other 
insurers / reinsurers 

2016

Premium and claim reserves 
retained by cedants 

2017

Effective 
rate per 
annum 

(percentage) 

Interest / mark-up bearing financial instruments Non-interest / 
mark-up 
bearing 
financial 

instruments 

Total
Maturity 

up to 
one year

Maturity 
over one year 
to five years

Maturity 
more than 
five years

Sub total

Rupees in thousand

Amount due from other 
insurers / reinsurers 

2,684,720
11,596,837

2,684,720
17,953,760

2,514,405 8,871,328

4,106,0402,518,799

6,767,476 17,355,8105,110,355
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Sensitivity analysis 

Cash flow sensitivity -
Variable Rate Financial Liabilities -              -              -              -              
Cash flow sensitivity - 
Variable Rate Financial Assets 63,569         (63,569)       67,675         (67,675)       

38.7 Foreign currency risk

The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year: 

2017 2016 2017 2016

Average rate 105.32 102.37 135.78 156.50
Reporting date rate 110.50 104.60 148.72 155.04
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Rupees in thousand

Foreigncurrencyrisk is the risk that thevalueof financial instrumentwill fluctuatedueto change
in foreign exchangerates.The Companyprincipal transactionsarecarriedout in PakistaniRupee
andits exposureto foreignexchangerisk arisesprimarily with respectto US Dollar andUK Pound.
Financialassetsexposedto foreign exchangerisk amountedto Rs. 1,967.643million (2016: Rs.
2,042.115million) andRs. 0.390million (2016:Rs.0.338million) respectivelyat the endof the
year.

Rupees per US Dollars Rupees per UK Pound

Increase in profit / 
decrease (loss) upon 
change of 100 bps

Increase in profit / 
decrease (loss) upon 
change of 100 bps

The Companydoesnot accountfor any fixed rate financial assetsand liabilities at fair value
throughprofit or loss.Therefore,a changein interestratewill not effect fair valueof anyfinancial
instrument.For cashflow sensitivityanalysisof variablerate instrumentsa changeof 100 basis
pointsin interestratesat thereportingdatewould havedecreased/(increased)profit for theyearby
the amounts shown below. 

It is assumedthat the changesoccur immediatelyand uniformly to eachcategoryof instrument
containinginterestraterisk. Variationsin marketinterestratescouldproducesignificantchangesat
the time of early repayments.For thesereasons,actualresultsmight differ from thosereflectedin
the details specified below. The analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant.

2017 2016
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38.8 Insurance risk

Frequency and severity of claims

2017 2016

Fire 2,411,545          4,058,662          
Marine cargo 999,000             779,512             
Marine hull 977,498             759,000             
Accident and others 2,000,000          2,621,250          
Aviation 16,845,000        15,871,987        
Engineering 8,645,065          8,645,000          

31,878,108        32,735,411        

The risk under any insurancecontract is the possibility that the insuredevent occursand the
uncertaintyin theamountof compensationto theinsured.Generallymostinsurancecontractscarry
the insurance risk for a period of one year. 

The Company’srisk exposureis mitigatedby employinga comprehensiveframeworkto identify,
assess,manageand monitor risk. This framework includes implementationof underwriting
strategieswhich aim to ensurethat the underwrittenrisks arewell diversifiedin termsof type and
amountof the risk. Adequatereinsuranceis arrangedto mitigatethe effect of the potentiallossto
theCompanyfrom individual to largeor catastrophicinsuredevents.Further,theCompanyadopts
strict claim review policies including active managementand prompt pursuing of the claims,
regulardetailedreview of claim handlingproceduresand frequentinvestigationof possiblefalse
claims to reduce the insurance risk. 

Risk associatedwith generalinsurancecontractsincludesthe reasonablepossibility of significant
lossaswell asthe frequentoccurrenceof the insuredevents.This hasbeenmanagedby havingin
place underwriting strategy, reinsurance arrangements and proactive claim handling procedures.

The Company's class wise major risk exposure is as follows: 

Gross sum insured

The reinsurancearrangementsagainst major risk exposure include excess of loss, surplus
arrangementsandcatastrophiccoverage.The objectiveof havingsucharrangementsis to mitigate
adverse impacts of severe losses on Company’s net retentions.
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Rupees in thousands
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Uncertainty in the estimation of future claims payment

Key assumptions

Class 2017 2016
Assumed net loss ratio

Percentage

Fire 66% 33%
Marine cargo 58% 36%
Marine hull 207% 45%
Accident and others 4% 61%
Aviation 106% 45%
Engineering 115% 28%

The assumed net of reinsurance loss ratios for each class of business is as follows:
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The principal assumptionunderlying the liability estimationof IBNR and PremiumDeficiency
Reservesis that the Company’sfuture claim developmentwill follow similar historicalpatternfor
occurrenceandreporting.Themanagementusesqualitativejudgmentto assesstheextentto which
past occurrenceand reporting patternwill not apply in future. The judgment includesexternal
factors e.g. treatment of one-off occurrenceclaims, changes in market factors, economic
conditions,etc. The internal factorssuchas portfolio mix, policy conditionsand claim handling
procedures are further used in this regard.

Claimson generalinsurancecontractsarepayableon a claim occurrencebasis.The Companyis
liable for all insuredeventsthatoccurduringthetermof theinsurancecontractincludingtheevent
reported after the expiry of the insurance contract term.

An estimatedamountof theclaim is recordedimmediatelyon the intimation to theCompany.The
estimationof the amount is basedon managementjudgmentor preliminary assessmentby the
independentsurveyorappointedfor this purpose.The initial estimatesincludeexpectedsettlement
costof theclaims.Theestimationof provisionof claimsincurredbut not reported(IBNR) is based
on analysis of the past claim reporting pattern.

There are several variable factors which affect the amount and timing of recognizedclaim
liabilities. TheCompanytakesall reasonablemeasuresto mitigatethe factorsaffectingtheamount
andtiming of claim settlements.However,uncertaintyprevailswith estimatedclaim liabilities and
it is likely that final settlementof theseliabilities maybedifferent from initial recognizedamount.
Similarly, theprovisionfor claimsincurredbut not reportedis basedon historicreportingpatternof
the claims;hence,actualamountof incurredbut not reportedclaimsmay differ from the amount
estimated.
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Uncertainty in the estimation of future claims payment

Key assumptions

Class 2017 2016
Assumed net loss ratio

Percentage

Fire 66% 33%
Marine cargo 58% 36%
Marine hull 207% 45%
Accident and others 4% 61%
Aviation 106% 45%
Engineering 115% 28%

The assumed net of reinsurance loss ratios for each class of business is as follows:
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The principal assumptionunderlying the liability estimationof IBNR and PremiumDeficiency
Reservesis that the Company’sfuture claim developmentwill follow similar historicalpatternfor
occurrenceandreporting.Themanagementusesqualitativejudgmentto assesstheextentto which
past occurrenceand reporting patternwill not apply in future. The judgment includesexternal
factors e.g. treatment of one-off occurrenceclaims, changes in market factors, economic
conditions,etc. The internal factorssuchas portfolio mix, policy conditionsand claim handling
procedures are further used in this regard.

Claimson generalinsurancecontractsarepayableon a claim occurrencebasis.The Companyis
liable for all insuredeventsthatoccurduringthetermof theinsurancecontractincludingtheevent
reported after the expiry of the insurance contract term.

An estimatedamountof theclaim is recordedimmediatelyon the intimation to theCompany.The
estimationof the amount is basedon managementjudgmentor preliminary assessmentby the
independentsurveyorappointedfor this purpose.The initial estimatesincludeexpectedsettlement
costof theclaims.Theestimationof provisionof claimsincurredbut not reported(IBNR) is based
on analysis of the past claim reporting pattern.

There are several variable factors which affect the amount and timing of recognizedclaim
liabilities. TheCompanytakesall reasonablemeasuresto mitigatethe factorsaffectingtheamount
andtiming of claim settlements.However,uncertaintyprevailswith estimatedclaim liabilities and
it is likely that final settlementof theseliabilities maybedifferent from initial recognizedamount.
Similarly, theprovisionfor claimsincurredbut not reportedis basedon historicreportingpatternof
the claims;hence,actualamountof incurredbut not reportedclaimsmay differ from the amount
estimated.

Sensitivity analysis

 

2017 2016 2017 2016

10% increase in loss 373,997         333,556   246,838             220,147             
10% decrease in loss (373,997)        (333,556)  (246,838)            (220,147)            

38.9 Claims development

38.10
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TheCompanycontinuesto remainunderobligationof thecedingcompaniesduringthevalidity of
the contractandasa result it remainsliable for the portion of outstandingclaimsreinsuredto the
extent that reinsurer fails to meet the obligation under their agreements.

An analysisof grossamountduefrom otherinsurersandreinsurersrecognizedby the ratingof the
entity from which it is due are as follows: 

The Companyfurther evaluatesthe financial conditionof cedingcompaniesaswell asit reinsures
to minimize its exposures to significant losses from reinsurance insolvencies.

Therisksassociatedwith the insurancecontractsarecomplexandsubjectto a numberof variables
which complicatequantitativesensitivityanalysis.The Companymakesvariousassumptionsand
techniquesbasedon pastclaimsdevelopmentexperience.This includesindicationssuchasaverage
claims cost, ultimate claims numbersand expectedloss ratios. The Companyconsidersthat the
liability for insuranceclaims recognizedin the balance sheet is adequate.However, actual
experience will differ from the expected outcome.

As the Companyentersinto short term insurancecontracts,it doesnot assumeany significant
impact of changesin marketconditionson unexpiredrisks. However,someresultsof sensitivity
testingaresetout below,showingthe impactof claimspaidon profit beforetax netof reinsurance
recoveries.

Profit before tax Shareholders' equity

Rupees in thousand Rupees in thousand

Thedevelopmentof claimsagainstinsurancecontractsissuedis not disclosedasuncertaintyabout
the amount and timing of claim settlement is usually resolved within one year.

Reinsurance and retrocession arrangements 

The Company in the normal course of business,undertakesreinsurancebusinessfrom local
insurancecompaniesandcontrolsits exposureto potentiallossesfrom largerisk, by retrocessionto
variousforeign companies.Its significantportionof reinsuranceandretrocessionis effectedunder
treaty pact and excess of loss contracts.
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2017 2016

A or above 2,939,782          3,137,246          
BBB 188                    81,435               
Others 1,902,288          1,839,365          
Total 4,842,258          5,058,046          

39 Capital management

Page - 56

Capitalmanagementobjectivesandrequirementsrelatedto regulatory,solvencyandpaidupcapital
requirementsare set and regulatedby the Securitiesand ExchangeCommissionof Pakistan
(SECP).Theseobjectivesandrequirementsareput in placeto ensuresufficient solvencymargins.
Further,objectiveare set by the Companyto maintaina strongcredit rating and healthycapital
ratiosin orderto supportbusinessobjectives,maximizeshareholdersvalueandprovidereturnsfor
benefits for other stakeholders. 

The Company managesits capital structure by monitoring return on net assetsand makes
adjustmentsto it in the light of changesin economicconditions.In orderto maintainor adjustthe
capitalstructure,theCompanymayadjusttheamountof dividendpaidto shareholdersor issuenew
shares.

The Companycompliesthe externallyimposedcapital requirementsduring the reportedfinancial
year and no change were made to it's objectives, policies and procedures from the previous year.

Rupees in thousand
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2017 2016

A or above 2,939,782          3,137,246          
BBB 188                    81,435               
Others 1,902,288          1,839,365          
Total 4,842,258          5,058,046          

39 Capital management
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Capitalmanagementobjectivesandrequirementsrelatedto regulatory,solvencyandpaidupcapital
requirementsare set and regulatedby the Securitiesand ExchangeCommissionof Pakistan
(SECP).Theseobjectivesandrequirementsareput in placeto ensuresufficient solvencymargins.
Further,objectiveare set by the Companyto maintaina strongcredit rating and healthycapital
ratiosin orderto supportbusinessobjectives,maximizeshareholdersvalueandprovidereturnsfor
benefits for other stakeholders. 

The Company managesits capital structure by monitoring return on net assetsand makes
adjustmentsto it in the light of changesin economicconditions.In orderto maintainor adjustthe
capitalstructure,theCompanymayadjusttheamountof dividendpaidto shareholdersor issuenew
shares.

The Companycompliesthe externallyimposedcapital requirementsduring the reportedfinancial
year and no change were made to it's objectives, policies and procedures from the previous year.

Rupees in thousand
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41.3 Information about major customer

2017 2016

National Insurance Company Limited 

Facultative business
Fire 136,600              100,097              
Marine hull 53,173                 99,532                 
Aviation 1,241,162           1,124,158           
Accident 8,974                   -                      
Engineering 1,220,401           1,156,502           

2,660,310           2,480,289           
Treaty business 72,323                 91,262                 

2,732,633           2,571,551           

34% 29%

42 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

2017 2016

Major shareholder 

Government of Pakistan (GoP) through Ministry of Commerce
Dividend paid for the preceding year 403,919,355       336,599,463       
State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan 
Dividend paid for the preceding year 219,696,603       183,080,503       

Thefollowing tablepresentspremiumwritten from transactionswith externalcustomerwheresuch
amounts equals and / or exceed ten per cent of the total premium written by the Company. 

Rupees in thousands

Reliance on customer - percentage of 
total premium written 

Governmentof Pakistanthrough Ministry of Commerceowns 51% (2016: 51%) sharesof the
Company.Therefore,all entitiesownedandcontrolledby the Governmentof Pakistanarerelated
partiesof the Company.The relatedpartiescomprisemajor shareholders,associatedcompany,
directors,companieswith commondirectorship,key managementpersonnel,andstaff retirement
benefitfunds.TheCompanyin normalcourseof businesspaysfor electricity,gasandtelephoneto
entitiescontrolledby Governmentof Pakistanwhich arenot materialandhencenot disclosedin
thesefinancialstatements.Moreover,transactionswith relatedparties,otherthanremunerationand
benefitsto keymanagementpersonnelunderthetermsof their employmentasdisclosedin note42
of these financial statements, are as follows:

Rupees

Page - 62
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Rupees
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2017 2016
Note Rupees Rupees 

Related parties by virtue of GoP's holdings 
State Bank of Pakistan

Purchase of investment (Treasury Bills) 4,980,217,625    3,400,625,165    
Dividend received during the year 49,000                 49,000                 

Pakistan State Oil Company Limited
Dividend received during the year 174,730              101,588              

National Investment Trust Limited 
Dividend received during the year 68,013,000         71,280,000         

National Insurance Company Limited
Premium due but unpaid 1,398,248,084    1,223,801,607    
Insurance premium written during the year 2,732,632,405    2,571,551,034    
Premium received (2,585,972,368)   (2,397,104,557)   
Balance at the end of year 1,544,908,121    1,398,248,084    

Insurance commission paid 232,151,405       28,732,086         
Insurance claims paid 1,644,660,387    100,341,617       

National Investment Trust (NIT) amount received 113,721,803       -                      

Other related parties
Contribution to staff benefit funds

42 80,150,324         44,001,790         

43

Page - 63

REMUNERATION INCLUDING BENEFITS AND PERQUISITES OF KEY
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Remuneration including benefits and 
perquisites of key management personnel

December 31, 2017

Chief Executive 1,337,094              �r�������������������������������������������� 2,142,760             70,493                    3,550,347             

Executives 47,918,112            -                        27,730,334           4,501,878               80,150,324           

49,255,206            -                        29,873,094           4,572,371               83,700,671           

December 31, 2016

Chief Executive 69,634                   -                       42,064                  21,932                    133,630                

Executives 32,035,707            108,905                10,008,146           1,849,032               44,001,790           

32,105,341            108,905                10,050,210           1,870,964               44,135,420           

Rupees 

Managerial 
remuneration 

including bonus

Retirement 
benefits 

House rent and 
other benefits 

Utilities and 
others

Total

�5�H�F�H�L�Y�H�G���I�U�R�P���0�L�Q�L�V�W�U�\���R�I���5�H�O�L�J�L�R�X�V���$
u�D�L�U�V���R�Q��
account of wrong deduction of Zakat on NIT Units
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2017 2016

Chief Executive 1 1
Directors

Executive directors  -  - 
Non-executive directors 7 8

Executives 15 15

2017 2016

44 EMPLOYEES

Number of employees at the year end 
Permanent 188 207
Others 18 14

Average number of employees during the year
Permanent 198 213
Others 16 14

Number of person(s)
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Number of person(s)

The Company makes contribution based on actuarial calculations to executives.Company
maintainedcarshavebeenprovidedto certainExecutivesof theCompanyandtheyarealsoentitled
to free medicalfacilities including hospitalization,club subscriptionandotherbenefitsasper the
Company's policy.

Executivemeansany employeewho satisfiesthe definition / criteria as mentionedin the fourth
schedule to the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984. 

Non Executive Directors are entitled to meeting fee for attendingeach board and committee
meetingamountingto Rs. 0.1 million andotherbenefitscomprisingof accommodation,air travel
allowanceandconveyanceallowanceasrecommendedby Boardon its 121stmeetingheldon April
6, 2017andapprovedin the Annual GeneralMeetingof the Companyheld on April 29, 2017in
accordancewith the articles of associationof the Company.Additionally,as per manadatory
requirementof Codeof CorporateGovernance, thecompanyprovidedDirectorTrainingProgram
to three Directors amounting to Rs. 0.546 million.

Meeting fees including other benefits and performance linked incentives of non executive
directors

Number of 
Directors

Meeting fee Accommodation  Air Travel Conveyance Total 

2017
Non Executive Directors 7                       9,080,000         1,999,938           3,196,246         667,205            14,943,389       

2016
Non Executive Directors 8                       9,744,000         1,673,442           2,797,387         1,579,680         15,794,509       

Rupees 
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45 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

45.1 Carrying amount versus fair value

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value

Financial Assets
- Cash and bank deposits 2,547,093,773           2,547,093,773           2,680,002,368           2,680,002,368           
- Investments

Available-for-sale
Ordinary shares - listed 426,777,093              3,155,381,063           428,078,189              3,701,413,596           
Mutual fund units 1,377,204,671           1,747,775,999           1,957,007,894           4,994,392,737           
Ordinary shares - unlisted 617,613                     617,613                     617,613                     617,613                     

Held-to-maturity
Pakistan Investment Bonds 2,426,809,141           2,426,809,141           2,978,233,840           2,978,233,840           
Treasury Bills 1,759,054,473           1,759,054,473           1,127,806,300           1,127,806,300           

Held-for-trading
Ordinary shares - listed 103,032,847              103,032,847              133,095,394              133,095,394              

6,093,495,838           9,192,671,136           6,624,839,230           12,935,559,479         
- Amount due from other insurers and reinsurers 4,293,631,457           4,293,631,457           4,533,411,877           4,533,411,877           
- Premium and claim reserves retained by cedants 11,119,508                11,119,508                11,685,818                11,685,818                
- Accrued investment income 164,005,201              164,005,201              190,210,728              190,210,728              
- Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims 2,159,694,037           2,159,694,037           2,732,782,143           2,732,782,143           
- Sundry receivables 110,830,898              110,830,898              67,503,383                67,503,383                

Financial Liabilities
- Provision for outstanding claims (including IBNR) 4,713,650,200           4,713,650,200           4,590,671,732           4,590,671,732           
- Deferred liability - employee benefits 2,193,559,697           2,193,559,697           1,296,307,190           1,296,307,190           
- Long term deposits 17,153,494                17,153,494                16,299,040                16,299,040                
- Amount due to other insurers and reinsurers 1,957,775,833           1,957,775,833           1,964,346,423           1,964,346,423           
- Premium and claim reserves retained 

from retrocessionaires 18,343,273                18,343,273                19,063,743                19,063,743                
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----------------Rupees----------------

The following table compares the carrying amounts and fair values of the Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities as at December 31, 2017.

The Company considers that the carrying amount of the following financial assets and financial liabilities are a reasonable approximation of their fair value: 

As at December 31, 2017 As at December 31, 2016

----------------Rupees----------------
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- Premium and claim reserves retained 

from retrocessionaires 18,343,273                18,343,273                19,063,743                19,063,743                
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----------------Rupees----------------

The following table compares the carrying amounts and fair values of the Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities as at December 31, 2017.

The Company considers that the carrying amount of the following financial assets and financial liabilities are a reasonable approximation of their fair value: 

As at December 31, 2017 As at December 31, 2016

----------------Rupees----------------

-   Loan to Employees 181,767,723 181,767,723 72,949,886

2,684,719,626 2,684,719,626 509,927,721 509,927,721

72,949,886
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Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value

- Other creditors and accruals 30,839,636                30,839,636                23,570,020                23,570,020                
- Accrued expenses 14,160,297                14,160,297                19,909,377                19,909,377                
- Retention money payable 6,368,183                  6,368,183                  6,368,183                  6,368,183                  
- Dividend payable 129,369,029              129,369,029              119,430,677              119,430,677              
- Surplus profit payable 1,212,602                  1,212,602                  1,212,602                  1,212,602                  

45.2 Fair value hierarchy

Financial assets and financial liabilities are classified in their entirety into only one of the three levels.

The fair value hierarchy has the following levels: 

- Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities  
-

- Level  3  -  inputs  for  the  asset  or  liability  that  are  not  based  on  observable  market  data (unobservable inputs). 

Financial assets measured at fair value

103,032,847              103,032,847              -                             -                             

Ordinary shares - listed 3,155,381,063           -                             -                             3,155,381,063           
Mutual fund units 1,377,204,671           -                             -                             1,377,204,671           
Ordinary shares - unlisted 617,613                     -                             -                             617,613                     

4,636,236,195           103,032,847              -                             4,533,203,348           

Investments at fair value through profit or loss - held for 
trading

As at December 31, 2017 As at December 31, 2016
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-------------------------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------------------------

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Investments at fair value- available for sale

Thecarryingvaluesof all financialassetsandliabilities reflectedin the financialstatementsapproximatetheir fair values.Fair valueis theamountfor which an
assetcouldbeexchanged,or a liability settled,betweenknowledgeable,willing parties,in anarm'slengthtransaction.Thelevel in thefair valuehierarchywithin
which the financial asset or financial liability is categorised is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement.   

Level  2  -  inputs  other  than  quoted  prices  included  within  Level  1  that  are  observable  for  the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or 
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) 

The table below analysesfinancial instrumentsmeasuredat the end of the reportingperiod by the level in the fair value hierarchyinto which the fair value
measurement is categorised:

As at December 31, 
2017

----------------Rupees---------------- ----------------Rupees----------------

33,227,734 33,227,734 26,026,662 26,026,662

103,032,847

3,155,381,063
1,377,204,671

- 
4,635,618,581

-

-
-

617,613
617,613
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Financial assets measured at fair value

133,095,394              133,095,394              -                             -                             

Ordinary shares - listed 3,701,413,596           -                             -                             3,701,413,596           
Mutual fund units 4,994,392,737           -                             -                             4,994,392,737           
Ordinary shares - unlisted 617,613                     -                             -                             617,613                     

8,829,519,339           133,095,394              -                             8,696,423,945           
45.3 Transfers during the period 

During the year to December 31, 2017:

- There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements 
- There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 fair value measurements 

45.4 Valuation techniques  
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As at December 31, 
2016

Investments at fair value through profit or loss - held for 
trading
Investments at fair value- available for sale

-------------------------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------------------------

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

For Level 3 available-for-sale investments the Company values the investment at lower of carrying value and breakup value.

133,095,394

3,701,413,596
4,994,392,737

-     
8,828,901,726 617,613

-

-
-

617,613
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46 IMPLICATIONS OF REVISED IFRS 2 - SHARE-BASED PAYMENT ON BENAZIR 
EMPLOYEES' STOCK OPTION SCHEME (BESOS)

The Schemeprovidesfor a cashpaymentto employeeson retirementor terminationbasedon
thepriceof sharesof respectiveentities.To administerthis scheme,GoPhastransferred12%of
its investmentin suchSOEsandNon-SOEsto a Trust Fund,establishedundera Trust Deed,
createdfor the purposeby eachof such entities. The eligible employeesare entitled to be
allotted units by eachTrust Fund in proportion to their respectivelength of serviceand on
retirementor termination,suchemployeeswould beentitledto receivesuchamountsfrom Trust
Fundsin exchangefor thesurrenderedunits,aswould bedeterminedbasedon marketpricefor
listed entitiesor breakupvalue for non-listedentities.The sharesrelating to the surrendered
units would be transferred back to GoP.

The Schemealsoprovidesthat 50% of dividendrelatedto sharestransferredto the respective
TrustFundwould bedistributedamongsttheunit-holderemployees.Thebalance50%dividend
would be transferredby the respectiveTrust Fundto the CentralRevolvingFund,managedby
the PrivatisationCommissionof Pakistanfor paymentto employeesagainstsurrenderedunits.
The deficit, if any, in Trust Funds to meet the re-purchase commitment would be met by GoP.

The Scheme,developedin compliance with the stated GoP policy of empowermentof
employeesof StateOwned Enterprises,needsto be accountedfor by the coveredentities,
including the Corporation,underthe provisionsof amendedInternationalFinancialReporting
Standard-2,“Share-basedPayments”(IFRS 2). However,keepingin view the difficulties that
maybefacedby theentitiescoveredundertheScheme,theSECP,on receivingrepresentations
from someof entitiescoveredunder the Schemeand after having consultedthe Institute of
CharteredAccountantsof Pakistan,hasgrantedexemptionvide SRO 587(l)/2011datedJune
07, 2011 to such entities including the Corporationfrom the applicationof IFRS 2 to the
Scheme.
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On August 14, 2009, the Governmentof Pakistan(GoP) launchedBenazirEmployees'Stock
Option Scheme(“the Scheme”)for employeesof certainStateOwnedEnterprises(SOEs)and
Non-StateOwned Enterprises,where GoP holds significant investments(Non-SOEs).The
Schemeis applicableto permanentand contractualemployeeswho were in employmentof
theseentities including the Corporationon the date of launch of the Scheme,subject to
completion of five years vesting period by all contractualemployeesand by permanent
employees in certain instances.

Had the exemptionnot beengranted,Staff costsof the Corporationfor the year would have
beenhigherby Rs.42.235million, profit beforetaxationwould havebeenlower by Rs.42.235
million, earningspersharewould havebeenlowerby Rs.0.14,reservesfor theyearwouldhave
been higher by Rs. 42.235 million.
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46 IMPLICATIONS OF REVISED IFRS 2 - SHARE-BASED PAYMENT ON BENAZIR 
EMPLOYEES' STOCK OPTION SCHEME (BESOS)
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On August 14, 2009, the Governmentof Pakistan(GoP) launchedBenazirEmployees'Stock
Option Scheme(“the Scheme”)for employeesof certainStateOwnedEnterprises(SOEs)and
Non-StateOwned Enterprises,where GoP holds significant investments(Non-SOEs).The
Schemeis applicableto permanentand contractualemployeeswho were in employmentof
theseentities including the Corporationon the date of launch of the Scheme,subject to
completion of five years vesting period by all contractualemployeesand by permanent
employees in certain instances.

Had the exemptionnot beengranted,Staff costsof the Corporationfor the year would have
beenhigherby Rs.42.235million, profit beforetaxationwould havebeenlower by Rs.42.235
million, earningspersharewould havebeenlowerby Rs.0.14,reservesfor theyearwouldhave
been higher by Rs. 42.235 million.

47 SUBSEQUENT EVENT - NON ADJUSTING

48 CORRESPONDING FIGURES

49 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

50 GENERAL

Thesefinancial statementshavebeenauthorizedfor issueon ___________________by the
Board of Directors of the company.
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The Board of Directors in its meetingheld on _________have recommendeda final cash
dividendof Rs._________pershareanda bonusissueof Rs._____ persharefor theapproval
of the members in the Annual General Meeting to be held on___________________.

Thesefinancial statementsfor the yearendedDecember31, 2017do not includethe effect of
theseappropriationsandthesewill beaccountedin the financialstatementsfor theyearending
December 31, 2018. 

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Rupee, unless otherwise stated.

Correspondingfigures have been rearrangedand reclassified,wherever necessaryfor the
purpose of comparison. No significant reclassifications has been made during the year.

CHAIRMAN              CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER                   DIRECTOR                     DIRECTOR    
 
 
 
 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER  
 

�7�K�H���%�R�D�U�G���R�I���'�L�U�H�F�W�R�U�V���L�Q���L�W�V���P�H�H�W�L�Q�J���K�H�O�G���R�Q�����W�K���$�S�U�L�O���������������K�D�Y�H���U�H�F�R�P�P�H�Q�G�H�G���D���¿�Q�D�O���F�D�V�K��
dividend of Rs. 3.50 per share and a bonus issue of Rs. Nil per share for the approval of the 
members in the Annual General Meeting to be held on 30th April, 2018.

�7�K�H�V�H���¿�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���V�W�D�W�H�P�H�Q�W�V���K�D�Y�H���E�H�H�Q���D�X�W�K�R�U�L�]�H�G���I�R�U���L�V�V�X�H���R�Q�������W�K���$�S�U�L�O���������������E�\���W�K�H���%�R�D�U�G���R�I��
Directors of the company.
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# Of Shareholders Shareholdings'Slab Total Shares Held

525 1 to 100  19,223 

519 101 to 500  193,772 

447 501 to 1000  391,728 

609 1001 to 5000  1,595,488 

220 5001 to 10000  1,715,743 

67 10001 to 15000  828,998 

43 15001 to 20000  783,711 

26 20001 to 25000  610,297 

18 25001 to 30000  509,786 

23 30001 to 35000  750,478 

5 35001 to 40000  191,696 

7 40001 to 45000  298,919 

12 45001 to 50000  589,706 

12 50001 to 55000  632,426 

5 55001 to 60000  291,952 

5 60001 to 65000  316,760 

7 65001 to 70000  471,658 

2 70001 to 75000  150,000 

4 75001 to 80000  306,921 

2 80001 to 85000  168,000 

3 85001 to 90000  261,899 

8 95001 to 100000  795,500 

2 100001 to 105000  205,500 

1 105001 to 110000  108,000 

1 110001 to 115000  111,999 

2 115001 to 120000  237,999 

2 120001 to 125000  245,500 

2 125001 to 130000  254,082 

1 130001 to 135000  130,500 

1 135001 to 140000  136,846 

1 140001 to 145000  142,000 

7 145001 to 150000  1,034,064 

2 150001 to 155000  305,100 

2 155001 to 160000  315,499 

2 160001 to 165000  325,500 

2 165001 to 170000  335,500 

1 175001 to 180000  177,777 

3 180001 to 185000  545,688 

1 190001 to 195000  194,000 

3 195001 to 200000  600,000 

2 200001 to 205000  408,500 

Pattern of Shareholding
As of December 31, 2017
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Pattern of Shareholding
As of December 31, 2017

# Of Shareholders Shareholdings'Slab Total Shares Held

1 205001 to 210000  209,999 

2 220001 to 225000  447,599 

2 230001 to 235000  462,500 

1 235001 to 240000  239,000 

1 240001 to 245000  244,000 

1 245001 to 250000  246,000 

1 260001 to 265000  264,243 

1 270001 to 275000  274,799 

1 275001 to 280000  276,000 

1 285001 to 290000  286,843 

2 295001 to 300000  599,999 

1 315001 to 320000  319,199 

1 370001 to 375000  371,000 

1 380001 to 385000  383,999 

1 395001 to 400000  395,999 

2 460001 to 465000  925,499 

1 485001 to 490000  488,000 

1 495001 to 500000  500,000 

1 710001 to 715000  711,500 

1 735001 to 740000  738,000 

1 775001 to 780000  779,998 

1 935001 to 940000  940,000 

2 995001 to 1000000  2,000,000 

1 1095001 to 1100000  1,100,000 

1 1300001 to 1305000  1,305,000 

1 1420001 to 1425000  1,425,000 

1 1580001 to 1585000  1,582,000 

1 2295001 to 2300000  2,300,000 

1 2400001 to 2405000  2,403,500 

1 3745001 to 3750000  3,747,882 

1 4040001 to 4045000  4,041,000 

1 4255001 to 4260000  4,257,000 

1 4625001 to 4630000  4,630,000 

1 5095001 to 5100000  5,100,000 

1 12080001 to 12085000  12,083,770 

1 18355001 to 18360000  18,359,971 

1 73230001 to 73235000  73,232,201 

1 134635001 to 134640000  134,639,785 

2650  300,000,000 
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Categories of Shareholders Shareholders  Shares Held  Percentage 

Government of Pakistan

 THE SECRETARY MINISTRY OF COMMERCE, 1  134,639,785  44.88 

M/S. PRCL EMPLOYEES EMPOWERMENT TRUST 1  18,359,971  6.12 

Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties

STATE LIFE INSURANCE CORP. OF PAKISTAN 1  73,232,201  24.41 

Mutual Funds 4  3,161,500  1.05 

Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children

MR. ABDUL SAMI KEHAR 1  55  0.00 

MR. SHAHAB ANWAR KHAWAJA 1  55  0.00 

MR. MUSLEH UD DIN 1  55  0.00 

DR. NAZIM LATIF 1  55  0.00 

MR. MUMTAZ ALI RAJPER 2  555  0.00 

ABDUL SAMI KEHAR 1  500  0.00 

MRS. GHAZALA AHMED 1  55  0.00 

MR. FAISAL MUMTAZ 1  55  0.00 

MR. SHOAIB MIR 1  55  0.00 

Executives 5  18,732  0.01 

Public Sector Companies and Corporations 2  13,508,770  4.50 

�%�D�Q�N�V�����G�H�Y�H�O�R�S�P�H�Q�W���¿�Q�D�Q�F�H���L�Q�V�W�L�W�X�W�L�R�Q�V�����Q�R�Q���E�D�Q�N�L�Q�J���¿�Q�D�Q�F�H��
companies, 

insurance companies, takaful and modarabas 14  11,134,830  3.71 

General Public

a. Local 2562  35,386,901  11.80 

b. Foreign 1  1,922  0.00 

Foreign Companies 2  5,100,078  1.70 

Others 47  5,453,870  1.82 

Totals 2650  300,000,000  100.00 

Share holders holding 5% or more  Shares Held  Percentage 

PRCL EMPLOYEES EMPOWERMENT TRUST  18,359,971  6.12 

STATE LIFE INSURANCE CORP. OF PAKISTAN  73,232,201  24.41 

THE SECRETARY MINISTRY OF COMMERCE  107,099,785  35.70 

Pattern of Shareholding
As at December 31, 2017
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Proxy Form

I/We,_________________________________________of_____________________________being a member of Pakistan 

Reinsurance Company Limited and holder of ___________________  ordinary shares  hereby appoint Mr/Mrs.__________

________________________________________  of______________________________ or failing him/her ______________

_____________________________________ of ___________________________  as my / our proxy in my absence to attend 

and vote for me / us and on my / our behalf at the 18th Annual General Meeting of the Compnay to be held on  30th April,  2018 at 

10.00am at Karachi and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this ________________________day of  April, 2018

���8�Æ���Z�µ�‰�����•���&�]�À�����Z���À-

���v�µ�����^�š���u�‰

Signature of Member(s)						      Shareholder’s Folio No____________________ 

or  CDC 

Participant I D. No.       ____________________ 

and Sub Account No.    ____________________
   
Witnesses:

�í	 Signature _________________________                 2.    Signature __________________________

Name____________________________                         Name ____________________________

Address __________________________                         Address ___________________________

CNIC or Passport No. ________________                       CNIC or Passport No. ________________		
IMPORTANT :     

�í�X	�1�R�����S�H�U�V�R�Q���V�K�D�O�O���E�H���D�S�S�R�L�Q�W�H�G���D���S�U�R�[�\�� �Z�K�R���L�V���Q�R�W���D���V�K�D�U�H�K�R�O�G�H�U���R�I���W�K�H���F�R�P�S�D�Q�\���D�Q�G���T�X�D�O�L�¿�H�G���W�R�����Y�R�W�H����
�V�D�Y�H���W�K�D�W���D���F�R�P�S�D�Q�\���E�H�L�Q�J���P�H�P�E�H�U���R�I���W�K�H���F�R�P�S�D�Q�\���P�D�\���D�S�S�R�L�Q�W���D�V���L�W�V���S�U�R�[�\���D�Q�\���R
v�F�H�U���R�I���V�X�F�K���F�R�P�S�D�Q�\��
whether a member of the company or not.

�î�X	The instrument appointing proxy and the power of attorney or other authority if any, under which it is 
singed shall be deposited with the company not less than 48 hours before the date of meeting.

�ï�X	In case of joint holders any one of the point holders may singed the instrument of proxy.

�ð�X	�7�K�H���V�L�J�Q�D�W�X�U�H���R�Q���W�K�H���L�Q�V�W�U�X�P�H�Q�W���R�I���S�U�R�[�\���P�X�V�W���F�R�Q�¿�U�P���W�R���W�K�H���V�S�H�F�L�P�H�Q���V�L�J�Q�D�W�X�U�H���¿�O�H�G���Z�L�W�K���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\��

�ñ�X	CDC Shareholders and their proxies are each requested to attach attested photocopy of their Computerized 
National Identity Card or Passport with this proxy form before submission to the company.

�ò�X	CDC Shareholders or their  proxies are requested to bring with them their Original Computerized National 
Identity Card or Passport along-with the participant’s ID number and their account number at the time of 
�D�W�W�H�Q�G�L�Q�J���W�K�H���$�Q�Q�X�D�O���*�H�Q�H�U�D�O���0�H�H�W�L�Q�J���L�Q���R�U�G�H�U���W�R���I�D�F�L�O�L�W�D�W�H���W�K�H�L�U���L�G�H�Q�W�L�¿�F�D�W�L�R�Q������
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Bank Account Details for Payment of Cash Dividend

CDC/RTA/Company/IBAN/17
Date_____________________

Folio No._________________
Name of Shareholder
F/H Name
Address
Telephone/Cell #

Bank Account Details for Payment of Cash Dividend
(Mandatory Requirement as per the Companies Act, 2017)

Dear Shareholder,

This is to inform you that in accordance with the Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, any dividend payable in cash shall only 
be paid through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled shareholder. Please note that giving bank 
mandate for dividend payments is mandatory and in order to comply with this regulatory requirement and to avail the facility of 
direct credit of dividend amount in your bank account, you are requested to please provide the following information:

Details of Shareholder
Name of shareholder
F/H Name
Folio / CDS Account No.
CNIC No.  
Cell number & Landline of shareholder 
Email Address (mandatory)

Details of Bank Account
Title of Bank Account

International Bank Account Number (IBAN) 
“Mandatory”

�WK �~�î�ð�����]�P�]�š�•�•
 
(Kindly provide your accurate IBAN number after consulting with your 
respective bank branch since in case of any error or omission in given 
IBAN, the company will not be held responsible in any manner for any loss 
or delay in your cash dividend payment). 

Bank’s name 

Branch Name and Code

Branch Address 

It is stated that the above-mentioned information is correct and in case of any change therein, I / we will immediately intimate 
Participant / Share Registrar accordingly.

_____________________
Signature of shareholder 
Kindly ensure that the title of IBAN/Bank Account must be in your name.

�<�R�X���D�U�H���U�H�T�X�H�V�W�H�G���W�R���N�L�Q�G�O�\���V�H�Q�G���X�V���W�K�L�V���O�H�W�W�H�U���L�P�P�H�G�L�D�W�H�O�\���G�X�O�\���¿�O�O�H�G���L�Q���D�Q�G���V�L�J�Q�H�G���E�\���\�R�X���D�O�R�Q�J���Z�L�W�K���O�H�J�L�E�O�H���S�K�R�W�R�F�R�S�\���R�I���\�R�X�U��
valid CNIC at our address, Share Registrar Services, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block 
B, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi. 74400, Pakistan.

Regards,

Share Registrar Department
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
Share Registrar: 

Note: This letter is being computer generated and does not require any signature.
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